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A Message from the Management

Kazuyoshi Terakado,
President

Thank you for your continued patronage.

On October 1, 2016, Joyo Bank, Ltd. and
Ashikaga Holdings Co., Ltd. completed a business
integration through share exchange, and launched
Mebuki Financial Group, Inc. (hereinafter referred to
as the “Company”, and together with its subsidiaries
collectively the “Group”), a financial holding company
over the subsidiaries The Joyo Bank, Ltd. and The
Ashikaga Bank, Ltd. We would like to express our
gratitude for your understanding and support with
the startup of this new financial group.

Mebuki is Japanese for “green shoots.” The
name reflects a Group company commitment to call
upon a great amount of expertise and creativity to
produce fresh ideas and new values after another.
This company name expresses our desire to bring
new value and vitality to our communities and grow
sustainably with them.

Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.

Masanao Matsushita,
Executive Vice President

The management philosophy of the new financial
group is to “Provide high-quality comprehensive
financial services to continue creating a prosperous
future with local communities.” On that foundation,
we will maintain and deepen our relationships with
the customers and local communities that both
banks have developed up to this point, and utilize
wide-area networks in an effort to “discover regional
industries, revitalize the local economy, and create
new markets.”

As the driving force in regional development and
local creation, it is our intention to push forward as a
financial group that contributes to the sustainable
growth of the region by consolidating the ingenuity of
the Group and providing high-quality comprehensive
financial services. We hope for your continued
kindness and support in the future as well.

September 2017



Corporate History (s ofApi 3, 2017)

November 2015

Notice Regarding the Basic
Agreement Concerning a Business
Integration through a Share
Exchange of The Joyo Bank, Ltd.
and Ashikaga Holdings Co., Ltd.

April 2016

Notice Regarding Definitive
Agreement Concerning the
Business Integration of The Joyo
Bank, Ltd. and Ashikaga Holdings
Co., Ltd. through a Share
Exchange

June 2016

Approval of stock exchange
agreement at the ordinary general
meeting of shareholders of The
Joyo Bank, Ltd. and Ashikaga
Holdings Co., Ltd.

October 2016

Establishment of the Mebuki
Financial Group, Inc.

April 2017

Acquired all shares of Mebuki
Lease Co., Ltd. (formerly known as
The Joyo Lease Co., Ltd.) from The
Joyo Bank, Ltd.
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Disclaimer regarding forward-looking
statements

This Annual Report contains certain for-
ward-looking statements, including estimates,
forecasts, targets and plans. Such for-
ward-looking statements are based on the in-
formation available and the assumptions
deemed reasonable by management at the
time of publication of the Annual Report, and
do not represent any guarantee by manage-
ment of future performance. We are under no
obligation, and disclaim any obligation, to up-
date or alter our forward-looking statements,
whether as a result of new information, future
events or otherwise.

Annual Report 2017



About Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.

Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.

Ideals reflected in the name

The Japanese word mebuki, or “green shoots,” conveys an image of new leaves budding
on tree branches. This word is used in the Group’s name to express its approach of drawing
on the knowledge and creativity of each of its companies to create fresh ideas and
new value. The name Mebuki expresses our wish to create new energy and value

in local communities and pursue sustainable growth along with these communities.

\’l
MEBUKI

Financial Group

[Brand logo design concept] [Colors in the logo]

The brand’s distinctive logo design shows three fresh young leaves ~ The main color is “assuring blue,” a distinctive shade which
sprouting, expressing an image of vibrant life and growth. Mebuki represents wisdom and trust. This is combined with “grow-
Financial Group is symbolically portrayed as firmly rooted in the ing green,” a youthful color which represents growth and
community, constantly creating new value and developing a prom- the future.

ising future.

Group Philosophy

Together with local communities, we will continue to build a more prosperous future
by providing high-quality, comprehensive financial services.

The ingenuity of the entire Group will be combined to contribute to sustainable growth in communities.
We will build a better future together with local communities, seeking solutions to challenges
that affect these communities by providing high-quality, comprehensive financial services.

3 Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.



Vision of the new Group (strategic goals)

Building the region’s future as a comprehensive financial services group

The GI’OUp will maintain and promote The Group’s philosophical structure and basic approach of the new Group’s activities
the relationships with customers and

local communities, as well as the

) Mission Contributing to local communities
deep understanding of local commu- by developing and growing together
nities that both banks have developed
over the years. At the same time, the Wsion Expanding into more areas of busingss, more regions,
i i . and a greater scale as an open financial group
Group will use its wide-area network
to eXpand its zone of economic inter- Us":)?'o?:l‘l:)tneelt;?arlk o ogzxﬁg’gz]\?aﬁggd reB\l;ltielrc\’liJr;gbt:see prol-gasisr]i?rlgaIS'
actions expand the scale and scope economic growth: services: through integration:
We will d We will devel o] b il | Our training will enabl
of comprehensive financial services Gr.OWth w%f-;refrm'o?ﬁrwmch an%vgror:c;/tiop b:rstrreevnegntlljwin:c?iyl er?\l;algé;lgggt(\;v lrese,ggnde
d rivers includes major corpora- advanced financial streamlining opera- professionally to
i i tions in the Metropolit ices based ti d strategicall | d di
that it offers, and grow along with area, to increase the flow | IT and inter-indus- | reallocating business. | financial necds with an
Communities by promoting uthe de' Z;go&rgzzsﬁggg;zahon, try collaboration. resources. r;li?f;?glgr?it?;sthe

velopment of local industries, the
revitalization of local economies, and Values
the creation of new markets.”

One-stop comprehensive financial services including leasing,
securities, research functions, and IT services

Solid relationships of trust with local communities

Underpinnings Regional financial institutions with the top market shares

Targets for realization of the vision

Second Medium-term Group Business Plan
(FY2019 to FY2021)

First Medium-term Group Business Plan : : ™
Producing solid results and upshifting
(2nd half of FY2016 to FY2018) for the next stage of growth
= = the region’s future
etting the new Group :
on the right track to success FY2021 (For reference) as a comprehensive

Consolidated net income: About 64 billion yen financial
FY2018 Consolidated ROE: Over 6% services group

Consolidated net income: About 47 billion yen Consolidated capital adequacy ratio: Over 10

Consolidated ROE: B9/, or more

[The vision]

Building

Consolidated capital adequacy ratio: Mid 10% level

About 15 billion yen

" N

< Developing systems and other infrastructure >

\r V

[ Top line synergy*
B Cost saving synergy

I Reverse synergy
(system migration costs)
(depreciation for initial costs to be
completed in FY2024)

About 5 billion yen “Top line synergy:

After deducting the increased costs related
to top line increases

2nd half of FY2016 Fy2017 Fy2018 FY2019 FY2020 Fy2021

Annual Report 2017 4



5

Market of the new group

Impressive share of its core market, lbaraki and Tochigi prefectures,

Near the greater Tokyo region.

M Economic scale of our operating area

National ~ Chiba  National
Prefecture  Rank

Ibaraki ~ National ~ Tochigi | National Gunma National Saitama National  Tokyo
Prefecture © Rank  Prefecture . Rank  Prefecture  Rank  Prefecture  Rank  Metropolitan ~ Rank

Prefectural gross

product (2014) (¥ trilion) 11.6§ 11 8.2 16 8.0 17 20.9§ 5 94.9§ 1 20.0§ 6

Population (2016)

2005 11 | 1966 19 | 1967 18 | 7,289 5 13624 1 | 6236 6
(thousand) 3 3 ; ; ; :
Prefectural income
per capita (2014) 3088 11 | 3204 4 3002 10 | 2903 20 | 4512 1 |2970 16
(¥ thousand)
Number of bUSINESSES 115012 12 86,143 20 90433 18 (241050 5 (623,656 1 189534 9

(2016)

Manufactured goods

shipped (2014) (¥ trilion) 11.33 8 8.2 12 8.2 13 12.0% 7 7.7 15 13.7% 6

New Factory Locations 1 1 ;
(excluding power supply 40 29 56 32
sector) (2016) /93ha [ /47ha | 18/10 / 54ha 3/ / 28ha
(number / area(ha)) | :

21

/27ha 1871

o
110/13 /1ha§46/47

Note: The above ranks are the ranks among the 47 prefectures.

Source: Prefectural gross product and prefectural income per capita data is from the Cabinet Office. Population data and Number of businesses are
from the Ministry of Internal Affairs and Communications. Manufactured goods shipped and new factory locations data come from the Ministry
of Economy, Trade and Industry.

Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.



Number of .
offices 334 offices

lbaraki 154 offices
Tochigi 120 offices

Gunma 15 offices

Saitama 20 offices
Tokyo 6 offices

Chiba 6 offices

e Others 13 offices

Vi as ¢f March 31,2017

T
\l

%
1

Tochigi
ikko
\\

paREEEEER

gust?
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Mebuki Financial Group’s Overseas Business Support Activities

The Group offers various overseas business support services including foreign currency exchange, overseas remittances, loans and
standby credit in local currencies, and the provision of information obtained from local partner banks and government agencies.

In addition to four overseas representative offices of the Group (three offices of Joyo Bank and one office of Ashikaga Bank, as
of March 2017), we offer a wide variety of support services through business alliances with local financial institutions and

government agencies in Asia and North America.
**2 ()
* . . . _ID
- Shanghai Representative Office, Joyo Bank Hong Kong Represen

Room 1901, Shanghai International Trade Suite 1601, 16th Floor,
Centre, 2201 Yan An Road (West), | Tower2, The Gateway,
Shanghai 200336 Harbour City, Kowloon,
P.R. China Hong Kong

+86-21-6209-0258 +852-2251-9475

Shanghai Forefront Ashikaga Bank

Hong Kong Report

- P ——
® BT —~ ] T ASHK-G- BANK. LD

LEftEL [ 53 el TG NG RES9EE IV ATIVE O S0E

THE JOYO BANK, LTD.

S
63 Market' Street, #11-03 Hong Kong
Bank of Singapore Centre, Mumbai X
Singapore 048942 ® Hanm' S .
+65-6225-6543 l
Joyo ASEAN News Bangkok
Singapore
) @
- ] NS L] L8 T .
HOFFRIE SN AT 1918 Jakarta
B UL TN R - T T R R ]
L J

Major alliance partners Business overview of alliance partners

. Provision of various types of information concerning overseas business development;
provision of information concerning foreign country regulations, etc.

Provision of various types of information concerning overseas business development in developing
nations; provision of information concerning foreign country regulations

Japan External Trade Organization (JETRO)

Japan International Cooperation Agency (JICA)

Japan Bank for International Cooperation (JBIC) Provision of loans to support overseas business development

Nippon Export and Investment Insurance (NEXI) Provision of various types of trade insurance to cover foreign transaction risks in export transactions

Provision of various types of information concerning overseas business development;

Organization for Small & Medium Enterprises and Regional Innovation, JAPAN provision of information concerning foreign country regulations, et.

Tokio Marine & Nichido Fire Insurance

Provision of risk information overseas; provision of risk management consulting services;

Sompo Japan Nipponkoa Insurance provision of various types of P&C insurance

Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance

SECOM . ) ) . )
Provision of security system and crime prevention equipment overseas;

provision of security services overseas

Sohgo Security Services

Nl|o|jo|o|ojo/0o/0o/00| o

Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.



In September 2016, Joyo Bank and Ashikaga Bank entered into a business partnership agreement with Guanajuato and Nuevo
Ledn, local state governments of Mexico, and Banamex, a major Mexican financial institution, with respect to overseas business
development. In November 2016, Joyo Bank entered into a general agreement with Japan Bank for International Cooperation
(JBIC), to financially support M&As and stabilization of small and medium-sized overseas business.

Furthermore, the Group also promotes various initiatives to demonstrate its collaborative creation capabilities, including hosting
of the Hong Kong Business Meeting and the Hanoi Business Meeting and co-hosting of the Hanoi Factory Network Business Expo.

n tative Office, Ashikaga Bank

e
0AE

i

Shanghai
—e

.

® T Taipei

712 Fifth Avenue, 8th Floor
New York, NY 10019

U.S A

+1-347-686-8420

Joyo New York Report

New York Represe

New York

Mexico City

lManila

) Country/region Major alliance partners Business overview of alliance partners
4 ) .
m Ll s ‘ . Provision of information regarding China;
] . ) rovision of various financial services including establishment of accounts
; Bank of Communications (China) . P 9
(%2}
o . Provision of information regarding Taiwan;
CTBC Bank (Taiwan) . provision of various financial services including establishment of accounts
iy o = . . Provision of information regarding Thailand;
rovision of various financial services including establishment of accounts
Bangkok Bank . s 9
@ e ligaE meEmess . Provision of information regarding Indonesia;
= rovision of various financial services including establishment of accounts
5 Bank CIMB Niaga o ° 9
Q0
(7} Y
> Vietin Bank ‘ Provision of information regarding Vietnam;
g . provision of various financial services including establishment of accounts
o) Vietcombank . .
o}
§_ e e A GV . Cooperation in hosting seminars relevant to Vietnam; various support
> 9 gency for business expansion to Vietnam; provision of investment-related information
(23 .
- BDO Unibank . Provision of information regarding Philippines;
provision of various financial services including establishment of accounts
Metrobank .
. Provision of information regarding India;
State Bank of India . ‘ provision of various financial services including establishment of accounts
& Provision of information regarding Mexico;
=1 ST . . provision of various financial services including establishment of accounts
= Py . n
2 Government of Aguascalientes, ‘ . Provision of local market information;
=) Government of Jalisco, etc.

provision of investment-related information regarding Mexico )
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Financial Highlights

\‘l
MEBUKI

Financial Group

Mebuki FG (Consolidated Basis) (Billion yen)
FY2016 Result Progress Forecast
Net income attributable to 158.4 102.2% 155.0
owners of the parent
Capital adequacy ratio 10.62% — —

Total of Joyo Bank and Ashikaga Bank (Non-Consolidated Basis)

Joyo + Ashikaga

Year-on-year

Result
change

Result

The Group’s total income and total expenses were 332.5
billion yen and 163.1 billion yen, respectively.

Net income attributable to owners of the parent reached
158.4 billion yen partly because a gain on negative goodwill
associated with the business integration amounting to
119.2 billion yen was included.

Consolidated capital adequacy ratio reached 10.62%.

(Billion yen)
FY2016
Joyo Bank

Ashikaga Bank

Year-on-year
change

Year-on-year

Result
change

Gross business profit 187.5 (8.3) 105.2 6.2) 82.3 (2.0)
Net interest income 153.4 4.4) 85.1 (4.6) 68.2 +0.1
Net fees and commissions 27.6 (2.7) 14.3 (1.1) 13.2 (1.6)
Net other business income
and net trading income 6.3 (1.0 5.6 (0.4) 0.7 (0.5)
(o/w gains/losses on bond
transactions) 5.6 (2.8) 5.8 (1.7) (0.2 (1.0

150 09 e85 02 6.4 09
Personnel expenses 60.4 +0.0 34.7 0.2) 25.7 +0.3
Non-personnel expenses 47.0 (1.3) 29.5 0.0 17.5 (1.3)

Net business income 72.5 (8.0) 36.7 (6.5) 35.8 (1.5)

Core net business income

(before general allowance for
loan losses)

Net transfer to general allowance

for loan losses (a) (0.4) +0.2 (0.6) +0.0 0.1 +0.1
Net non-recurrent gains/losses (4.0) (5.3) (1.7) 0.4) (2.3) (4.8)
o/w Disposal of non-
performing loans (b) 10.0 +4.8 5.4 (0.0 45 +4.8
o/w Gains/losses related to
stocks, etc. 9.7 +2.5 7.5 +2.8 2.1 (0.3
Ordinary profit 68.9 (13.6) 35.6 (7.0) 33.2 6.5)
Other income/losses 2.1) (1.0) (0.8) 0.1) (1.3) (0.9)
Credit related costs (a) + (b) 9.5 +5.0 4.7 (0.0 4.7 +5.0

Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.



Total (Joyo + Ashikaga)

Gross business profit (Billion yen)
W1H W2H
189.6 1958 187.5
93.3 958 87.5
9.3 100.0 99.9
FY2014 FY2015 FY2016

(Gross business profit decreased by 8.3 billon yen Yo to 187.5 bil-
Point | fion yen due to decreased domestic net interest income caused by
a decling in market interest rates and in net fees and commissions.

Core net business income (Billion yen)
W1H HE2H
72.0
68.6
I )
34.8 32.7
I33.7 391 34.1
FY2014 FY2015 FY2016

Core net business income decreased by 5.1 billion yen
Point | YoY to 66.9 billion yen mainly because the decrease of
gross business profit exceeded that of expenses.

Balance of deposits (Billion yen)

[ Public sector [ Corporate customers* [ Individual customers*

13,327.9 13,572.9
[ 504.4

.31020.8

12,8141 . 748.0

.\3,062.8

9,762.1

Mar-15 Mar-16 Mar-17

*Including foreign currency deposits

The balance of deposits increased by 245.0 billion yen YoY to
Point | 13,572.9 billon yen overall due to increased deposits by both individu-
al and corporate customers driven by improved customer convenience.

Expenses (Billion yen)
W1H W2H
117.9 115.3 115.0
57.4 56.5 56.6
60.4 58.7 58.3
FY2014 FY2015 FY2016

Expenses decreased by 0.2 billion yen YoY to 115.0 bil-
Point | lion yen as a result of cost reduction mainly in non-per-
sonnel expenses despite increased income taxes.

Net income (Billion yen)
W1H M2H
58.6
50.8
43.7 26.7
21.6
18.6
31.9
250 29.2
FY2014 FY2015 FY2016

Net income decreased by 7.7 hillion yen YoY to 50.8
Point | hillion yen mainly due to decreased gross business
profit and increased credit related costs.

Balance of loans (Billion yen)

[ Public sector [ Corporate customers* [ Individual customers

10,187.1 10,315.4

9,845.8
2 1,232.9
1,327.3 .1'348'3 -

I“M7722

4,813.1 4,809.6

3,746.2 4,025.6 4,272.8

Mar-15 Mar-16 Mar-17

*Including foreign currency loans

The balance of loans increased by 128.3 hillion yen YoY
Point | t010,315.4 billion yen overall mainly due to an increase
in loans to individual customers including housing loans.

Annual Report 2017
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Financial Highlights (non-consolidated)

I ! BANK

Status of income (Billion yen)

[l Core net business income [ Ordinary profit [ Net income

42.7
40.4 |
36.5 3?.6 35.6
|
30.8
277 ‘
23.9 I I 24.4

FY2014 FY2015 FY2016

Net income decreased by 3.3 hillion yen YoY to 24.4
Point | hillion yen mainly due to decreased net interest in-
come and net fees and commissions.

Balance of loans (Billion yen)

[H Public sector [ Corporate customers* [ Individual customers

5,912.7 5,967.0

5,656.4
J 758.3
807.3 843 4 -

I2776A6

2,828.6 2,821.3

2,072.4 2,240.5 2,387.4

Mar-15 Mar-16 Mar-17

The balance of loans increased by 54.3 billion yen YoY
Point | to 5,967.0 billion yen mainly due to an increase in

loans to individual customers including housing loans.

udi i ul
*Including foreign currency loans

Balance of deposits (Billion yen)

[M Public sector [ Corporate customers* [ Individual customers*

8,103.3 8,240.3

581 4240
1 738.0 1 747.4
I5 : I5 ) I6 )
Mar-15 Mar-16 Mar-17

The balance of deposits increased by 137.0 billion yen
Point | YoY to 8,240.3 billion yen mainly due to increased de-
posits of both individual and corporate customers.

*Including foreign currency deposits

Status of capital adequacy ratio
@ Non-consolidated @ Consolidated

12.40%
12.00%
11.86%
11.92%
11.51%
11.23%
Mar-15 Mar-16 Mar-17

Consolidated (Joyo Bank and its subsidiaries) capital

Point adequacy ratio resulted in 11.86%.

(Aggregated market share of Joyo Bank and Ashikaga Bank in Ibaraki Prefecture)

We maintain a high degree of market share in both deposits and loans in Ibaraki Prefecture.

Deposits

Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.

Loans

Source: Kinyu Journal, Special Issue of December 2016



Status of income (Billion yen)

[l Core net business income [ Ordinary profit [ Net income
36.0
L 33.2

39.8
36.4 gt
|

32.0

207 30.8

I I I i

FY2014 FY2015 FY2016

Net income decreased by 4.4 hilion yen YoY to 26.4
Point | billion yen mainly due to decreased net fees and
commissions and increased credit related costs.

Balance of loans (Billion yen)

IH Public sector [ Corporate customers* [ Individual customers

4,189.4 4 274.4 4,348.4

'519 9 504.8 [ T

I1 N - -

1,673.7 1,785.0 1,885.4

Mar-15 Mar-16 Mar-17

The balance of loans increased by 74.0 billion yen YoY
Point | to 4,348.4 billion yen mainly due to an increase in
loans to individual customers including housing loans.

udi i ul
*Including foreign currency loans

Zi ASHIKAGA BANK

Balance of deposits (Billion yen)

[ Public sector [ Corporate customers* [ Individual customers*

5,332.5
By o M oo MEEE3239
1 ,315.4

11998 12825

I3 h I3 h I3 )

Mar-15 Mar-16 Mar-17

The balance of deposits increased by 108.0 billion yen
Point | YoY to 5,332.5 billion yen mainly due to increased de-
posits of both individual and corporate customers.

*Including foreign currency deposits

Status of capital adequacy ratio
@ Non-consolidated @ Consolidated

9.17%

8.96% 9.01%
B ]

8.58%

Mar-15 Mar-16 Mar-17

Consolidated (Ashikaga Bank and its subsidiaries)

Poi
oint capital adequacy ratio resulted in 9.17%.

(Aggregated market share of Joyo Bank and Ashikaga Bank in Tochigi Prefecture)

We maintain a high degree of market share in both deposits and loans in Tochigi Prefecture.

Deposits

Loans

Source: Kinyu Journal, Special Issue of December 2016

Annual Report 2017
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Initiatives and Measures of the Integration

Hosting the 1st Mebuki Business Award

We hosted the 1st Mebuki Business Award to recognize innovative
and creative business plans in the region.
We integrated the business contests previously hosted sepa-

rately by Joyo Bank and Ashikaga Bank to invite business plans in
the extended business areas of the both banks.

Out of 646 plans submitted in response to our invitation in the
8 business areas including initiatives for the growth area, regional
revitalization in manufacturing, and the startup area, which will lead
to business creation in the region, 28 plans were awarded.

Promoting projects to support local products

As the first joint event of Joyo Bank and Ashikaga Bank after the establish-
ment of Mebuki Financial Group, we held Food Exhibition in Mito and Food
Business Meeting in Utsunomiya to provide support for food related busi-
ness operators from product development to sales channel development.

At Food Exhibition in Mito, about 100 food related business operators
exhibited their products to receive product assessments in an interview
format by international exchange students, Japanese students, business
people, and housewives, based on their tasting. The results of the assess-
ments were provided to exhibitors to be utilized in their product develop-
ment and test marketing.

At Food Business Meeting in Utsunomiya, we supported local food re-
lated business operators for sales channel expansion by facilitating an exhi-
bition of about 330 food related business operators where active business
negotiations were held with many buyers.

Hosting Mebuki FG Manufacturing Business Forum 2017

In February 2017, we hosted a forum for manufacturing firms for the first
time with the aim of supporting their business expansion. A total of 850
firms and about 2,000 people participated in the forum. We saw active busi-
ness discussions at the panel exhibition booths of 314 firms. In addition to
390 cases of business negotiations based on technical proposals from 255

companies, we supported the sales channel development and business ex-

pansion of local manufacturing firms by inviting exhibition of German and
Taiwanese companies and research institutes.

Hosting Mfair Bangkok 2017 and Bangkok Business Meeting

In June 2017, we co-sponsored Mfair Bangkok 2017 and held the Bangkok
Business Meeting in Thailand to support our clients’ sales channel expan-
sion outside Japan. With exhibition of about 190 firms including clients of
Joyo Bank and Ashikaga Bank, and an attendance of about 10,000 people
including those from Japanese companies in Thailand, we saw active busi-
ness negotiations between exhibitors who sought local procurement or
sales channel expansion for their products, and local companies. On the
other hand, we offered opportunities for the companies that exhibited or at-

tended to exchange information and develop corporate relationships with
both banks’ clients with operations in Thailand.

13  Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.



Financing by utilizing Mebuki Regional Revitalization Fund

L1 &2 =t == In November 2016, as a part of our regional revitalization initiatives, Joyo
y Bank and Ashikaga Bank established the Mebuki Regional Revitalization
Fund as a joint investment project with Sompo Japan Nipponkoa Insurance
Inc. We provided financial support in the amount of 1.3 billion yen through
this fund to five business operators that contribute to the promotion of the
food, agriculture and tourism sectors of the region. Furthermore, we in-
creased the total amount of the fund from the original 2.0 billion yen to 4.0
billion yen in June 2017 to strengthen support for creating new business.
We are committed to providing support to increase the volume of intra-re-
gional human exchange and expanding demand associated to inbound
tourism from a financial perspective going forward.

Establishment of Mebuki Lease Co., Ltd.

On April 3, 2017, we reorganized The Joyo Lease Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of
Joyo Bank, to be a directly-owned subsidiary and renamed it to Mebuki
Lease Co., Ltd. The leasing operations, which had formerly been conducted
by the Joyo Lease and Ashikaga Credit Guarantee, a subsidiary of Ashikaga
Bank, have been integrated to be solely conducted by Mebuki Lease.

Furthermore, we newly established business units in Utsunomiya and
Ashikaga in Tochigi Prefecture to form an organizational structure of 12 busi-
ness units in total in Ibaraki, Tochigi, Fukushima, Miyagi and Saitama Prefec-
tures, with the aim of meeting the increasingly diversified financing needs of
customers in a tailored manner.

Establishment of Mebuki Securities Co., Ltd.

On April 3, 2017, the trade name of The Joyo Securities Co., Ltd. was
changed to Mebuki Securities Co., Ltd. The number of branches of Ashikaga
Bank which provide financial product intermediary services was increased
from the previous 13 to 128 to meet increasingly diversifying investment
needs. We held investment seminars seven times in total to commemorate the
establishment of Mebuki Securities in Tochigi and Ibaraki Prefectures, which
received a good attendance.

Shareholder benefit plan

We introduced the shareholder benefit plan to
return to the shareholders the achievements of
the revitalization of the regional economy that the
Group targets. We selected local specialty prod-
ucts and tourism services as the complimentary
gifts to shareholders in order to contribute to the
growth of customers and the region. Shareholders
can select specialty products from the dedicated
catalogue mainly containing specialty products
from Ibaraki and Tochigi Prefectures, in propor-
tion to the number of shares held.

Personnel exchange

We promote personnel exchange between Joyo Bank and Ashikaga Bank for
the purpose of realizing early synergy effects, integrating corporate cultures,
promoting further mutual understanding, enhancing skills of employees, and
developing human resources knowledgeable in local conditions.

In addition to the Joint-Training held based on each managerial position in
which a total of about 500 employees from both banks participated in
FY2016, we have also launched a mutual personnel exchange program be-
tween both banks from FY2017.

Furthermore, with the aim of facilitating cooperation between branches,
we established the Mebuki Regional Collaboration Meeting in 10 areas where
both banks have overlapping business areas to actively promote co-financing
projects and introduce customers between both banks.
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Corporate Governance

Basic approach

A commitment to management characterized by responsibility, and sound, appropriate business operations will

earn greater trust for the Group from all stakeholders — customers, shareholders, local communities and employ-

ees — and boost corporate value. By following the approaches listed below, we are working to strengthen and

improve corporate governance.

- We respect shareholders’ rights and ensure equality.

- We consider the benefits of stakeholders including shareholders and cooperate appropriately with stakeholders.

- We disclose company information appropriately and ensure transparency.

- We ensure the effectiveness of transparent, fair, prompt and decisive decision-making function and supervisory
function of the Board of Directors on business operation by utilizing independent outside directors.

- We work to communicate with shareholders constructively about the continuous growth and improvement of
medium-to-long term corporate values.

The Company has adopted a company with an Audit and Supervisory Committee as a corporate governance
system, which allows us to realize prompt and decisive decision-making and business execution by entrusting
many of the decision-making authorities relevant to business execution to directors as constituent members of the
Board of Directors in which the Group’s knowledge and expertise are concentrated, while ensuring the transparent
and fair decision-making function and the solid audit and supervisory function through the appointment of multiple
outside directors.

Details of the Company’s organizations

<Board of Directors>

The Board of Directors consists of 12 directors (of which three are outside directors). It decides basic corporate
policies and important business matters and supervises the execution of duties by directors. We aim to
realize prompt and decisive decision-making and business execution by entrusting most of decision-making
authorities relevant to business execution to directors as constituent members of the Board of Directors in which
our Group’s knowledge and expertise are concentrated, while ensuring the transparent and fair decision-making
function and the solid audit and supervisory function through an appointment of multiple outside directors such
as lawyers and academic experts. The Board of Directors meets once a month in principle.

<Audit and Supervisory Committee>
The Audit and Supervisory Committee, which consists of five directors (of which three are outside directors) who
are Audit and Supervisory Committee Members, audits the execution of duties by directors and determines the
details of proposals related to the appointment, dismissal, and non-reappointment of the accounting auditors to
be submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders. The Audit and Supervisory Committee meets once a
month in principle.

<Corporate Governance Committee>
We have established the Corporate Governance Committee as an advisory body to the Board of Directors to
enhance the effectiveness of corporate governance for sustainable growth and the medium to long term
enhancement of corporate value of the Group. The Corporate Governance Committee, composed by a majority
of outside directors (including outside directors of wholly-owned banks), deliberates matters regarding nomina-
tion of director candidates and compensation for directors, and reports back to the Board of Directors.

<Decision-making bodies>
We have established the Management Meeting, the ALM/Risk Management Committee, and the Compliance
Committee as the bodies to discuss and decide important matters regarding business execution based on the
decisions made by the Board of Directors. Each decision-making body reports on the status of deliberation and
decisions on business execution to the Board of Directors under the supervision thereof.

OManagement Meeting
The Management Meeting, which consists of all executive directors, is responsible for making decisions on busi-
ness execution to the extent of the authorities delegated by the Board of Directors, as well as discussion on
important matters regarding business execution. The Management Meeting is held once a month regularly and
additionally as necessary.

OALM/Risk Management Committee
The ALM/Risk Management Committee, which consists of all executive directors, the general manager of the
Corporate Planning Division, the general manager of the Corporate Management Division and the general
manager of the Basel Unit of the Corporate Management Division, is responsible for making decisions on busi-
ness execution relevant to group risk management and ALM to the extent of the authorities delegated by the
Board of Directors and for considering and discussing important matters on business execution. The ALM/Risk
Management Committee meets once a month regularly and additionally as necessary.
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OCompliance Committee
The Compliance Committee, consisting of all executive directors, the general manager of the Corporate Plan-
ning Division, the general manager of the Corporate Management Division and the general manager of Audit
Division, is responsible for making decisions on business execution regarding compliance to the extent of the
authorities delegated by the Board of Directors, and considering and discussing important matters relevant to
practice of compliance. The Compliance Committee holds a meeting quarterly and additionally as necessary.

Status of establishment of internal control system

With the aim of continuously contributing to the sustainable growth of customers and the region through the provi-
sion of high-quality, comprehensive financial services based on the Group Philosophy, the Company has adopted
the Basic Policy on Establishment of Internal Control Systems resolved by the Board of Directors as the basic poli-
cy to establish a system to ensure that the Group performs their business operations in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations and the Articles of Incorporation under the appropriate audit and supervisory structure and to
ensure the appropriateness of such system.

(1) System for ensuring the execution of duties by directors and employees in compliance with laws and
regulations and the Articles of Incorporation

(@) The Company shall position compliance as one of the top priority issues of our Group’s management and
ensure that all directors and employees thoroughly follow the Basic Rules on Group Compliance which is
established to set forth corporate ethics, the code of conduct and policy to sever any connection with anti-
social forces as the basic policies for corporate activities.

(b) The Board of Directors shall be managed properly pursuant to Rules of the Board of Directors, decide basic
management policies, and supervise the execution of duties by directors appropriately.

(c) The Board of Directors shall establish the section in charge of management and control of the Group’s com-
pliance to organize and establish the management system for compliance. At the same time, the Board of
Directors shall establish the “Compliance Committee” and have such committee make decisions on, and
perform analysis, assessment and improvement of, important business execution regarding the compliance
of the overall Group. Furthermore, the Board of Directors shall receive periodical reporting from, and super-
vise the execution of duties performed by, such committee.

(d) The Board of Directors shall establish the reporting system which ensures the directors and employees of
the Group make reports to the Audit and Supervisory Committee or to the section in charge of the manage-
ment and control of compliance when they discover any director or employee has committed any act
against laws and regulations, any fraudulent act or any act which may fall under the foregoing. At the same
time, the Board of Directors shall establish the whistle-blowing system and the rules on disciplinary action in
order to address any act against laws and regulations or fraudulent act in a strict manner.

(e) The Board of Directors shall establish the internal audit section independent from business execution sec-
tions and have it audit the appropriateness and effectiveness of internal management including the manage-
ment system for compliance.

(2) System for storage and management of information concerning the execution of duties by directors
(@) The information concerning the execution of duties by directors shall be stored and managed as minutes
and other relevant documents of various meetings pursuant to the rules established for the appropriate stor-
age and management thereof.
(b) The Audit and Supervisory Committee or Audit and Supervisory Committee Member elected by the Audit and Su-
pervisory Committee may inspect documents concerning the execution of duties by directors, at any time.

(3) Rules and other systems for management of risk of losses

(a) The Board of Directors shall establish the rules concerning risks systematically with a primary focus on the
Basic Rules on Group Risk Management which set forth the basic policy and the management system, rele-
vant to risk management, and organize the control section responsible for risk management to appropriately
manage the risk of losses of the Group. Furthermore, the Board of Directors shall establish the business
continuity plan in preparation for the occurrence of a crisis in which the business activities, of the Group are
seriously damaged by natural disasters.

(b) Respective risks shall be comprehensively understood, managed and handled to the extent possible, and
the policy and procedures for the respective risks shall be reviewed in a timely and appropriate manner with
details of business and changes in the market environment taken into account.

(c) The Board of Directors shall appoint the risk management officer as a person responsible for the compre-
hensive management of risks affecting the Group. At the same time, the Board of Directors shall establish
the ALM/Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for decision-making on important business ex-
ecution regarding risk management, as well as for the analysis, assessment and improvement of matters rel-
evant to risk management. The Board of Directors shall have such committee understand, analyze and
assess the risk status periodically or as deemed necessary, establish the management system to enable
such committee to make necessary instructions in a timely and appropriate manner, and receive periodical
reporting from, and supervise the execution of duties performed by, such committee.
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(4) System for ensuring the effective execution of duties by directors

(a) The Board of Directors shall establish a business plan to clarify the vision and performance targets of the Group.

(b) The Board of Directors shall set forth basic matters regarding business operations including the organiza-
tional structure, division of duties and office organization of the Company to facilitate organizational, efficient
and sound business operations.

(c) The Board of Directors shall establish the Rules on Authorities which clarify responsibilities by respective exec-
utive directors and decision authorities assigned to respective duties to facilitate efficient business operations.

(d) Executive directors shall realize the appropriate and efficient execution of duties delegated by, and to the ex-
tent of authorities assigned by the Board of Directors, and report on the status of the execution of duties to
the Board of Directors periodically.

(5) System for ensuring appropriate business operations by the corporate group made up of the Company
and its subsidiaries

(System for ensuring reporting to the Company of matters relevant to the execution of duties by directors of subsidiaries)

(@) The Board of Directors shall set forth basic matters regarding the Group’s corporate management including
the matters companies within the Group should discuss with or report to the Company to ensure the sound
and appropriate business operations of the Group.

(Rules and other frameworks to control the risk of loss of subsidiaries)

(b) The Company shall, directly by itself or indirectly through directly-owned subsidiaries, have companies within
the Group organize necessary management systems including the establishment of rules responding to var-
ious existing risks taking the size, characteristics and details of the business of companies within the Group
into account, and manage risks appropriately by precisely recognizing and understanding the characteristics
of the respective risks of the Group.

(System for ensuring the effective execution of duties by directors of subsidiaries)

(c) The Company shall have respective companies within the Group, based on the details of business and size of
companies within the Group, as well as respective roles within the Group, develop a business plan which re-
flects, among other factors, the Group Philosophy and the management policy of the Group, and manage the
status of the execution thereof appropriately for the Group’s organizational and efficient business activities.

(System for ensuring the execution of duties by directors and employees of subsidiaries in compliance

with laws and regulations and the Articles of Incorporation)

(d) The Company shall, directly by itself or indirectly through directly-owned subsidiaries, have companies within
the Group establish, and manage appropriately, the management system to ensure, among other factors,
compliance, customer protection and appropriateness of intra-group transactions.

(e) The internal audit section of the Company shall, directly by itself or in cooperation with internal audit sections
of directly-owned subsidiaries, work to understand the internal audit system of the overall Group, and as-
sess the effectiveness of auditing, periodically and as necessary, to report such assessment results to the
Board of Directors and the Audit and Supervisory Committee.

(6) System for ensuring reliability of financial reporting
The Group shall ensure the reliability of financial reporting by enacting necessary rules , relevant to the design
and operations of internal control in order to establish an appropriate management framework for internal con-
trol for financial reporting.

(7) Matters concerning employees who are assigned to assist with the duties of the Audit and Supervisory Committee

The Company shall establish the Audit and Supervisory Committee Office and thereto assign one or more em-
ployees with abilities and experience sufficient to assist with the duties of the Audit and Supervisory Committee.

(8) Matters to ensure the independence of the employees referred to in the preceding item from directors
(excluding directors who are Audit and Supervisory Committee Members) and the effectiveness of
instructions given by the Audit and Supervisory Committee to such employees
(@) The Company shall ensure the independence of the employees who are assigned to assist with the duties of the

Audit and Supervisory Committee by, among other factors, requiring the consent of the Audit and Supervisory
Committee upon the transfer of said employees, and also allowing the Audit and Supervisory Committee to sub-
mit opinions regarding the performance evaluation of said employees.

(b) The employees who are assigned to assist with the duties of the Audit and Supervisory Committee shall assist
with the duties of the Audit and Supervisory Committee solely based on the instructions given by the Audit and
Supervisory Committee Members. At the same time, directors (excluding directors who are Audit and Supervisory
Committee Members) shall give due consideration to ensure that said employees will not be exposed to unfair re-
strictions in performing such duties.

(9) System concerning reporting to the Audit and Supervisory Committee including the system which ensures
that directors (excluding directors who are Audit and Supervisory Committee Members) and employees of
the Company, as well as directors, corporate auditors and employees of subsidiaries or those who
received a report from the foregoing persons make reports to the Audit and Supervisory Committee
(a) The Board of Directors shall set forth the matters which directors (excluding directors who are Audit and Supervi-

sory Committee Members) and employees of the Company, as well as directors, corporate auditors and employ-
ees of subsidiaries or those who received a report from the foregoing persons should report to the Audit and

Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.



Supervisory Committee in order to enable the Audit and Supervisory Committee to understand material matters
regarding the Group in an efficient, timely and appropriate manner.
(o) Audit and Supervisory Committee Members may, whenever deemed necessary in performing their duties, request
a report from directors (excluding directors who are Audit and Supervisory Committee Members) and employees
of the Company, as well as directors, corporate auditors and employees of subsidiaries or those who received a
report from the foregoing persons. Those who are requested to make such reports shall promptly do so as

requested.

(10) System for ensuring that those who made a report set forth in the preceding item not be treated
disadvantageously for the reason of making such a report
The Group shall not apply any disadvantageous treatment, including disciplinary action, any act of retaliation
such as discrimination or adverse effect on a performance evaluation, to those who made a report to the Audit
and Supervisory Committee for the reason of making such a report.

(11) Matters concerning the policy of handling expenses or liabilities arising in relation to the execution of
duties by Audit and Supervisory Committee Members including procedures for advance payment or

reimbursement of such expenses

The Company shall bear, upon request, all expenses arising in relation to the execution of duties by the Audit
and Supervisory Committee or Audit and Supervisory Committee Members, unless deemed unnecessary for
the execution of duties thereby, including expenses arising upon appointing as necessary, or entrusting
research or other administrative tasks to, lawyers, certified public accountants, or other external experts.

(12) Other systems for ensuring the effectiveness of audits performed by the Audit and Supervisory Committee
(a) For ensuring the effectiveness of audits performed by the Audit and Supervisory Committee, the internal audit
section shall, in cooperation with the Audit and Supervisory Committee, ensure the effectiveness of internal au-
diting performed thereby. At the same time, the internal audit section shall develop the internal audit plan based

on opinions given by the Audit and Supervisory Committee and thereto report on the results of internal auditing.
(b) The representative directors and the accounting auditors shall periodically hold opinion exchange sessions with
the Audit and Supervisory Committee, respectively.

[Corporate Governance Structure of the Group] (as of April 3, 2017)
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Initiatives for Compliance

Mebuki Financial Group

Board of Directors Audit and Supervisory Committee

Compliance Committee

Corporate Planning Division Corporate Management Division Regional Revitalization Division Audit Division

Monitor/Supervise

Consult/Report

The Joyo Bank, Ltd. The Ashikaga Bank, Ltd. Mebuki Lease Co., Ltd.

Board of Directors Audit and Supervisory Committee Board of
Directors

Corporate Auditors

Key bodies in compliance
<Joyo Bank>

Compliance Committee
<Ashikaga Bank>

Compliance Meeting Key bodies in compliance
Compliance Committee

Group company management Managing sections
<Joyo Bank> <Joyo Bank> ) )
Corporate Planning Division Corporate Risk Management Division Managing section
. : General Afairs
<Ashikaga Bank> <Ashikaga Bank> Division
Management Planning Division Compliance Management Division
Supervise
Supervise Supervise P
Head Office and branches Head Office and business units
Group companies Officer and staff in change of Officer and staff in change of
management and compliance management and compliance

The Company has established the management system aiming at group-wide comprehensive management
which enables the Group to perform business operations under the appropriate compliance framework.
We aim to enhance the compliance framework by positioning compliance as one of the most material
management tasks.

@ Organization and structure
We have established the Basic Rules on Group Compliance as the Group’s highest standards for compliance, and
thereunder, other relevant rules and regulations systematically.

The Compliance Committee established within the Company is responsible for decisions on compliance-related
important business execution of the Company and the Group, and for analysis, assessment and deliberation on
matters for improvement relevant to group-wide compliance.

Furthermore, we put compliance into practice through, among other factors, the establishment of the Legal
and Compliance of the Corporate Management Division as the managing and supervising section in charge of
group-wide compliance, the designation of the officer responsible for the Corporate Management Division, and the
assignment of compliance staff at each management organization within the Group. Important matters regarding
compliance at directly-owned subsidiaries are consulted on and reported to the Corporate Management Division,
which is responsible for the monitoring and supervision thereof, pursuant to the Rules for Management of
Companies within the Group.

@ Compliance program
The Group establishes the compliance program as the action plan to realize compliance. The companies within the
Group establish a program based on the Basic Policy on Group Compliance Program developed annually by the
Company.

The status of the compliance program performed by companies within the Group is reported to and validated
by the Compliance Committee quarterly, and is also subject to the annual overall assessment which is reflected in
the next year’s program.

19  Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.



@ Severing connections with antisocial forces

The Group has established the basic policy against antisocial forces to stand firmly against and sever any connec-
tions with antisocial forces which threaten the order and safety of civil society and hinder sound economic and
social development.

Regarding severing connections with antisocial forces

Mebuki Financial Group, Inc., and its group companies will take the following initiatives to sever all connections with
antisocial forces.

1. We will respond to antisocial forces as an organization with a strong recognition of our social responsibility.

2. We will maintain close relationships with the police, the Center for Removal of Criminal Organizations and external
expert organizations including lawyers.

3. We will sever all connections with antisocial forces, including any transactions therewith.

4. We will decisively reject any and all unreasonable demands from antisocial forces and take legal action from both
civil and criminal perspectives.

5. We will never provide any funding or benefits to antisocial forces.

Management system for customer protection (initiatives for customer protection)

The Group has established the Group Management Policy for Customer Protection to organize and ensure the
appropriate management system for customer protection from the perspective of the protection and improvement
of convenience for all existing and future customers of the Group, as well as for facilitating finance.

Joyo Bank and Ashikaga Bank have established a supervising section in charge of consultation, complaints
and other communication from customers, and have also entered into the basic contract for the implementation of
dispute resolution procedures with the Japanese Bankers Association, the designated dispute resolution organiza-
tion under the Banking Act, to utilize the financial ADR system for dispute resolution with customers through the
involvement of a third party.

Joyo Bank, which concurrently operates a trust business, has also entered into a basic contract for the
implementation of dispute resolution procedures with the Trust Companies Association of Japan, the designated
dispute resolution organization under the Trust Business Act and the Act on Engagement in Trust Business Activi-
ties by Financial Institutions.
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Risk Management System

The Group aims to enhance the risk management system by positioning it as an important management task

from the perspective of the maintenance and improvement of sound corporate management.

[l Risk management system

The Group undertakes its risk management based on the Basic Rules on Group
Risk Management determined by the Board of Directors of the Company.

In order to perform the matters set forth in the Basic Rules on Group
Risk Management, the Company has established the ALM/Risk Management
Committee, which makes decisions on important business execution regard-
ing the Group’s risk management and performs analysis, assessment and
improvement of the matters relevant to the risk management of the overall
Group. The said committee ensures corporate management emphasizing the
risk and return relationship through consideration and discussion focused on

closer coordination between risk management and profit management while
controlling risks appropriately, and facilitates prompt and efficient
decision-making by management.

Furthermore, we have organized the integrated risk management section
responsible for the supervision and integrated management of various risks,
and at the same time, established the framework under which the audit sec-
tion independent from business execution sections performs internal auditing
and validates the appropriateness and effectiveness of the respective risk
management status.

Mebuki Financial Group
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and effectiveness of

risk management system

Coaoorate Management Division/
orporate Planning Division

Instruct (establishment of risk management system)

Report/Consult (risk status, response policies)

The Joyo Bank, Ltd. The Ashikaga Bank, Ltd.

Important meeting bodies for risk management

<Joyo Bank> <Ashikaga Bank>

(1) ALM Committee (1) Management Meeting

(2) Risk Management  (2) ALM Meeting
Committee (3) Credit Portfolio Meeting

Board of Directors

Audit and Supervisory Committee

Integrated risk management section
(Risk Management Division)

Mebuki Lease Co., Ltd.

Board of
Directors

Integrated risk
management section

Type of risk

Strategic Risk Credit Risk Market Risk

Liquidity Risk

Sections in charge of respective risk categories
I
Branches, head offices and group companies

Type of risk

Strategic Risk, Credit Risk,
Market Risk, Liquidity Risk,
Operational Risk

Sections in charge of respective risk categories

Audit

Operational Risk

Internal audit section

J Integrated risk management

The Group undertakes “integrated risk management” which quantitatively
measures various types of risk including credit risk and market risk, using
statistical methods, such as VaR (value at risk), in order to individually man-
age increasingly diversified and complicated types of risk relevant to financial
services, and at the same time, to comprehensively capture said risks. We
aim at maintaining an appropriate level of our capital reserves by comparing
and contrasting the total amount of risk with our financial soundness (our
capital reserves).

Specifically, we allocate capital to each type of risk (credit risk, interest
rate risk, price fluctuation risk and operational risk) in advance to the extent
of our capital reserves and monitor whether the amount of each risk quanti-
fied (risk capital used) stays within the extent of allocated capital. Upon the
allocation of capital, we secure a risk buffer to cover losses larger than those
expected in the statistical methods or risks unable to be captured by the sta-
tistical methods. We confirm the sufficiency of our capital reserves, including
the capital to cover the aforementioned risks, by performing stress tests by
which we capture the impact on our capital reserves under assumed scenari-
0s such as a sudden economic downturn. Furthermore, we confirm the rea-
sonableness and effectiveness of the statistical methods through back tests
in which the risk amount calculated by VaR (value at risk) is compared with
actual profit or loss.

Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.

[ Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk of incurring losses as a result of customers be-
coming unable to pay the principal and interest of loans as promised primari-
ly due to the deterioration of their financial conditions.

Recognizing credit risk as a material risk in our business operations, the
Group aims to enhance the management system to prevent the emergence
of new non-performing loans and to improve asset soundness.

o Credit risk management system

The Group has established the Group Guidelines for Credit Risk Management,
which set forth, as our basic policy of credit risk management, the appropri-
ate management of credit risk on individual loans and the management of
the credit portfolio focusing on risk diversification.

The section in charge of credit risk management, which is organization-
ally and functionally independent from the business promotion sections, is
responsible for the planning and operational management of the internal
credit rating system, self-assessment systems, write-offs and provisions to
the reserve for loan losses, as well as for the monitoring of loan assets as the
specialized organization for the comprehensive supervision and management
of the credit portfolio.
® Management of credit risk on individual loans
We separate the credit-screening sections of companies within the Group
from the business promotion sections to ensure strict screening while also



focusing on credit management during repayment to prevent the status of a
claim from deteriorating.

o |nternal credit ratings

We categorize our customers into 12-grade rating levels by adding qualitative
assessment to the data on their financial condition and cash flow status. In
addition to serving as the basis for self-assessment systems, internal credit
ratings are used across the full range of credit risk management, including
the capturing of credit risk exposure, the setting of lending rates and the allo-
cation of lending authority.

o Self-assessment systems

Companies within the Group strictly implement self-assessment systems
based on common standards and provide appropriate reserves or write down
problem loans based on such assessment. In addition, the reasonableness of
such assessment is validated and audited by the sections in charge of valida-
tion and auditing, respectively, and is also subject to external audits by ac-
counting auditors.

o Quantification of credit risk

The quantification of credit risk refers to the statistical forecasting of future
losses (amount of credit risk) that can be expected due to bankruptcies or the
deterioration of financial conditions of customers. The Group calculates the
amount of credit risk for each customer based on “internal credit ratings”
with collateral and other factors taken into account.

o Credit portfolio management

We capture loan assets in their entirety as a single portfolio and conduct
credit risk management from a macro perspective. Based on the quantifica-
tion of credit risk, we carry out periodic monitoring such as whether the cred-
it risk is concentrated in specific sectors or corporate groups, and analysis
and evaluation of credit situations by rating and region, or based on compo-
sition by industry.

l Market risk management

Market risk refers to the risk of incurring losses due to changes in the value
of financial assets and liabilities of the Group caused by fluctuation in interest
rates, foreign exchange rates, and stock prices.

Our subsidiaries are engaged in investment activities based on their
understanding of risk supported by sufficient advance research and analysis
of market transactions.

For the appropriate control of market risk, we also perform and report to the
ALM/Risk Management Committee of the Company held periodically the quanti-
tative management and measurement under the ALM (asset and liability man-
agement) framework to take action according to the situation.

[ Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk refers to the risk of incurring losses primarily due to difficulty in
securing necessary funds caused by an unexpected outflow of funds or
similar events, or a sharp rise in funding costs.

The Group has established the Group Liquidity Risk Management Rules
to set up the framework under which action plans according to respective
situations ranging from a normal state to urgent cases are defined to prompt-
ly respond thereto.

Specifically, under cash flow management in a normal situation, we
manage indicators such as the trend of deposit/loan balances and funding
limits in addition to primary indicators (funding gap and liquid asset balance)
to avoid an increase of liquidity risk. Furthermore, we define and perform
periodical drills for action plans upon a liquidity crisis to enhance the
effectiveness in a crisis.

Jl Operational risk management

Operational risk refers to the risk of incurring losses caused by inappropriate-
ness in the Group’s business processes, activities of directors and employees
or system operations, or by external events. The Group classifies and manag-
es such risk according to the following six categories: administrative risk,
system risk, compliance (legal) risk, personnel management risk, tangible
asset risk, and reputational risk.

Furthermore, the Group designates the sections responsible for each of
the aforementioned six categories, and also has the comprehensive risk
management section manage overall operational risk.

o Administrative risk

Administrative risk refers to the risk of incurring losses due to directors, em-
ployees or external contractors neglecting precise administration, causing in-
cidents, or committing acts of fraud.

In the Group, the sections responsible for administrative risk and the
comprehensive risk management section responsible for operational risk
gather information on and analyze the causes of administrative incidents
occurring inside or outside the Group to establish or revise administrative
rules or enhance the efficiency of administrative processes through the infor-
mation system based on the results of such analysis. In addition, the Group
has the internal audit section validate the effectiveness of the risk manage-
ment system to establish the framework to detect or prevent administrative
incidents.
® System risk
System risk is the risk of incurring losses primarily due to the failure of
computer systems, erroneous computer operation, or inappropriate computer
use.

The Group has taken necessary measures to ensure the safety and reli-
ability of computer systems including failure response exercises aiming to
establish the framework for early recovery from system failure, in addition to
sufficient advance testing upon the development or operation of systems, the
continuous monitoring of operational status and duplexing facilities.

e Compliance (legal) risk, personnel management risk, tangible asset risk

and reputational risk

We also identify and assess risk through methods in line with risk character-
istics and take appropriate actions for: compliance (legal) risk, the risk of in-
curring losses mainly due to an illegal act committed by directors and
employees; personnel management risk, the risk of incurring losses mainly
due to an act in violation of laws, regulations or agreements relevant to em-
ployment, health or safety; tangible asset risk, the risk of incurring losses due
to damage to tangible assets caused by disasters or defective management
of buildings; and reputational risk, the risk of incurring losses due to the de-
terioration of credit worthiness mainly attributable to reputational damage
caused by inappropriate actions taken by the Group or the circulation of
unfounded rumors.

I Crisis management and business continuity management

We have established the framework for the continuity or early recovery of im-
portant business operations including the repayment of deposits, fund trans-
fer and remittance upon facing a crisis such as a natural disaster, system
failure or pandemic, as well as limiting human and physical damage to the
minimum extent possible.

Upon the occurrence of a crisis, we will establish emergency response
headquarters at the Company and directly-owned subsidiaries to respond
to such emergencies in cooperation with each other. Furthermore, we con-
tinuously perform crisis management exercises and review the business
continuity plan to enhance the effectiveness thereof upon facing a crisis.
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Financial Data

Consolidated Balance Sheet

March 31,2017 Mebuki Financial Group, Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
Millions of Yen (Note 1)
2017 2016 2017
ASSETS
Cash and due from banks (Notes 3, 10, @and 22)........cccccevviveiieiieiinieiinineseneas ¥ 1,393,762 ¥ 437,509 $ 12,423,232
Call loans and bills bought (Note 22) 5,160 414 46,000
Monetary claims bought (Note 22) ..... 15,952 7,627 142,196
Trading assets (Notes 4 and 22) ..........cccccevvriiivcnnnnn. 7,226 — 64,413
Trading account securities (Notes 4 and 22)...........c.c....... —_ 3,569 —_
Securities (Notes 4, 10, and 22) .........ccccovviviiiiicnnnnn, 4,190,681 1,296,769 37,353,432
Loans and bills discounted (Notes 6, 10, 22, and 26) 10,244,730 4,235174 91,315,896
Foreign exchanges (NOE ) ........vvviriiiiiiieiiisee e 7,222 4,377 64,381
Lease receivables and investments in lease (Note 21) 48,366 — 431,113
Other assets (NOteS 10 aNd 23) .....c.vveiriiiieceiee s 120,249 34,277 1,071,839
Tangible fixed aSSELS (NOTE 7)....c.veviveveieiecee e 117,732 24,424 1,049,402
Intangible fixed assets (Note 8)............. 12,414 78,601 110,654
Asset for retirement benefits (Note 13).. 12,275 10,466 109,421
Deferred tax aSSets (NOE 20) .....ovoveiiiiiiiieieieeeee s 1,609 584 14,348
Customers’ liabilities for acceptances and guarantees (NOte 9)........ccccvviiviiiinnn. 25,916 12,913 231,001
AlIOWANCE TOr 10BN T0SSES ..vvvvvviviiiiiiieieeee st (78,840) (40,679) (702,740)
Allowance for INVESTMENT I0SSES .......cviviviiiriiiiieir e 9) — (80)
TOTAL oottt ¥16,124,452 ¥6,106,037 $143,724,509
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES:
DepOSIts (NOTES 10 @NT 22) .....vviviririiiiiiiiie et ¥13,507,047 ¥5,206,700 $120,394,402
Negotiable certificates of deposit (Note 22) 284,705 174,878 2,537,706
Call money and bills SOId (NOTE 22) .......oviviviiiiiiiiiieieee s 303,312 78,000 2,703,564
Payables under securities lending transactions (Notes 10 and 22) .........ccccocevvvvevnnas 167,640 25,263 1,494,252
Trading ADIHIES....v.vevevvveeeiee s 511 — 4,560
Borrowed money (Notes 10, 11, aNd 22).......cvcviiiiiiiiiiciccceeee s 735,593 251,726 6,556,676
FOrIgN BXCNANGES. ....v.v vt 757 282 6,753
Bonds (Note 12) .....ccoveveveveieiins 5,000 — 44,567
Bonds with warrants (Note 12)....... 33,657 — 300,000
Due to trust account ... 13 — 118
Other liabilities ........c.cccovvviereninnn 140,446 46,266 1,251,860
Provision for directors’ bonuses 11 57 992
Liability for retirement benefits (Note 13).......cccovvervevinenn. 8,896 — 79,298
Provision for directors’ retirement benefits........................ 51 311 462
Provision for reimbursement of deposits...........c..cccovve.. 3,480 858 31,026
Provision for CONtINGENT I0SSES.......evviriiiiiiiieieee s 1,548 464 13,803
Provision for point card CErtifiCates ..........ccuiiviiiiiiciccec s 294 134 2,629
Provision for losses on interest repayments 12 — 110
Reserves under special [aws.............ccccoeviviiriiiiiiiiienan, 2 — 18
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 20) 31,410 5,074 279,977
Deferred tax liabilities for land revaluation ........................ 9,454 — 84,274
Negative goodWill...........coovvviiiiiniiiii s 1,501 — 13,382
Acceptances and guarantees (NOtE 9)......cvcvivviviiiiiiecccc e 25,916 12,913 231,001
TOtal TIADIHIES ... 15,261,366 5,802,932 136,031,431
EQUITY (Notes 14 and 15):
COMMON SEOCK ...ttt a e ans 117,495 117,495 1,047,291
Capital Surplus .......coveveviniriinnas 148,490 29,025 1,323,564
Stock acquisition rights 193 — 1,724
Retained eamnings............ccccccvunes 461,631 113,594 4,114,729
TIBASUNY STOCK. ...ttt bbb (6) — (62)
Accumulated other comprehensive income:
Unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities (NOtE 5) .....c.oovvvvveiiiviiiiiriinanan 128,545 48,527 1,145,784
Deferred losses on derivatives under hedge accounting (Note 23)..........ccccveveann. (674) (3,951) (6,008)
Land revaluation SUrPIUS (NOTE 7) ....vevvrvviiieiiiceeecse e 12,844 — 114,488
Defined retirement benefit plans (NOte 13) ......cvveviiiiciicc e (5,433) (1,585) (48,431)
Total accumulated other comprenensive iNCOME ...........cccvvveiiniieiiniicierna, 135,282 42,990 1,205,333
Total equity 863,086 303,105 7,693,078
TOTAL ettt ettt et ¥16,124,452 ¥6,106,037 $143,724,509

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Income

Year Ended March 31,2017  Mebuki Financial Group, Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
Millions of Yen (Note 1)
2017 2016 2017
INCOME:
Interest income:
Interest on 10ans and diSCOUNTS ..........coveviiieriiieieec e ¥ 89,325 ¥55,936 $ 796,199
Interest and dividends on securities 35,186 16,958 313,633
Interest on call loans and Bills DOUGNT .........ovciviieiiicicc e 66 393 591
Interest on deposits with banks 502 404 4,481
Other interest income .................. 419 114 3,743
TruSt fe€S...cviveviiiiiiiciciens 22 — 204
Fees and commissions................. 36,245 22,138 323,072
Trading iNCOME ......ccovveviiierinnn, 2,241 — 19,980
Other operating income................. 12,964 1,692 115,555
Gain on negative goOoWIll............c.coiiiiiiiecce e 119,219 — 1,062,657
Other INCOME (NOTE T7) ... 36,316 4,838 323,702
TOtAl INCOME ...t 332,510 102,474 2,963,818
EXPENSES:
Interest expenses:
[NTErESt ON UEPOSIES ...vivviveiii it 2,572 2,079 22,932
Interest on negotiable certificates of deposit 48 212 430
Interest on call money and billS SOIT ..o 595 8 5,305
Interest on payables under securities lending transactions ............ccococvvvvveiinirannn. 1,198 211 10,686
Interest on borrowing and rediscounts 1,101 1,537 9,819
Interest 0N DONAS.........c.cvveiviiviiiiiicc e 233 — 2,082
Other INTEIESt BXPENSES ....vvivvviriieiiit ettt 4,537 783 40,443
FEESs and COMMISSIONS. .......cvviviriririiit ettt 10,036 6,198 89,456
Other operating eXpPENSES..........ccciiiiiiieieieisnerernans 7,017 192 62,548
General and administrative expenses (Note 18) 98,088 55,471 874,308
Provision of allowance for 10an 10SSeS ...........cccecvvervevinnn. 6,277 2,013 55,957
Other expenses (NOte 19).....cvvveiiiciccees s 31,407 3,595 279,952
Total BXPENSES ...vevvevivirevierece e 163,115 72,304 1,453,919
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES .....cooviviiiiiieietee e 169,395 30,170 1,509,899
INCOME TAXES (Note 20)
CUITBIE L.ttt ettt 16,380 5,805 150,460
Deferred (5,968) 1,912 (53,199)
TOtAl INCOME TAXES ...ttt 10,911 7,717 97,261
NETINCOME ..ottt ¥158,483 ¥22,452 $1,412,638
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS... 28 — 252
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT ......cccovvvviiiiiiiicicvereieieiea ¥158,455 ¥22,452 $1,412,386
Yen U.S. Dollars
PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK (Note 16):
Basic net income........ ¥ 156.78 ¥67.37 $1.40
Diluted net income 156.72 — 1.40
Cash dividends applicable to the year (Note 14) 12.00 10.00 0.1

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year Ended March 31,2017 Mebuki Financial Group, Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
Millions of Yen (Note 1)
2017 2016 2017

NET INCOME ¥158,483 ¥22,452 $1,412,638
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Note 24):

Unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale SECUMtIES ........covvevierveiiiiviiiicanns (6,507) 3,822 (58,006)

Deferred gains (losses) on derivatives under hedge accounting.............coveervevrenean. 2,399 (3,301) 21,384

Defined retirement DENEFIt PIANS .....o.vvviiii s 5,233 (3,658) 46,653

Total other comprenensive INCOME (I0SS) ... v.vovvrvevireieiiieiii e 1,125 (3,136) 10,031
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ¥159,609 ¥19,315 $1,442,669
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO:

OWNErS Of the PATBNT ......cviviiiiici s ¥159,581 ¥19,315 $1,442,423

NONCONEIOIING INTEIESTS. ...c.vivvivecicic s 27 — 247

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year Ended March 31,2017 Mebuki Financial Group, Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Millions of Yen

Accumulated other
comprehensive income

Unrealized Deferred
Gains on Losses on Defined
Common Available- Derivatives Retirement
Stock Capital Retained for-Sale under Hedge Benefit Total
(Note 14) Surplus Earnings Securities Accounting Plans Equity
BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2015, ¥117,495 ¥29,025 ¥ 94,474 ¥44704 ¥ (650) ¥2,072  ¥287,121
Cash AIVIBNGS «...vvvvevvveeeeeeeeceeessesereeonns (3,332) (3,332)
Net income attributable to owners of
22,452 22,452
Net changes except for stockholders
equity during the fiscal year..................... 3,822 (3,301) (3,658) (3,136)
Total changes during the fiscal year ................ — — 19,120 3,822 (3,301) (3,658) 15,983
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2016.......ccovverirrrnnn ¥117,495 ¥29,025  ¥113,594 ¥48,527 ¥(3,951) ¥(1,585)  ¥303,105
Millions of Yen
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
Unrealized  Deferred Gains
Gains (Losses)  (Losses) on
Common Stock on Available-  Derivatives Land Defined
Stock Capital Acquisition  Retained Treasury for-Sale  underHedge Revaluation Retirement Noncontrolling Total
(Note 14) Surplus Rights Earnings Stock Securities  Accounting Surplus  Benefit Plans Total Interests Equity
BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2016........cocvvrirrrann. ¥ 85113 ¥ 58,574 ¥132  ¥333,964  ¥(21,569) ¥135,031 ¥(3,073)  ¥13,002 ¥(10,667) ¥134,293 ¥1,562  ¥592,070
Increase due to share exchange ... 32,382 90,616 122,998
Cash dividends . (1,832) (9,397) (11,230
Net income attributable to owners of
PATENT oo 158,455 158,455
Purchase of treasury stock... (11) (11)
Disposal of treasury stock ... . 1 ) 25 25
Retirement of treasury stock................ (21,548) 21,548 —
Changes due to acquiring equity of
consolidated subsidiaries.... . 1,131 1,131
Reversal of land revaluation surplus..... 158 158
Net changes during the fiscal year....... 61 (6,485) 2,399 (158) 5,233 988 (1,562 (512
Total changes during the fiscal year-......... 32,382 89,916 61 127,666 21,562 (6,485) 2,399 (158) 5,233 988 (1,562) 271,016
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2017 ....coovvivines ¥117,495 ¥148,490 ¥193 ¥461,631 ¥ (6) ¥128,545 ¥ (674) ¥12,844 ¥ (5433) ¥135,282 —  ¥863,086
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
Unrealized  Deferred Gains
Gains (Losses)  (Losses) on
Common Stock on Available-  Derivatives Land Defined
Stock Capital Acquisition  Retained Treasury for-Sale  underHedge Revaluation Retirement Noncontroling ~ Total
(Note 14) Surplus Rights Earnings Stock Securities  Accounting Surplus  Benefit Plans Total Interests Equity
BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2016 .. $ 758,651 § 522,097 $1,180 $2,976,776  $(192,259) $1,203,596  $(27,392) $115901  $(95,084) $1,197,020  $13,924 $5,277,389
Increase due to share exchange.......... 288,640 807,704 1,096,344
Cash dividends..........c..ccvevvevnirenins (16,337) (83,765) (100,102)
Net income attributable to owners of
parent 1,412,386 1,412,386
Purchase of treasury stock (102) (102)
Disposal of treasury stock ... 12 [t5)] 226 230
Retirement of treasury stock. (192,073) 192,073 —
Changes due to acquiring equity of
consolidated subsidiaries................... 10,088 10,088
Reversal of land revaluation surplus..... 1,413 1,413
Net changes during the fiscal year....... 544 (57,812) 21,384 (1,413) 46,653 8,812 (13,924) (4,567)
Total changes during the fiscal year ......... 288,640 801,467 544 1,137,952 192,197 (57,812) 21,384 (1,413) 46,653 8,812 (13,924) 2,415,690
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2017 ... $1,047,291 $1,323,564 $1,724 $4,114,729 $ (62) $1,145,784 $ (6,008) $114,488  $(48,431) $1,205,833 — $7,693,078

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended March 31,2017 Mebuki Financial Group, Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
Millions of Yen (Note 1)
2017 2016 2017
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Income before income taxes ¥ 169,395 ¥ 30,170 $ 1,509,899
Adjustments for:
INCOME TAXES PAIG. ... vttt (16,614) (12,405) (148,089)
Depreciation and amortization 7,327 3,495 65,311
Impairment loss...... 1,463 50 13,046
Amortization of goodwill . —_ 6,202 —_
Gain on negative goodwill... (119,219) — (1,062,657)
Loss on step acquisition......... 184 s 1,642
Amortization of negative goodwill... (158) — (1,409)
Decrease in allowance for loan losses.... (400) (3,222) (3,574)
Increase in provision for directors” bonuses... 44 3 393
Increase in asset for retirement benefits.... (1,323) (1,893) (11,794)
Increase in liabilities for retirement benefits... 8,764 — 78,121
Increase in provision for directors’ retirement benefits... 13 48 119
Increase in provision for reimbursement of deposits.. 317 55 2,826
Decrease in provision for contingent 10sses ........... (18) (31) (166)
Increase in provision for point card certificates .. 38 19 347
Decrease in provision for interest repayments . (2) — (22)
Gain on fund management..............c..o..... . (131,337) (73,805) (1,170,667)
Financing expenses ........... 10,305 4,832 91,855
Gains related to securities (4,941) (1,212) (44,043)
Foreign exchange losses (gains) (12,902) 7,905 (115,009)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 431 108 3,848
L0SS 0N reduCtion Of fIXEA @SSELS .........vvuiviiiiicieic e —_ 26 —_
Net decrease i trading @SSELS. ... ..cvvrvririirieieeeieie e 1,225 — 10,924
Net decrease in trading aDIlIIES ..........coiiiiiii (383) — (3,422)
Net increase in 10ans and Dills AISCOUNTEA ... (153,758) (84,707) (1,370,518)
NEt INCrEASE IN TEPOSIES ......vviviiieit ettt 270,177 135,589 2,408,210
Net increase (decrease) in negotiable certificates of deposit 37,290 (22,500) 332,384
Net increase in borrowed money (excluding subordinated BOrrOWINGS) ..........covvvveiiiiniiiiiicin, 272,353 29,180 2,427,611
Net decrease in deposit (excluding deposit paid to Bank of Japan) ..., — 251 —
Net decrease in deposit (excluding cash eqUIVAIENTS) .............ccccviviririiiieiieecee e 57,258 — 510,368
Net decrease (iNCrease) in Call I0ANS ...........cvcviviviviviiiiiiece s (1,499) 1,569 (13,362)
Net decrease in trading aCCOUNT SECUMHIES ........vvvviviieiiiiieisiecee e — 607 —
Net increase in call money 35,956 78,000 320,495
Net increase in payables under securities lending tranSactions .............covevvieviiiiiiie e 15,881 22,789 141,557
Net decrease in foreign exChanges = @SSETS ........cvviiiiiiii e 1,256 1,460 11,198
Net decrease in foreign exchanges - TADITIES ..........covviiiiiii e (409) (83) (3,647)
Net increase in lease receivables and inVESIMENtS IN 1BASE.............vevviiriiiieeee e (5,135) — (45,776)
Net decrease in due t0 trUST ACCOUNT. .......c.vuviiviiiiiiiice e (0) — (0)
Proceeds from fund Man@gemMENT............cvceiiiiiiiiieiiceee e 129,285 73,908 1,152,381
PayMENtS fOr fINANCE .........ovivieieiic e (8,791) (7,692 (78,364)
OTNBINEL ..ot (62,863) 9,273) (560,328)
TOtAl AAJUSTMENTS ...t 329,815 149,277 2,939,790
Net cash provided by 0perating aCtVIIES ...........coveiiriiiiiiice ¥ 499,210 ¥ 179,447 $ 4,449,689
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Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
Millions of Yen (Note 1)
2017 2016 2017
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of securities ¥(1,405,130) ¥(330,762) $(12,524,558)
Proceeds from sales of securities .. 1,017,603 85,566 9,070,359
Proceeds from redemption of securities 271,065 154,466 2,416,128
Purchases of tangible fixed assets (4,973) (2,093) (44,331)
Proceeds from sales of tangible fixed assets 167 0 1,491
Purchases of intangible fixed assets (3,348) (760) (29,848)
Other-net (94) (71) (841)
Net cash provided by investing activities (124,710) (93,654) (1,111,600)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayments of subordinated borrowings —_ (10,000) —_
Redemption of subordinated bonds... (10,000) — (89,135)
Purchase of treasury stocks ............. (11) — (102)
Proceeds from sales of treasury stocks 3 — 27
Cash dividends paid (11,230) (3,332 (100,102)
Dividends paid to noncontrolling interests (1) — 9)
Payments from changes in ownership interests that do not result in change in scope of consolidation....... (453) — (4,045)
Net cash provided by finanCing CHVILIES .........c.cviviviiiiiiiiic e (21,693) (13,332 (193,365)
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS .......c.voeviviiiieeienceena 29 1) 266
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ......coovoviiiiiererias 352,836 72,438 3,144,990
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR...........cccvvvnee 396,713 363,712 3,536,090
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS DUE TO SHARE EXCHANGE ... 620,343 — 5,529,399
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR (NOtE 3)......cvvvireirieriireiesieieieeieise s ¥1,369,893 ¥436,150 $12,210,479
NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITY:
Increase in assets and liabilities due to share exchange when it was decided that The Joyo Bank, Ltd.
would be the acquiring company and Mebuki Financial Group, Inc. would be the acquired company
(Note 27)
¥6,207,461 ¥— $55,329,902
Of which, loans and bills discounted... 4,221,375 — 37,627,018
OF WHICH, SECUMHES ...ttt 1,314,586 — 11,717,500
Of which, allowance fOr 10aN I0SSES ..........ceviviviiiiiiiisieicisieiss e (38,581) — (343,897)
TOUAI TADITIES: v 5,964,697 — 53,166,033
OF WHICN, GBPOSIES ... s 5,148,407 — 45,890,077

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Year Ended March 31,2017 Mebuki Financial Group, Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of Mebuki Financial Group,
Inc. (the “Company”) and its consolidated subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
have been prepared in accordance with the provisions set forth in the Japanese
Financial Instruments and Exchange Act and its related accounting regulations, in
accordance with the Enforcement Regulation for the Banking Act and in accor-
dance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan (*Japanese
GAAP”), which are different in certain respects as to the application and disclo-
sure requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, certain reclassifica-
tions and rearrangements have been made to the consolidated financial state-
ments issued domestically in order to present them in a form which is more
familiar to readers outside Japan.

The consolidated financial statements are stated in Japanese yen, the cur-
rency of the country in which the Company is incorporated and operates. The
translations of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts are included sole-
ly for the convenience of readers outside Japan and have been made at the rate
of ¥112.19 1o $1, the approximate rate of exchange at March 31, 2017. Such
translations should not be construed as representations that the Japanese yen
amounts could be converted into U.S. dollars at that or any other rate.

The Company conducted a share exchange on October 1, 2016, under
which the Company (formerly Ashikaga Holdings, Co., Ltd. (“AHD")) became the
wholly-owing parent company and The Joyo Bank, Ltd. (“Joyo”) became the
wholly-owned subsidiary. Based on the Accounting Standard for Business Com-
binations, this share exchange is a reverse acquisition wherein AHD is consid-
ered to be the acquired company and Joyo to be the acquiring company. As a
result, the consolidated assets and liabilities of AHD were transferred to the con-
solidated balance sheet of Joyo at their fair value. Additionally, the consolidated
statement of income for the year ended March 31, 2017, includes those of Joyo
for the period from April 1, 2016, to September 30, 2016, and those of the
Company for the period from October 1, 2016, to March 31, 2017. Therefore,
there is no continuity from the consolidated financial statements of the Company
for the prior fiscal year to the consolidated financial statements of the Company
for the current fiscal year.

As comparative information, the Company presented consolidated financial
statements and accompanying notes of the former AHD as comparative informa-
tion in the consolidated financial statements for this fiscal year.

Furthermore, there is no continuity of cash and cash equivalents in the con-
solidated statement of cash flows from the end of the prior fiscal year to the be-
ginning of the current fiscal year.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a. Consolidation — The consolidated financial statements as of March 31,
2017, include the accounts of the Company and its 14 (four in 2016) significant
subsidiaries.

Under the control and influence concepts, those companies in which the
Company, directly or indirectly, is able to exercise control over operations are ful-
ly consolidated.

All consolidated subsidiaries have a fiscal year ending on March 31, which
is the same as the fiscal year of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements as of March 31, 2017 do not include
the accounts of two subsidiaries (one in 2016) because the total assets, total in-
come, net income, and retained earnings of the entity would not have had a ma-
terial effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies were
stated at cost. If the equity method of accounting had been applied to the invest-
ments in these companies, the effect on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements would not be material.

All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated
in consolidation. All material unrealized profit included in assets resulting from
transactions within the Group is also eliminated.
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Negative goodwill represents the difference between the cost of an acquisi-
tion and the fair value of the net assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of
acquisition. Negative goodwill incurred before March 31, 2010, is amortized us-
ing the straight-line method over 20 years.

b. Business Combinations — Business combinations are accounted for using
the purchase method. Acquisition-related costs, such as advisory fees or profes-
sional fees, are accounted for as expenses in the periods in which the costs are
incurred. If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the
end of the reporting period in which the business combination occurs, an acquir-
er shall report in its financial statements provisional amounts for the items for
which the accounting is incomplete. During the measurement period, which shall
not exceed one year from the acquisition, the acquirer shall retrospectively adjust
the provisional amounts recognized at the acquisition date to reflect new infor-
mation obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition
date and that would have affected the measurement of the amounts recognized
as of that date. Such adjustments shall be recognized as if the accounting for the
business combination had been completed at the acquisition date. The acquirer
recognizes any bargain purchase gain in profit or loss immediately on the acqui-
sition date after reassessing and confirming that all of the assets acquired and all
of the liabilities assumed have been identified after a review of the procedures
used in the purchase price allocation. A parent’s ownership interest in a subsidi-
ary might change if the parent purchases or sells ownership interests in its sub-
sidiary. The carrying amount of noncontrolling interest is adjusted to reflect the
change in the parent’s ownership interest in its subsidiary while the parent re-
tains its controlling interest in its subsidiary. Any difference between the fair val-
ue of the consideration received or paid and the amount by which the
noncontrolling interest is adjusted is accounted for as capital surplus as long as
the parent retains control over its subsidiary.

The Company conducted a share exchange on October 1, 2016, under
which the Company (formerly AHD) became the wholly-owing parent company
and Joyo became the wholly-owned subsidiary and accounted for this share ex-
change by the purchase method of accounting (see Note 27).

¢. Trading Assets and Trading Liabilities — Transactions for “trading purpos-
es” (seeking to capture gains arising from short-term changes in interest rates,
currency exchange rates or market prices of securities and other market-related
indices or from arbitrage between markets) are valued at market or fair value,
and have been included in trading assets and trading liabilities on a trade date
basis. Gain or loss on such trading transactions are reflected as trading income
or trading expenses in the consolidated statement of income.

Among the trading assets and liabilities, securities and monetary claims are
carried at market value as of the balance sheet date. Derivatives including
swaps, futures, and options are valued assuming settlement on the balance
sheet date.

Trading income or trading expenses include interest received or paid during
the fiscal year. The year-on-year valuation differences of securities and monetary
claims are also recorded in the above-mentioned accounts. As for the deriva-
tives, assuming that the settlement will be made in cash, the year-on-year valua-
tion differences are also recorded in the above-mentioned accounts.

d. Securities — Securities are classified and accounted for, depending on man-
agement’s intent, as follows:
(1) held-to-maturity debt securities, which are expected to be held -to- matu-
rity with the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity, are stated at amor-
tized cost using the straight-line method.
(2) investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries that are not accounted for by the
equity method are stated at cost determined by the moving-average method.
(3) available-for-sale securities are stated at fair value with unrealized gains
and losses, net of applicable taxes, reported in a separate component of equi-
ty. Securities whose fair values cannot be reliably determined are stated at
cost determined by the moving-average cost method.



For other-than-temporary declines in fair value, securities are reduced to
net realizable value by a charge to income.

e. Tangible Fixed Assets — Tangible fixed assets (except for leased assets) are
stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation of tangible fixed as-
sets owned by the consolidated banking subsidiaries is computed by the straight-
line method.

The range of useful lives is from 3 to 50 years for buildings and from 3 to
20 years for other tangible fixed assets.

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets owned by the other subsidiaries is
mainly computed by the declining-balance method in estimated useful lives.

Depreciation of leased assets from finance lease transactions that do not
deem to transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee is computed us-
ing the straight-line method over the respective lease periods. The residual value
of leased assets is determined using the guaranteed residual value indicated on
the lease contracts where provided; otherwise, they have a nil residual value.

f. Intangible Fixed Assets — Amortization of intangible fixed assets is comput-
ed by the straight-line method. The cost of computer software obtained for inter-
nal use is amortized principally using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of mainly five years.

g. Long-Lived Assets — The Group reviews its long-lived assets for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an
asset or asset group may not be recoverable. An impairment 10ss is recognized if
the carrying amount of an asset or asset group exceeds the sum of the undis-
counted future cash flows expected to result from the continued use and eventu-
al disposition of the asset or asset group. The impairment loss would be
measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of the discounted cash flows from the
continued use and eventual disposition of the asset or the net selling price at dis-
position.

h. Allowance for Loan Losses — The consolidated banking subsidiaries have
provided an allowance for loan losses, which is determined based on manage-
ment’s judgment and assessment of future losses based on their self-assessment
systems. These systems reflect past experience of credit losses; possible credit
losses; business and economic conditions; the character, quality, and performance
of the portfolio; value of collateral or guarantees; and other pertinent indicators.

The consolidated banking subsidiaries have implemented self-assessment
systems to determine their asset quality. The quality of all loans is assessed by
the branches and the related head office divisions with a subsequent audit by the
Internal Audit division, which is independent from these divisions in accordance
with the consolidated banking subsidiaries’ policy and guidelines for the self-as-
sessment of asset quality.

The consolidated banking subsidiaries have established credit rating sys-
tems under which their customers are classified into five categories. The credit
rating systems are used in the self-assessment of asset quality. All loans are
classified into five categories for self-assessment purposes: “normal,” “in need
of caution,” “possible bankruptcy,” “virtual bankruptcy,” and “legal bankruptcy.”

For claims on borrowers that have entered into bankruptcy, special liquida-
tion proceedings, or similar legal proceedings (“legal bankruptcy”), or borrowers
that are not legally or formally insolvent but are regarded as substantially in the
same situation (“virtual bankruptcy”), an allowance is provided based on the
amount of claims, after the write-offs as stated below, net of the expected
amount of recoveries from collateral and guarantees.

For claims on borrowers that are not currently bankrupt but are likely to be-
come bankrupt in the future (“possible bankruptcy”), an allowance is provided in
the amount deemed necessary based on an overall solvency assessment of the
claims, net of the expected amount of recoveries from collateral and guarantees.

For claims on borrowers whose loans are classified as “restructured loans”
over a certain amount, for which future cash flows from the collection of principal
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and interest are reasonably estimated, an allowance is provided for the difference
between the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the con-
tracted interest rate and the carrying value of the claims based on the discounted
cash flow method.

For other claims, an allowance is provided based on the actual historical
loss ratio.

For collateralized or guaranteed claims of borrowers who are in “virtual
bankruptcy” or “legal bankruptcy,” the amount exceeding the estimated value of
collateral or guarantees has been deducted as deemed uncollectible directly from
those claims. As of March 31, 2017 and 2016, the deducted amounts were
¥23,642 million ($210,738 thousand) and ¥11,342 million, respectively.

Other consolidated subsidiaries determine allowances for loan losses that
are provided for general claims at an amount based on the actual historical rate
of loan losses and for specific claims (from potentially bankrupt customers, etc.)
at an estimate of the amounts deemed uncollectible based on the respective
assessments.

i. Allowance for Investment Losses — Allowance for investment losses is pro-
vided at the amount deemed necessary to cover estimated possible losses on in-
vestments which one consolidated banking subsidiary may incur in the future.

J. Provision for Directors’ Bonuses — Provision for directors’ bonuses (includ-
ing executive officers) is provided in the amount of the estimated bonuses that
are attributable to each fiscal year.

k. Employees’ Retirement Benefits — The Company accounts for the liability
for retirement benefits based on the projected benefit obligations and plan assets at
the balance sheet date. The projected benefit obligations are attributed to periods
on a benefit formula basis. Actuarial gains and losses and past service costs that
are yet to be recognized in profit or loss are recognized within equity (accumulated
other comprehensive income), after adjusting for tax effects and are recognized in
profit or loss from the next year of incurrence and the year of incurrence, respec-
tively, by the straight-line method over a period (mainly ten years) no longer than
the expected average remaining service period of the employees.

1. Provision for Directors’ Retirement Benefits — Provision for directors’ re-
tirement benefits, which is provided for payments of retirement benefits to direc-
tors, is recorded in the amount deemed accrued at the fiscal year end date
based on the estimated amount of benefits.

m. Provision for Reimbursement of Deposits — Provision for reimbursement
of deposits, which were derecognized as liabilities under certain conditions, is
provided for possible losses on future claims and is calculated based on the his-
torical reimbursement experience.

n. Provision for Contingent Losses — Provision for contingent losses is pro-
vided for possible loan losses guaranteed by the credit guarantee corporations in
an amount deemed necessary based on estimated losses in the future, calculat-
ed using historical default rates after exclusion of contingent losses covered by
other reserves.

0. Provision for Point Card Certificates — Provision for point card certificates,
which is provided for the future use of points granted to customers under credit
card points program, is calculated by converting the outstanding points into a
monetary amount and rationally estimating and recognizing the amount that will
be redeemed in the future.

p. Provision for Losses on Interest Repayments — Some consolidated sub-
sidiaries provide a provision for losses on interest repayments in an amount
deemed necessary based on estimated amounts to be repaid, taking into account
historical records of interest repayments on the portion of loans whose interest
rates exceeded the maximum interest rate stipulated by the Interest Limitation Law.
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q. Reserves under Special Laws — Reserves under special laws is a reserve
for contingent liabilities and provided for compensation for losses from securi-
ties-related transactions or derivative transactions in the amount of ¥2 million
($18 thousand) as of March 31, 2017, pursuant to Article 46-5-1 of the Finan-
cial Instruments and Exchange Act and Article 175 of the related cabinet order.

r. Stock Options — Compensation expense for employee stock options which
were granted on and after May 1, 2006 are recognized based on the fair value at
the date of grant and over the vesting period as consideration for receiving goods
or services in accordance with the Accounting Standards Board of Japan
(“ASBJ”) Statement No. 8, “Accounting Standard for Stock Options”. Stock op-
tions granted to nonemployees are accounted for based on the fair value of either
the stock option or the goods or services received. In the balance sheet, the
stock option is presented as a stock acquisition right as a separate component of
equity until exercised. The accounting standard allows unlisted companies to
measure options at their intrinsic value if they cannot reliably estimate fair value.

s. Stock Issue Costs — Stock issue costs are charged to income as incurred.

t. Leases — Finance leases that are not deemed to transfer ownership of the
leased property to the lessee are recognized as investments in lease.

As a lessor, income and expenses are recognized when lease receivables
are collected as for finance lease transactions that do not transfer ownership of
the property.

In March 2007, the ASBJ issued ASBJ Statement No. 13, “Accounting
Standard for Lease Transactions,” which revised the previous accounting stan-
dard for lease transactions issued in June 1993. Under the previous accounting
standard, finance leases that were deemed to transfer ownership of the leased
property to the lessee were treated as sales. However, other finance leases were
permitted to be accounted for as operating lease transactions if certain “as if
sold” information was disclosed in the note to the lessor’s financial statements.

As for finance lease transactions that do not transfer ownership of the
leased property and which commenced prior to April 1, 2008, their treatment
was as follows.

As a lessor, in line with the stipulations of Article 81 of the Guidance on Ac-
counting Standard for Lease Transactions the ASBJ Guidance No. 16, March 25,
2011), book value (after deduction of accumulated depreciation) of lease assets
included in tangible fixed assets and intangible assets as of the previous balance
sheet date (March 31, 2008) was recorded as the initial balance of “Lease re-
ceivables and investments in lease.”

u. Income Taxes — The provision for income taxes is computed based on the
pretax income included in the consolidated statement of income. The asset and
liability approach is used to recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for the
expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred taxes are measured
by applying currently enacted income tax rates to the temporary differences.

The Group applied ASBJ Guidance No. 26, “Guidance on Recoverability of
Deferred Tax Assets,” effective April 1, 2016. There was no impact from this for
the year ended March 31, 2017.

The Group files a tax return under the consolidated corporate-tax system,
which allows companies to base tax payments on the combined profits or losses
of the parent company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries.

v. Translation of Foreign Currencies — Assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at exchange rates prevailing as of the consoli-
dated balance sheet date.

w. Derivatives and Hedging Activities — Derivative financial instruments are
classified and accounted for as follows: (a) all derivatives, except those entered
into for hedging purposes, are recognized as either assets or liabilities and mea-
sured at fair value with gains or losses on derivative transactions recognized in

Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.

the consolidated statement of income or (b) for derivatives used for hedging pur-
poses, if the derivatives qualify for hedge accounting because of high correlation
and effectiveness between the hedging instruments and the hedged items, gains
or losses on the derivatives are deferred until maturity of the hedged transactions
(deferral hedge accounting).

The consolidated banking subsidiaries apply deferral hedge accounting
based on the rules of the Japanese Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“JICPA”) Industry Audit Committee Report No. 24, “Accounting and Auditing
Treatments on the Application of Accounting Standards for Financial Instruments
in the Banking Industry,” for interest rate derivatives to manage interest rate risk
from various financial assets and liabilities as a whole. Under these rules, the ef-
fectiveness of a fair value hedge is assessed by an identified group of hedge de-
posits, loans, and similar instruments and by a corresponding group of hedging
instruments, such as interest rate swaps in the same maturity category. Also,
under these rules, the effectiveness of cash flow hedges is assessed based on
the correlation between a base interest rate index of the hedged cash flow and
that of the hedging instrument.

The consolidated banking subsidiaries apply deferral hedge accounting
based on the rules of the JICPA Industry Audit Committee Report No. 25, “Ac-
counting and Auditing Treatments for Foreign Currency Transactions in the Bank-
ing Industry,” to currency swaps and funding swaps used for the purpose of
currency exchange. Under the deferral hedge accounting, hedged items are
identified by grouping the foreign currency-denominated financial assets and lia-
bilities by currencies and designating derivative transactions, such as currency
swap transactions and foreign exchange swaps as hedging instruments. Effec-
tiveness of derivative transactions, such as currency swap transactions and for-
eign exchange swap transactions, is reviewed by comparing the total foreign
currency position of the hedged items and the hedging instrument by currency.

One consolidated banking subsidiary applies individual deferral hedge ac-
counting to offsetting the price fluctuation of the strategic shares that are classi-
fied under available-for-sale securities, using stock forward contracts as hedged
items. The hedge effectiveness of derivative transactions is reviewed by compar-
ing the changes in value of hedged item and hedging instruments.

The consolidated banking subsidiaries apply individual deferral hedge ac-
counting and exceptional accrual method for interest rate swap to some assets
and liabilities. Some consolidated subsidiaries apply the exceptional accrual
method for interest rate swap to some liabilities.

X. Cash and Cash Equivalents — Cash and cash equivalents in the statements
of cash flows represent cash and due from banks in the consolidated balance
sheets, excluding deposits with banks other than the Bank of Japan of the bank-
ing subsidiaries and excluding the time deposits of the Company and the other
consolidated subsidiaries.

y. Consumption Taxes — Consumption tax is excluded from transactions re-
ported by the Group. However, non-deductible consumption tax on tangible fixed
assets is charged to income as incurred.

Z. Per Share Information — Basic net income per share of common stocks is
computed by dividing net income attributable to common shareholders by the
weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding for the period,
retroactively adjusted for stock splits.

Diluted net income per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur
if securities were exercised or converted into common stock. Diluted net income
per share of common stock assumes full conversion of the outstanding convert-
ible notes and bonds at the beginning of the year (or at the time of issuance) with
an applicable adjustment for related interest expense, net of tax, and full exercise
of outstanding warrants.

Cash dividends per share presented in the accompanying consolidated
statement of income are dividends applicable to the respective years, including
dividends to be paid after the end of the year.



3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
The reconciliation of “Cash and cash equivalents” in the consolidated statement

Millions of Yen

Unrealized  Unrealized

of cash flows and “Cash and due from banks” in the consolidated balance sheet g‘ard‘f]’ 2(116 e o Gains Forc BNl
as of March 31, 2017 and 2016, was as follows: ecurities classitied as:
Thousands of Available-for-sale: ................ ¥1,137,194 ¥72,825 ¥4,600 ¥1,205,419
Millions of Yen US. Dollars Equity securities............... 21,195 26,717 686 47,225
2017 2016 2017 Debt securities:................ 703,624 31,283 308 734,599
Cash and due from banks ¥1,393,762  ¥437,509 $12,423,232 Japanese national
Interest-bearing deposits included government bonds ..... 260,457 18,300 — 278,758
in due from banks (other than due Japanese local
from the Bank of Japan).................... - (1,358) - government bonds ..... 243,646 8,332 1 251,967
Deposits with banks of the banking Japanese corporate
subsidiaries other than the Bank of bonds......ccccevvviveveinns 199,520 4,650 297 203,873
(23,868) — (212,753) 01111 412374 14,825 3605 423,594
¥1,369,893  ¥436,150  $12,210,479 Of which foreign bonds ..~ 156,610 3,075 590 159,095
Held-to-maturity: .................. 88,788 13,840 — 102,628
Japanese national
4. TRADING SECURITIES AND SECURITIES Jg‘[’)ﬁr:stir:rsg:‘at """"" 72789 13,734 - 65
The grqountg shown |n”the following tatlJIe.zs |ncllude. "%ecurmes", tra‘dmg secun”— bonds .. 1999 46 o 2045
ties |nl Trgdlng assets Iand trust beneficiary right in “Monetary claims bought others: 14,000 58 o 14,058
described in the consolidated balance sheets. Of which foreign bonds ..~ 14,000 58 o 14,058
Net unrealized gains (losses) recognized as income as of March 31, 2017
and 2016, were as follows: Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Thousands of Unrealized  Unrealized
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars March 31,2017 Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
2017 2016 2017 Securities classified as:
Trading SECUMIES......cv.evveeieiiiiinens ¥(32) ¥39 $(285) Available-for-sale: ................ $34,379,191 $1,926.211  $296,684 $36,008,718
Securities as of March 31, 2017 and 2016 consisted of the following: Equity seculr‘|t|es """""""" 22,142 315508 5782 135,135
Debt securities:................ 20,353,312 246,340 39,164 20,560,489
Thousands of )
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars Japanese national
2017 2016 2017 government bonds ... 9,310,171 133,242 18,466 9,424,948
Japanese national government bonds .... ¥1,145,390  ¥351547  $10,209,386 Japanese local
Japanese local government bonds ...... 628,036 251,967 5,507,973 Ji‘;‘;‘;?s“;i’:rzsgz ----- 5,581,831 26,198 12,285 5,595,744
Japanese corporate bonds.................. 672,639 205,872 5,995,539 BONAS oo 5,461,310 86,900 8414 553979
Japanese corporate Stocks............... 311,00 48649 2,772,210 ONEIS: e 12603737 364545 253788 12,714,494
Other SECUMHIES ..vvo v 1433503 438732 12,778,265 Foreign bonds ........... 6120102 21,973 84,001 6,057,084
TOI v ¥4190681 ¥1,296769 ~_$37,353,432 OtNErS e 6483635 342572 169698 6,656,510
The cost and aggregate fair value of available-for-sale securities and Held-to-maturity: .................. 1,242,409 4,355 10424 1,236,341
held-to-maturity securities as of March 31, 2017 and 2016, were as follows: Japanese national
Millions of Yen government bonds.......... 784,438 230 10,188 774,480
Unrealized  Unrealized Japanese local
March 31,2017 Cost Gains Losses  Fair Value government bonds.......... 2,228 9 — 2,238
Securities classified as: Japanese corporate
Available-for-sale: ... ¥3,857,001 ¥216,101 ¥33,284 ¥4,039,818 DONAS ... 455,743 4,116 236 459,623
Equity securities............... 159,550 147,566 418 306,697
Debt securities:................ 2,283,438 27,636 4,393 2,306,681
Japanese national
government bonds ..... 1,044,508 14,948 2,071 1,057,384
Japanese local
government bonds ..... 626,225 2,939 1,378 627,786
Japanese corporate
bonds.......cccccviinnnn. 612,704 9,749 943 621,509
Others: .....ccovvvieieieie. 1,414,013 40,898 28,472 1,426,439
Foreign bonds............. 686,614 2,465 9,434 679,645
Others......cccovervinnnn, 727,399 38,433 19,038 746,793
Held-to-maturity: .................. 139,385 438 1,169 138,705
Japanese national
government bonds.......... 88,006 25 1,142 86,888
Japanese local
government bonds.......... 249 1 — 251
Japanese corporate
bonds .....ccooveriieiinnn, 51,129 461 26 51,565
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Information on available-for-sale securities that were sold during the years
ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, is as follows:

Millions of Yen

Realized Realized

March 31,2017 Proceeds Gains Losses
Available-for-sale:
Equity SECUrities ......oovvvveeiceen, ¥ 9768 ¥ 3446 ¥ 47
Debt SECUNtIES: ...vvvvvvveiiecececee 520,395 6,984 1,209
Japanese national government bonds.... 416,573 6,466 876
Japanese local government bonds ...... 55,234 110 261
Japanese corporate bonds.................. 48,587 406 V4
OtNIS: oo 450,759 10,531 6,477
Foreign bonds...........cocveeiiiiicccnns 284,282 3,009 3,419
OtherS....cvevrieieeieeee s 166,477 7,522 3,058
TOtAl e ¥980,923 ¥20,962 ¥7,734

Millions of Yen

Realized Realized

March 31,2016 Proceeds Gains Losses
Available-for-sale:
Equity SECUMEIES ....vvvevieicicvevc, ¥ 4135  ¥3,290 ¥ 2
Debt securities: ... . 51,980 684 0
Japanese national government bonds.... 51,104 678 —
Japanese corporate bonds.................. 875 5 0
Others ....ccovvveeeeiiiee, . 12,480 210 978
Total ... ¥68,596  ¥4,185 ¥980
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Realized Realized
March 31,2017 Proceeds Gains Losses
Available-for-sale:

Equity SECUNHIES ........evevevereeiieieie, $ 87073 $30,719 $ 421
Debt SecUrities: .......ccoveviriiiiiceeiee, 4,638,519 62,256 10,780
Japanese national government bonds.... 3,713,108 57,642 7,815
Japanese local government bonds ...... 492,327 989 2,330
Japanese corporate bonds.................. 433,085 3,625 634
OhBTS: v 4,017,825 93,874 57,741
Foreign bonds........ccoovvveviiiciiiiinnnn, 2,533,935 26,826 30,481
OtherS ..o, 1,483,889 67,048 27,260
TOtAl .o $8,743417 $186,849  $68,942

Marketable available-for-sale securities, whose fair value significantly de-
clined in comparison with the acquisition cost and whose fair value is not consid-
ered likely to recover to their acquisition cost, are written down and recognized
as impairment losses.

The impairment losses on marketable available-for-sale securities for the
years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, were nil and ¥36 million including
bonds of ¥36 million, respectively.

Pursuant to “Practical Guidelines for Accounting for Financial Instruments”
(JICPA Accounting Committee Report No. 14, April 14, 2015), the criteria for de-
termining whether the fair value is “significantly declined” are defined that secu-
rities whose fair value has declined by 30% or more of the acquisition cost are
deemed to be impaired.

As of March 31, 2017 and 2016, securities included equity investments in
unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies of ¥9 million ($82 thou-
sand) and ¥9 million and capital subscriptions of ¥2,145 million ($19,120 thou-
sand) and ¥452 million, respectively.
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5. UNREALIZED GAINS ON AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES
Unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities as of March 31, 2017 and
2016, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2017 2016 2017
Unrealized gains: .........cccovvvvvrviverennnns ¥182,976 ¥68,225 $1,630,952
Available-for-sale securities ........... 182,976 68,225 1,630,952
Money held in trust, except for
trading and held-to-maturity
PUMPOSE ... — — —
Deferred tax liabilities: ..............ccc..... 54,431 19,697 485,168
Unrealized gains on available-for-sale
securities before adjustments by
OWNership Share..........cocceeviieeeenns 128,545 48,527 1,145,784
Noncontrolling interests...................... — — —
Company's ownership share in
unrealized gains on available-for-sale
securities held by affiliates accounted
for using the equity method............... — — —
Unrealized gains on available-for-sale
SECUMEIES oo ¥128,545 ¥48527  $1,145,784

As of March 31, 2017 and 2016, the total unrealized gains include an un-
realized gain of ¥159 million ($1,426 thousands) and nil respectively on avail-
able-for-sale-securities, contained in certain fund.

6. LOANS AND BILLS DISCOUNTED
The following loans were included in loans and bills discounted as of March 31,
2017 and 2016:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2017 2016 2017

Loans to borrowers

in legal bankruptcy ..........ccococeveveienns ¥ 2,757 ¥ 1,704 $ 24,582

Past due loans 151,089 69,914 1,346,729
Loans past due

for three months or more .................. 805 — 7,179
Restructured 10anS...........ccocevevvvnnen. 36,280 20,340 323,380
TOtal oo ¥190,932 ¥91,959 $1,701,870

The amounts above are stated before the deduction of the allowance for
loan losses.

“Loans to borrowers in legal bankruptcy” are nonaccrual loans, which are
highly probable to become unrecoverable. Specific conditions for inclusion in this
category are as follows:

(i) Borrowers have made application for procedures under the Corporate Reorga-
nization Act, Civil Rehabilitation Act, Bankruptcy Act, liquidation under the
Companies Act of Japan (the “Companies Act”), or liquidation under other le-
gal provisions.

(ii) Clearance of promissory notes or bills issued by the borrower is suspended.

“Past due loans” are loans on which accrued interest income is not recog-
nized, excluding “loans to borrowers in legal bankruptcy” and loans on which in-
terest payments are deferred in order to support the borrowers’ recovery from fi-
nancial difficulties.

“Loans past due for three months or more” include accruing loans for which
principal or interest is past due three months or more.

“Restructured loans” are loans to borrowers in financial difficulty to whom
the Group has provided financial support through modification of the lending
terms to be more favorable to the borrower, including reduction of interest rates,
suspension of repayment of principal and interest, and debt forgiveness.



Contracts of overdraft facilities and loan commitment limits are contracts
under which the consolidated banking subsidiaries and certain consolidated sub-
sidiaries lend to customers up to the prescribed limits in response to customer
applications for loans as long as there is no violation of any condition in the con-
tracts. As of March 31, 2017 and 2016, the amounts of unused commitments
were ¥2,938,456 million ($26,191,785 thousand) and ¥1,249,546 million, re-
spectively. As of March 31, 2017 and 2016, the amounts of unused commit-
ments whose remaining contract terms were within one year were ¥2,064,015
million ($18,397,497 thousand) and ¥1,213,114 million, respectively.

As many of these commitments expire without being drawn down, the un-
used amount does not necessarily represent a future cash requirement. Most of
these contracts have conditions whereby the consolidated banking subsidiaries
and certain consolidated subsidiaries can refuse customer applications for loans
or decrease the contract limits for certain reason (e.g., changes in financial situ-
ation and deterioration in customers’ creditworthiness). At the inception of the
contracts, the consolidated banking subsidiaries and certain consolidated subsid-
iaries obtain real estate, securities, or other assets as collateral if considered to
be necessary. Subsequently, the consolidated banking subsidiaries and certain
consolidated subsidiaries perform periodic reviews of the customers’ business
results based on the internal rules and take necessary measures to reconsider
conditions in the contracts and/or require additional collateral and guarantees.

Discounting bills are treated as secured lending transactions. As of March
31,2017 and 2016, consolidated banking subsidiaries have the right to sell or
repledge bills discounted and foreign exchange bills bought and their total face
value was ¥44,662 million ($398,097 thousand) and ¥25,527 million, respec-
tively.

7. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Tangible fixed assets as of March 31, 2017 and 2016, consisted of the following:
Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2017 2016 2017
¥ 4,423 ¥ 7527 $ 369,224
63,107 12,798 562,509
26 16 232
652 435 5,817
. 12,522 3,647 111,621
¥117,732  ¥24,424  $1,049,402

The accumulated depreciation of tangible fixed assets as of March 31,
2017 and 2016, amounted to ¥126,558 million ($1,128,077 thousand) and
¥39,480 million, respectively.

Under certain conditions, such as exchanges of fixed assets of similar kinds
and sales and purchases resulting from expropriation, Japanese tax laws permit
companies to defer the profit arising from such transactions by reducing the cost
of the assets acquired or by providing a special reserve in the equity section. As
of March 31, 2017 and 2016, such deferred profit amounted to ¥9,864 million
($87,926 thousand) and ¥2,774 million, respectively. Newly-recognized amounts
for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, were ¥7 million ($63 thousand)
and ¥26 million, respectively.

Under the “Law of Land Revaluation,” one banking subsidiary elected a one-
time revaluation of its own-use land to a value based on real estate appraisal in-
formation as of March 31, 1998. The resulting revaluation reserve for land rep-
resents unrealized appreciation of land and is stated, net of income taxes, as a
component of equity. There was no effect on the consolidated statement of in-
come. Continuous readjustment is not permitted, unless the land value subse-
quently declines significantly such that the amount of the decline in value should
be removed from the revaluation reserve for land account and related deferred
tax liabilities. As of March 31, 2017 and 2016, the carrying amount of the land
after the above one-time revaluation exceeded the market value by ¥28,106 mil-
lion ($250,524 thousand) and nil, respectively.

8. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Intangible fixed assets as of March 31, 2017 and 2016, consisted of the follow-

ing:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2017 2016 2017
SOMWAE......cvivevevieccceeeeeeia ¥ 8254 ¥ 2,087 $ 73,572
GOOAWIll ... —_ 75,979 —_
Other v 4,160 534 37,082
Total oo ¥12414 ¥78,601 $110,654

Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries is amortized using the straight line
method over 20 years.

The amortization expense for goodwill included in general and administrative
expenses for the year ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, amounted to nil and
¥6,202 million, respectively.

9. CUSTOMERS' LIABILITIES FOR ACCEPTANCES AND GUAR-
ANTEES

All contingent liabilities arising from acceptances and guarantees are reflected in

acceptances and guarantees in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. As a contra ac-

count, customers’ liabilities for acceptances and guarantees are presented as

assets, representing the consolidated banking subsidiaries” and certain consoli-

dated subsidiaries’ rights of indemnity from the applicants.

Guarantee obligations for private placement bonds included in “Securities”
(provided in accordance with the Article 2-3 of the “Financial Instruments and
Exchange Act”) as of March 31, 2017 and 2016, were ¥115,880 million
($1,032,892 thousand) and ¥63,410 million, respectively.

10. ASSETS PLEDGED AS COLLATERAL
Assets pledged as collateral and the related liabilities as of March 31, 2017 and
2016, were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2017 2016 2017

Assets pledged as collateral:

Cash and due from banks............... — ¥ 4 —

SECUMHES. ..o ¥1,081,752 280,162  $9,642,149

Loans and bills discounted............. —_ 11,050 —_

TOtal v ¥1,081,752 ¥291217  $9,642,149
Related liabilities to above assets:

DEPOSIES ..o ¥ 149,269 ¥113,379  $1,330,506

Call money and bills sold 5,609 — 50,000

Payables under securities lending

transactions..........cceevvvveiiiveenns 167,640 25,263 1,494,252
Borrowed money 646,948 181,710 5,766,543

Additionally, securities amounting to ¥103,860 million ($925,756 thousand)
and ¥67,707 million as of March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, were
pledged as collateral for settlements of exchange or as substitute securities for
margins on futures transactions.

One consolidated subsidiary’s lease receivables amounting to ¥117 million
($1,048 thousand) and nil as of March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, were
pledged as collateral for borrowed money.

Moreover, other assets included deposits for central counterparty amount-
ing to ¥26,371 million ($235,058 thousand) and nil, cash collateral paid for fi-
nancial instruments amounting to ¥3,327 million ($29,660 thousand) and
¥5,090 million, and guarantee deposits amounting to 2,062 million ($18,384
thousand) and ¥745 million as of March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
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11. BORROWED MONEY
Borrowed money as of March 31, 2017 and 2016, consisted of the following:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2017 2016 2017

Borrowed money of which the
weighted-average annual interest
rates were 0.28%, due from April,
2017 to March, 2026........................ ¥735,593 ¥251,726 $ 6,556,676
Annual maturities of borrowed money as of March 31, 2017, for the next
five years were as follows:
Thousands of

Year Ending March 31 Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2078, i ¥502,373 $4,477,881
L 1L 73,301 654,176
2020, .0 42,968 383,002
2027 46,611 415,474
2022, 221 1,979

Borrowed money included borrowings from the Bank of Japan and other fi-
nancial institutions. In addition, borrowed money included subordinated borrow-
ings totaling ¥70,000 million ($623,942 thousand) and ¥70,000 million as of
March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

12. BONDS
Bonds as of March 31, 2017 and 2016, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2017 2016 2017

Unsecured Euro-US dollar-

denominated convertible bonds with

stock acquisition rights issued by the

Company, date of issue October 1,

2016, due April 24, 2019*" ............. ¥33,657 ¥— $300,000
Unsecured straight bonds issued by

Joyo, date of issue May 24, 2000,

due May 22, 2020, 2.64% interest..... 5,000 — 44,567
TOtal 1o ¥38,657 ¥— $344,567

*1 On October 1, 2016, the Company succeeded Euro-US dollar-denominated convertible bonds
which were originally issued by Joyo.

Information on convertible bonds with stock acquisition rights is as follows:

Name Euro-US dollar-denominated convertible bonds with
stock acquisition rights issued by the Company due
2019

Type of stock: Common stock

Issue price of stock
acquisition rights: Free of charge

Issue price of stock: $5.11
Total sum of issue price:  $300,000 thousand

Grant ratio of stock
acquisition rights: 100.0%

Exercise period of stock
acquisition rights:

Substitute payment:

From October 1, 2016 to April 10, 2019

On execution of the stock acquisition rights, the corre-
sponding bonds are to be invested, and the bond’s
price is same as face amount.

Annual maturities of bonds as of March 31, 2017, for the next five years
were as follows:

Thousands of

Year Ending March 31 Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2078, e ¥ — $ —
2079, — —
2020, 33,657 300,000
2027 e 5,000 44,567
2022, — —
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13. RETIREMENT AND PENSION PLANS

(1) Outline of the adopted retirement benefit plans

(Year Ended March 31, 2017)

The Company’s banking subsidiary, Joyo, and its consolidated subsidiaries have
adopted defined employees’ retirement benefit plans, i.e., the employees’ welfare
pension fund supplemented by the employees’ public pension system and lump-
sum retirement benefits.

In addition, extra benefits which are excluded from the projected benefit ob-
ligation in employees’ retirement benefits accounting may be paid on a case-by-
case hasis. Joyo has established an employees’ retirement benefit trust.

The Company’s banking subsidiary, Ashikaga Bank, Ltd. (“Ashikaga”), and
its consolidated subsidiaries have adopted funded and unfunded defined benefit
plans as well as defined contribution plans to provide for the employees’ retire-
ment benefits. All of the retirement benefit plans are managed in an integrated
manner through retirement benefit points which are determined based on years
of service and capabilities of employees, as well as employee performance eval-
uation. The determined points are then allocated to each plan.

The defined benefit pension plans (funded plans) have introduced pension
plans similar to cash balance plan-type pension plans. Under the plan, each par-
ticipant will set up a virtual individual account where pension or lump-sum pay-
ments will be made based on the accumulated retirement benefit points allocat-
ed. A retirement benefit trust is established for this defined benefit pension plan.

Under the lump-sum retirement benefit plans (unfunded plans that have be-
come funded plans due to the establishment of a retirement benefit trust), lump-
sum payments are made based on the accumulated retirement benefit points al-
located. In some cases, premium severance payments may be made to employ-
ees in conjunction with the employees’ retirement, etc.

Under the defined contribution plans, contribution amount is decided based
on the accumulated retirement benefit points allocated.

The Company’s consolidated subsidiaries are members of the defined bene-
fit pension funds under the multiemployer plans, and as the amount of plan as-
sets corresponding to the contribution of each subsidiary may be reasonably cal-
culated, such information is included in the notes to defined benefit plans.

Regarding the lump-sum retirement benefit plans adopted by certain con-
solidated subsidiaries, liability for retirement benefits and retirement benefit ex-
penses are calculated by the simplified method.

(Year Ended March 31, 2016)

AHD’s consolidated subsidiaries have adopted funded and unfunded defined
benefit plans as well as defined contribution plans to provide for the employees’
retirement benefits. All of the retirement benefit plans are managed in an inte-
grated manner through retirement benefit points which are determined based on
years of service and capabilities of employees, as well as employee performance
evaluation. The determined points are then allocated to each plan.

The defined benefit pension plans (funded plans) have introduced pension
plans similar to cash balance plan-type pension plans. Under the plan, each par-
ticipant will set up a virtual individual account where pension or lump-sum pay-
ments will be made based on the accumulated retirement benefit points allocat-
ed. A retirement benefit trust is established for this defined benefit pension plan.

Under the lump-sum retirement benefit plans (unfunded plans that have be-
come funded plans due to the establishment of a retirement benefit trust), lump-
sum payments are made based on the accumulated retirement benefit points al-
located. In some cases, premium severance payments may be made to employ-
ees in conjunction with the employees’ retirement, etc.

Under the defined contribution plans, contribution amount is decided based
on the accumulated retirement benefit points allocated.

Regarding the lump-sum retirement benefit plans adopted by certain con-
solidated subsidiaries, liability for retirement benefits and retirement benefit ex-
penses are calculated by the simplified method.

AHD’s consolidated subsidiaries are members of the defined benefit pension
funds under the multiemployer plans, and as the amount of plan assets corre-
sponding to the contribution of each subsidiary may be reasonably calculated,
such information is included in the notes to defined benefit plans.



(2) Defined benefit plans
(a) The changes in defined benefit obligation for the years ended March 31, 2017
and 2016, were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
Year ended March 31, 2017 2017 2017
Balance at beginning of year.............cccccccevirirnnnn ¥ 76,181 $ 679,040
Increase due to share exchange ............cc..o...... 42,016 374,513
Current SErvice COSt.......ovvvvviviiiirircriciiean, 2,767 24,667
INTErest COSt.....vvvvviiiiiicccece 387 3,457
Actuarial l0SSES .......cooveviiveviiririiieiieeceins 651 5,807
Benefits paid.........cccoovviiiciiccc (4,493) (40,049)
Past SEIVICE COSt .....ovvvviicicciiieceii — —
OFNET oo 18 168
Balance at end of year...........ccccoooveeeeiiicicienaas ¥117,530  $1,047,603
*Figures above exclude retirement and benefit plans calculated by the simplified method.
Millions of Yen
Year ended March 31, 2016 2016
Balance at beginning of year (as previously
TEPOME) ... ¥38,872
Cumulative effect of accounting change............ —
Balance at beginning of year (as restated) ............. —
Current SErviCe COSt......ccvivrvririiiieiiiiies 1,520
INtErest COSt.....voviviiiiiiiicccce 443
Actuarial [0SSES ......covvvveviieiiiiiiieeee 4,198
Benefits paid.........cccocovveeiiiiiiic e (2,331)
OFNEIS 1o 48
Balance at end of year.............cocoovveveveiiiiieennn, ¥42,752

*Figures above include retirement and benefit plans calculated by the simplified method.

(b) The changes in plan assets for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016,
were as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
Year ended March 31, 2017 2017 2017
Balance at beginning of year..........c.cccoovvvvrennnn. ¥ 61,303 $ 546,429
Increase due to share exchange .............oo.e. 54,330 484,271
Expected return on plan assets.............ooeveves 1,813 16,163
Actuarial gains ........ocovvveveieiiiies 4,495 40,068
Contributions from the employer...........c........... 3,038 27,087
Benefits paid..........cccccevvvieeeiccece (2,810) (25,049)
OthEIS oo 18 168
Balance at end of year.........c.cccoovvvieicniiciens ¥122190  $1,089,137
*Figures above exclude retirement and benefit plans calculated by the simplified method.
Millions of Yen
Year ended March 31, 2016 2016
Balance at beginning of year............cccccceevirvrinnn ¥52,757
Expected return on plan assets............cccceevee. 1,740
Actuarial I0SSES ......c.vvvveviiieeeiceeee (1,755)
Contributions from the employer.............c.c....... 2,045
Benefits paid.........ccovovvveiiiiiieeee, (1,624)
OhBTS ot 36
Balance at end of year........ccccocoovvveiciiiiiininnns ¥53,199

(c) The changes in liability for retirement benefits adopting the simplified method
for the year ended March 31, 2017, were as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2017 2017
Balance at beginning of year...........ccccooviiinns ¥ 598 $ 5,332
Increase due to the share exchange...................... 620 5,532
Retirement benefit expense ..........cccccevvvevevevnaan. 454 4,050
BENefits Paid ........ccovevvviiieecce e (67) (598)
Contribution to the defined benefit pension plan..... (325) (2,904)
Net balance at end of year............cccocevvririiiinennan, ¥1,280 $11,411

(d) Reconciliation between the liability recorded in the consolidated balance sheet
and the balances of defined benefit obligation and plan assets was as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
Year ended March 31, 2017 2017 2017
Funded defined benefit obligation.......................... ¥125,279 $1,116,669
Plan @SSELS......cooovviviieiiiiice e (128,658)  (1,146,792)
TOMAl oo (3,379) (30,123)
Unfunded defined benefit obligation ...................... — —
Net asset arising from defined benefit obligation..... ¥ (3,379) $ (30,123)

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2017 2017
Liability for retirement benefits..........c.cccovvvvienne ¥ 8,896 $ 79,298
Asset for retirement DEnefits..........cocovvvicricinn. (12,275) (109,421)
Net asset arising from defined benefit obligation.... ¥ (3,379) $ (30,123)
*Figures above include retirement and benefit plans calculated by the simplified method.
Millions of Yen
Year ended March 31, 2016 2016
Funded defined benefit obligation................ccceweee ¥ 42,752
Plan @SSELS......ccovvvvivereiiiece e (63,199)
TOl o (10,446)

Unfunded defined benefit obligation ...................... —
Net asset arising from defined benefit obligation..... ¥(10,446)

Millions of Yen
2016
Liability for retirement benefits..........c.cccovvvvvieinns ¥ —
Asset for retirement benefits............ocooveveiiienns (10,446)

Net asset arising from defined benefit obligation.... ¥(10,446)

*Figures above include retirement and benefit plans calculated by the simplified method.

(e) The components of net periodic benefit costs for the years ended March 31,
2017 and 2016, were as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
Year ended March 31, 2017 2017 2017
SBIVICE COSE....veviiiicieiciecece e ¥2,767 $24,667
INTErESt COSL. v 387 3,457
Expected return on plan assets............cccceeveveinnne (1,813) (16,163)
Recognized actuarial [0SSES..........ccccvvvvriririivinnan, 3,688 32,877
Amortization of prior Service cost ..........cccevvrvirinne — —
Retirement benefit expense calculated by the
simplified MEthod .........cvvveeecceeas 454 4,050
ONBIS oo 9) (82)
Net periodic benefit COSIS ... ¥5,475 $48,806
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Millions of Yen

Year ended March 31, 2016 2016

Service cost... ¥1,520
INTErESt COSL...cvoviviiiiieicccee e 443
Expected return on plan assets............c.cceevvnnnn (1,740)
Recognized actuarial l0SSES ..........ccceveiiririinan, 767
Amortization of prior SErvice Cost .............ocecevrvnes (144)
Others (non-actuarial-basis Cost) .............occevvennes 12
Net periodic benefit COStS ..o, ¥ 858

*Service cost above includes retirement benefit expense calculated by the simplified method.

(f) Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income (before income tax effect)
in respect of defined retirement benefit plans for the years ended March 31,
2017 and 2016, were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2017 2016 2017
Prior Service Cost ...........ccccevevrinnn. ¥ — ¥ (149 $ —
Actuarial [0SSES ........oocvverriiriinns (7,532) (5,186) (67,138)
TOtAl oo ¥(7,532) ¥(5,331) $(67,138)

(9) Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (before in-
come tax effect) in respect of defined retirement benefit plans as of March
31,2017 and 2016, were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2017 2016 2017
Unrecognized prior service cost........... ¥ — ¥1013 $ —
Unrecognized actuarial (gains) losses.... 7,815 (3,292 69,664
TOtal v ¥7,815 ¥ (2,278) $69,664

() Plan assets
a. Components of plan assets
Plan assets as of March 31, 2017 and 2016, consisted of the following:

2017 2016
Debt INVESIMENES ... 47.9% 63%
Equity investments 31.7% 21%
General aCCOUNES .......c.vveveverieccee s 12.6% 8%
Short-term @SSetS ......vovveveiiiiiiecce — 4%
OtNBIS ..o 7.8% 4%
TOA oo 100.0% 100%

* As of March 31, 2017 and 2016, total plan assets that were set up on corporate pension
plans include retirement benefit trust of 20.9% and 25%, respectively.

b. Method of determining the expected rate of return on plan assets

The expected rate of return on plan assets is determined considering the long-
term rates of return which are expected currently and in the future from the vari-
ous components of the plan assets.

(i) Assumptions used for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, were set
forth as follows:

2017 2016
DISCOUNt TALE ... 0.20% — 0.57% 0.3% — 1.0%
Expected rate of return on plan assets.......... 2.50% — 3.30% 3.3%
Expected rate of increase in salary................ 4.63% — 9.00% 9.0%

(3) Defined contribution plans

The amounts of the required contribution to the defined contribution plans of cer-
tain consolidated subsidiaries were ¥598 million ($5,333 thousand) and ¥298
million as of March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
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14. EQUITY

Japanese companies are subject to the Companies Act. The significant provi-
sions in the Companies Act that affect financial and accounting matters are sum-
marized below:

a. Dividends

Under the Companies Act, companies can pay dividends at any time during the
fiscal year in addition to the year-end dividend upon resolution at the sharehold-
ers’ meeting. Additionally, for companies that meet certain criteria including (1)
having a Board of Directors, (2) having independent auditors, (3) having an Audit
& Supervisory Board, and (4) the term of service of the directors being prescribed
as one year rather than the normal two-year term by its articles of incorporation,
the Board of Directors may declare dividends (except for dividends-in-kind) at
any time during the fiscal year if the company has prescribed so in its articles of
incorporation. With respect to the third condition above, the Board of Directors of
companies with (a) board committees (namely, appointment committee, compen-
sation committee and audit committee) or (b) an audit and supervisory committee
(as implemented under the Companies Act effective May 1, 2015) may also de-
clare dividends at any time because such companies, by nature, meet the crite-
ria under the Companies Act. The Company is organized as a company with an
audit and supervisory committee. The Company meets all the above criteria,
and accordingly, the Board of Directors may declare dividends (except for divi-
dends-in-kind) at any time during the fiscal year.

The Companies Act permits companies to distribute dividends-in-kind (non-
cash assets) to shareholders subject to certain limitations and additional require-
ments.

Semiannual interim dividends may also be paid once a year upon resolution
by the Board of Directors if the articles of incorporation of the company so stipu-
late. The Companies Act provides certain limitations on the amounts available for
dividends or the purchase of treasury stock. The limitation is defined as the
amount available for distribution to the shareholders, but the amount of equity
after dividends must be maintained at no less than ¥3 million.

b. Increases/Decreases and Transfer of Common Stock, Reserve, and
Surplus
The Companies Act requires that an amount equal to 10% of dividends must be
appropriated as a legal reserve (a component of retained earnings) or as addi-
tional paid-in capital (a component of capital surplus) depending on the equity
account that was charged upon the payment of such dividends until the aggre-
gate amount of the legal reserve and additional paid-in capital equals 25% of
capital stock. Under the Companies Act, the total amount of additional paid-in
capital and legal reserve may be reversed without limitation. The Companies Act
also provides that capital stock, legal reserve, additional paid-in capital, other
capital surplus, and retained earnings can be transferred among the accounts
within equity under certain conditions upon resolution of the shareholders.

¢. Treasury Stock and Treasury Stock Acquisition Rights

The Companies Act also provides for companies to purchase treasury stock and
dispose of such treasury stock by resolution of the Board of Directors. The
amount of treasury stock purchased cannot exceed the amount available for dis-
tribution to the shareholders which is determined by a specific formula. Under
the Companies Act, stock acquisition rights are presented as a separate compo-
nent of equity. The Companies Act also provides that companies can purchase
both treasury stock acquisition rights and treasury stock. Such treasury stock ac-
quisition rights are presented as a separate component of equity or deducted di-
rectly from stock acquisition rights.



(1) Capital Stock Changes during the Year
The changes in the number and class of issued stock and treasury stock for the year ended March 31, 2017, were as follows:

Shares in Thousands

Changes During the Year
As of March 31,2016 Increase Decrease As of March 31,2017
Issued stock:
Common stock 333,250 845,805 — 1,179,055
Total 333,250 845,805 — 1,179,055
Treasury stock
Common stock — 1,306* 3% 1,303
Total — 1,306 3 1,303

*1 845,845 shares are issued due to the share exchange with Joyo on October 1, 2016.

*2 The number of shares of treasury stocks increased by 1,290 thousand shares due to a dividend-in-kind from a subsidiary and by 16 thousand shares due to purchases of shares less than the
trading unit.

*3 The number of shares of treasury stock decreased by 3 thousand shares due to sales to shareholders in response to their demand to buy additional shares up to the trading unit.

The changes in the number and class of issued stock and treasury stock for the year ended March 31, 2016, were as follows:

Shares in Thousands

Changes During the Year
As of March 31, 2015 Increase Decrease As of March 31,2016
Issued stock:
Common stock 333,250 — — 333,250
Total 333,250 — — 333,250

(2) Cash Dividends Per Share

Cash dividends per share for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, were as follows:

Year ended March 31, 2017

Dividends paid in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2017

The following cash dividend payments were approved at the Board of Directors’ meeting held on May 13, 2016, and November 14, 2016:

The amounts of dividends below were paid to shareholders recorded in the resister of shareholders of AHD at market closing time on March 31, 2016, or September 30,
2016.

Total Amount Per Share Amount
Cash dividends approved at the Board of Directors’ meeting held on May 13, 2016: (Millions of Yen) (Yen) Dividend Record Date  Effective Date
Common stock ¥1,499 ¥4.50 Mar. 31, 2016 Jun. 8,2016
Total Amount Per Share Amount
Cash dividends approved at the Board of Directors” meeting held on Nov. 14, 2016: (Millions of Yen) (Yen) Dividend Record Date  Effective Date
Common stock ¥1,832 ¥5.50 Sep. 30, 2016 Dec. 2, 2016
Total Amount
(Thousands of Per Share Amount
Cash dividends approved at the Board of Directors’ meeting held on May 13, 2016: U.S. Dollars) (U.S. Dollars) Dividend Record Date  Effective Date
Common stock $13,367 $0.04 Mar. 31, 2016 Jun. 8,2016
Total Amount
(Thousands of Per Share Amount
Cash dividends approved at the Board of Directors’ meeting held on Nov. 14, 2016: U.S. Dollars) (US. Dollars) Dividend Record Date  Effective Date
Common stock $16,337 $0.05 Sep. 30, 2016 Dec. 2,2016

Being paid by the Company before the business integration, the dividend whose record date is March 31, 2016, which is before the share exchange, is not included in the
changes in shareholder equity.

The Company conducted a share exchange whereby the Company became the wholly-owing parent company and Joyo became the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Com-
pany on October 1, 2016. In regard to the following dividend amount, the dividend payment resolved at Joyo’s ordinary general meeting of shareholders were paid by Joyo
to the shareholders recorded in the register of shareholders of Joyo at market closing time on March 31, 2016 and so the amount approved at Joyo's board meeting was
paid to those who were on the record as shareholders of Joyo at market closing time on September 30, 2016.

Total Amount Per Share Amount
Cash dividends approved at the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders held on Jun. 28, 2016: (Millions of Yen) (Yen) Dividend Record Date  Effective Date
Common stock ¥5,060 ¥7.00 Mar. 31, 2016 Jun. 29, 2016
Total Amount Per Share Amount
Cash dividends approved at the Board of Directors’ meeting held on Nov. 7, 2016: (Millions of Yen) (Yen) Dividend Record Date  Effective Date
Common stock ¥4,337 ¥6.00 Sep. 30, 2016 Dec. 2,2016
Total Amount
(Thousands of Per Share Amount
Cash dividends approved at the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders held on Jun. 28, 2016: U.S. Dollars) (U.S. Dollars) Dividend Record Date  Effective Date
Common stock $45,103 $0.06 Mar. 31,2016 Jun. 29, 2016
Total Amount
(Thousands of Per Share Amount
Cash dividends approved at the Board of Directors’ meeting held on Nov. 7, 2016: U.S. Dollars) (U.S. Dollars) Dividend Record Date  Effective Date
Common stock $38,662 $0.05 Sep. 30, 2016 Dec. 2,2016
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Dividends to be paid after March 31, 2017

Total Amount
Cash dividends approved at the Board of Directors’ meeting held on May 12, 2017: (Millions of Yen)

Per Share Amount
(Yen) Dividend Record Date  Effective Date

Common stock ¥7,655

¥6.50 Mar. 31, 2017 Jun. 5, 2017

Total Amount
(Thousands of

Per Share Amount

Cash dividends approved at the Board of Directors’ meeting held on May 12, 2017: U.S. Dollars) (US. Dollars) Dividend Record Date  Effective Date
Common stock $68,236 $0.06 Mar. 31, 2017 Jun. 5, 2017
0f the per share amount above, ¥1.00 ($0.01) is the amount of a commemorative dividend for the business integration.
Year ended March 31, 2016:
Dividends paid in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2016
The following cash dividend payments were approved at the Board of Directors” meeting held on May 13, 2015, and November 10, 2015:
Total Amount Per Share Amount
Cash dividends approved at the Board of Directors’ meeting held on May 13, 2015: (Millions of Yen) (Yen) Dividend Record Date  Effective Date
Common stock ¥1,499 ¥4.50 Mar. 31, 2015 Jun. 4, 2015
Total Amount Per Share Amount
Cash dividends approved at the Board of Directors’ meeting held on Nov. 10, 2015: (Millions of Yen) (Yen) Dividend Record Date  Effective Date
Common stock ¥1,832 ¥5.50 Sep. 30, 2015 Dec. 3, 2015
Dividends to be paid after March 31, 2016
Total Amount Per Share Amount
Cash dividends approved at the Board of Directors’ meeting held on May 13, 2016: (Millions of Yen) (Yen) Dividend Record Date  Effective Date
Common stock ¥1,499 ¥4.50 Mar. 31, 2016 Jun. 8, 2016
15.STOCK OPTIONS

The Company’s stock option plans grant options to directors and others to purchase certain shares of the Company’s common stock in the respective exercise periods.

Year ended March 31, 2017:

The Company recorded stock option expenses in “General and administrative expenses” of ¥83 million ($747 thousand) for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2017.

The stock options outstanding as of March 31, 2017, were as follows:

Number of Options Exercise
Stock Options Persons Granted Granted (Shares) Date of Grant Price Exercise Period
Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.
1st Series of Stock 10 directors of Joyo 16,833 24-Aug-09 ¥ Frt%mAS) cltj(;tt)%r41 2%%196
Acquisition Rights 9 '
Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.
2nd Series of Stock 10 directors of Joyo 23,634 21-Jul-10 yi From Qctoper % 2016,
Acquisition Rights y 21,
Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.
3rd Series of Stock 10 directors of Joyo 43,430 20-Jul-11 ¥ Fm,[g S)Jtog%r 120%?1 6,
Acquisition Rights v 2o
Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.
5th Series of Stock 10 directors of Joyo 42,024 19-Jul-12 yi From October % 2016,
Acquisition Rights vy 1o
Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.
6th Series of Stock 16 executive officers of Joyo 5,089 19-Jul-12 ¥ Fro;g ﬁto?gr 120321 6,
Acquisition Rights v 19,
Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.
7th Series of Stock 10 directors of Joyo 39,241 18-Jul-13 vy From Qctober % 2016,
Acquisition Rights v 1e,
Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.
8th Series of Stock 15 executive officers of Joyo 12,428 18-Jul-13 ¥1 Frog E&to?gr 120321 6,
Acquisition Rights v 16,
Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.
9th Series of Stock 10 directors of Joyo 40,656 18-Jul-14 yi From Qctober % 2016,
Acquisition Rights v 1e,
Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.
10th Series of Stock 14 execuive officers of Joyo 16,040 18-Jul-14 vi From October % 2016,
Acquisition Rights v 16,
Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.
11th Series of Stock 10 directors of Joyo 40,041 17-Jul-15 yr From Qctober % 2016,
Acquisition Rights Iz
Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.
12th Series of Stock 13 executive officers of Joyo 22,830 17-Jul-15 vi From October % 2016,
Acquisition Rights vz
Mebuki Financial Group, Inc. .
) ’ 29 directors of the Company, From December 7, 2016,
13th Series of Stock . 142,176 6-Dec-16 ¥
Acquisition Rights Joyo and Ashikaga to December 6, 2046
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Number of Options Exercise
Stock Options Persons Granted Granted (Shares) Date of Grant Price Exercise Period
Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.
14th Series of Stock 16 executive officers of Joyo 6-Dec-16 ¥ Fr?Onggg%rggf%7éggé6,
Acquisition Rights ’
6 directors and executive officers of the company
2009 Stock Option 10 directors and executive officers of Ashikaga 2,684,900 2Mar09  ¥s50  romMarch 2,207,
1,848 employees of Ashikaga '
6 directors and executive officers of the company
2010 Stock Option 10 directors and executive officers of Ashikaga 2,698,700 4-Jan-10 ¥550 From January 4, 2012,

1,878 employees of Ashikaga

to December 31, 2018

* As a result of the share exchange conducted between the Company and Joyo on October 1, 2016, stock acquisition rights of the Company were allotted to the holders of stock acquisition rights

of Joyo based on the share exchange ratio.

The stock option activity was as follows:

Mebuki FG
1st

Mebuki FG
2nd

Mebuki FG
3rd

Mebuki FG
5th

Year ended March 31, 2017
Non-vested (shares):
April 1, 2016 — Outstanding
Granted
Canceled
Vested
March 31, 2017 — Outstanding

Vested (shares):
April 1, 2016 — Outstanding
Vested
Exercised
Canceled
March 31, 2017 — Outstanding

Excise price

(Yen / US Dollars)

Average stock price at exercise
(Yen / US Dollars)

Fair value price at grant date
(Yen / US Dollars)

16,833

16,833

¥1
$0.01

¥417
$3.72

Mebuki FG
6th

23,634

23,634

¥1
$0.01

¥297
$2.65

Mebuki FG
7th

43,430

43,430

¥1
$0.01

¥300
$2.67

Mebuki FG
8th

42,024

42,024

¥
$0.01

¥310
$2.76

Mebuki FG
9th

Year ended March 31, 2017
Non-vested (shares):
April 1, 2016 — Outstanding
Granted
Canceled
Vested
March 31, 2017 — Outstanding

Vested (shares):
April 1, 2016 — Outstanding
Vested
Exercised
Canceled
March 31, 2017 — Outstanding

Excise price

(Yen / US Dollars)

Average stock price at exercise
(Yen / US Dollars)

Fair value price at grant date
(Yen / US Dollars)

5,089

5,089

¥1
$0.01

¥331
$2.95

39,241

39,241

¥1
$0.01

¥518
$4.62

12,428

12,428

¥1
$0.01

¥542
$4.83

40,656

40,656

¥
$0.01

¥500
$4.46
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Mebuki FG
10th

Mebuki FG
11th

Mebuki FG
12th

Mebuki FG
13th

For the year ended March 31, 2017
Non-vested (shares):
April 1, 2016 — Outstanding
Granted
Canceled
Vested
March 31, 2017 — Outstanding

Vested (shares):
April 1, 2016 — Outstanding
Vested
Exercised
Canceled
March 31, 2017 — Outstanding

Excise price

(Yen / US Dollars)

Average stock price at exercise
(Yen / US Dollars)

Fair value price at grant date
(Yen / US Dollars)

16,040

16,040

¥1
$0.01

¥525
$4.68

Mebuki FG
14th

40,041

40,041

¥1
$0.01

¥680
$6.06

2009 Stock
Option

22,830

22,830

¥
$0.01

¥708
$6.31

2010 Stock
Option

Year ended March 31, 2017
Non-vested (shares):
April 1, 2016 — Outstanding
Granted
Canceled
Vested
March 31, 2017 — Outstanding

Vested (shares):
April 1, 2016 — Outstanding
Vested
Exercised
Canceled
March 31, 2017 — Outstanding

Excise price

(Yen / US Dollars)

Average stock price at exercise
(Yen / US Dollars)

Fair value price at grant date
(Yen / US Dollars)

Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.

63,910

63,910

¥1
$0.01

¥374
$3.33

1,943,200
86,600

1,856,600

2,017,200
87,500

1,929,700

142,176

142,176

¥
$0.01

¥345
$3.08



The Assumptions Used to Measure Fair Value of Stock Option
Stock options received from Joyo and issued by the Company were valued using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model and the following principal parameters:

Mebuki FG Mebuki FG Mebuki FG Mebuki FG
1st 2nd 3rd 5th
Volatility of stock price*": 33.93% 33.00% 34.16% 32.54%
Estimated remaining outstanding period*2: 6 years 6 years 6 years 6 years
Estimated dividend*s: ¥8 per share ¥8 per share ¥8 per share ¥8 per share
Interest rate with risk freg**: 0.76% 0.45% 0.48% 0.26%
Mebuki FG Mebuki FG Mebuki FG Mebuki FG
6th 7th 8th 9th
Volatility of stock price*": 24.41% 33.56% 27.19% 30.90%
Estimated remaining outstanding period*?: 3 years 6 years 3 years 6 years
Estimated dividend*s: ¥8 per share ¥8.5 per share ¥8.5 per share ¥9 per share
Interest rate with risk freg**: 0.10% 0.38% 0.14% 0.19%
Mebuki FG Mebuki FG Mebuki FG Mebuki FG
10th 11th 12th 13th
Volatility of stock price*": 25.77% 25.64% 26.72% 29.13%
Estimated remaining outstanding period*2: 3 years 6 years 3 years 6 years
Estimated dividend*s: ¥9 per share ¥10 per share ¥10 per share ¥11 per share
Interest rate with risk freg**: 0.08% 0.14% 0.03% (0.08)%
Mebuki FG
14th
Volatility of stock price*": 30.89%
Estimated remaining outstanding period*?: 3 years
Estimated dividend*3: ¥11 per share
Interest rate with risk freg**: 0.15)%

*1. Volatility of stock price is calculated based on the actual stock price of Joyo during the period bellow.
Mebuki FG st : From August 22, 2003 to August 21, 2009
Mebuki FG 2nd : From July 21, 2004 to July 20, 2010
Mebuki FG 3rd  : From July 20, 2005 to July 19, 2011
Mebuki FG 5th  : From July 19, 2006 to July 18, 2012
Mebuki FG 6th : From July 21, 2009 to July 18, 2012
Mebuki FG 7th  : From July 18, 2007 to July 17, 2013
Mebuki FG 8th  : From July 20, 2010 to July 17,2013
Mebuki FG 9th  : From July 18, 2008 to July 17,2014
Mebuki FG 10th : From July 19, 2011 to July 17, 2014
Mebuki FG 11th : From July 17, 2009 to July 16, 2015
Mebuki FG 12th : From July 17,2012 to July 16, 2015
*2. Average tenure of retired directors and executive officers of Joyo
*3. Actual dividend payments conducted by Joyo just before each stock option was issued
*4. Yield of Japanese government bonds approximating the estimated remaining outstanding period at the time when Joyo issued each stock option
*5. Volatility of stock price is calculated based on the actual stock price of the Company during the period. Only a short time has passed since the business combination was conducted through a
share exchange between the Company and Joyo, during the period before the business combination was completed, volatility of stock price is calculated based on the actual stock price of a
similar publicly-traded company.
Mebuki FG 13th : From December 6, 2010 to December 5, 2016
Mebuki FG 14th : From December 6, 2013 to December 5, 2016
*6. Average tenure of retired directors and executive officers of Joyo and Ashikaga
*7. Estimated dividend of FY2017 (excluding a commemorative dividend)
*8. Yield of Japanese government bonds approximating the estimated remaining outstanding period

The Method Used to Estimate the Number of Stock Options Expected to Vest

Since it is difficult to rationally estimate the number of unexercised options in the future, a method of only reflecting actual unexercised options is adopted.

(2009 Stock Option and 2010 Stock Option)

As the Company was an unlisted company when stock option rights were granted, they were measured at their intrinsic value because the fair value of stock options can-
not be reliably estimated. The Company does not recognize relevant expenses, since their fair value on the date of grant was zero. The amounts of their intrinsic value as
of March 31, 2017, were nil.
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Year ended March 31, 2016:
The Company recorded stock option expenses in “General and administrative expenses” of nil for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2016.
The stock options outstanding as of March 31, 2016, were as follows:

Number of Options Exercise
Stock Options Persons Granted Granted (Shares)*! Price Exercise Period
6 directors and executive officers of the Company
' 10 directors and executive officers of the consolidated banking From March 1, 2011,

2009 Stock Option subsidiary 2,684,900 ¥550 to December 31, 2018

1,848 employees of the consolidated banking subsidiary

6 dirgctors and executivle officlers of the Company .
2010 Stock Option 10 directors and executive officers of the consolidated banking 2,698,700 550 From January 1, 2012,

subsidiary
1,878 employees of the consolidated banking subsidiary

to December 31, 2018

*1 On October 19, 2013, the Company made a stock split by way of a free share distribution at the rate of 0.01 shares for each outstanding common stock. All share amounts of options granted
in above table have been adjusted to reflect the stock split.

The stock option activity was as follows:

2009 Stock 2010 Stock
Option Option
For the year ended March 31, 2016
Non-vested (shares):

April 1, 2015 — Qutstanding 2,642,600 2,655,900
Granted — —
Canceled 699,400 638,700
Vested — —

March 31, 2016 — Outstanding 1,943,200 2,017,200

Vested (shares):

April 1, 2015 — Outstanding —

Vested
Exercised
Canceled

March 31, 2016 — Outstanding —

The Assumptions Used to Measure Fair Value of Stock Option
As the Company was an unlisted company when stock option rights were granted, they were measured at their intrinsic value because the fair value of the stock option

could not be reliably estimated. The Company does not recognize relevant expenses as their fair value on the date of grant was zero. The amounts of their intrinsic value
as of March 31, 2016, were nil.

The Method Used to Estimate the Number of Stock Options Expected to Vest
Since it is difficult to rationally estimate the number of unexercised options in the future, a method of only reflecting actual unexercised options is adopted.
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16. PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK

(1) Net income per share

Reconciliation of the differences between basic and diluted net income per share
(“EPS”) for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, was as follows:

18. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
General and administrative expenses for the years ended March 31, 2017 and
2016, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of  Thousands of Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
Yen Shares Yen U.S. Dollars 2017 2017
Net Income Salaries and allowanCes ...........ccooveveeeiieririinnan, ¥42,922 $382,585
Attributable ~ Weighted- - )
©Ownersof  Average Periodic benefit COStS ........ccovvriieiiiiiccces 5,956 53,093
the Parent Shares EPS ONBT o 49,209 438,630
Year Ended March 31, 2017 TOAl v ¥98,088 $874,308
Basic EPS —
Net income available to .
common shareholders ........... ¥158,455 ¥1,010,667 ¥156.78  $1.40 Millions of Yen
Effect of dilutive securities: : 2016
Salaries and allowances ............ccocoveveveeiierernrnnan, ¥20,165
Warrants ..........ccoeevvvveiiveennn, 380 o ;
Diluted EPS Amortization of goodWill ...........ccccevrrvrvvsiriiiennn, 6,202
ilute —
Net income OFNEN e 29,103
for computation............c....... ¥158,455 ¥1,011,047 ¥156.72  $1.40 Total ¥55,471
Year Ended March 31, 2016
Bl?lzitcirfcpo%e_available 19. OTHER EXPENSES
to common shareholders...... ¥22450 ¥ 333250 ¥ 67.37 Otherlexpenses for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, consisted of the
Effect of dilutive securities ... — — following:
. Thousands of
Dllllgj[[eigcgl:r;?e_ Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
for computation *'................. ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — _ 2017 2016 2001
Write-off amount of loans................... ¥ 3,940 ¥1,656 $ 35,122
*1. Since the average share price during the fiscal year did not exceed the exercise price
and the shares were not dilutive, diluted EPS is not shown because a decrease in net in- Lgtshse?r;:i?istigé stocks and 2211 980 19.714
come available to common shareholders as a result of dilution did not incur. Jrnmmm ’ ’
Loss on devaluation of stocks and
. other Securities ..., 46 8 411
(2) Total equity per share Loss on sales of 10aNS ...........vvvvvvvneen 232 110 2,075
Total equity per share as of March 31, 2017 and 2016, was as follows: Loss on disposal of fixed assefs........ 438 108 3.905
Yen U.S. Dollars IMPairment 10SSES™ ........vvvveerrerrirrees 1,463 50 13,046
, 2017 2016 2017 ONET oo 23,075 680 205,679
Total Gquity Per SHa.....vvcvrsso ¥73266  ¥90954  §6.53 TOtleeeseeeen ¥31,407  ¥3505  $279.952

Total equity per share as of March 31, 2017 and 2016, is calculated based on
the following:
Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2017 2016 2017
Total equUIty........ccocevvnnes ... ¥863,086 ¥303,105 $7,693,078
Deductions from total equity ............... 193 — 1,724
Total equity available
to common shareholders................... ¥862,892 ¥303,105 $7,691,354

Number of Shares in Thousands

2017 2016
Number of shares of common stock used in
computing total equity per
share at the year-end ............occceceviiiiiccvceennn, 1,177,751 333,250

17. OTHER INCOME
Other income for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, consisted of the

following:
Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2017 2016 2017

(Gain on sales of stock and
other securities .........ccocvvvevvviiinininn, ¥ 9902 ¥3,290 $ 88,268
Gain on disposal of fixed assets........... 6 — 57
Recoveries of write-off claims............. 2,688 524 23,962
(0111 TS 23,718 1,023 211,415
TOtal .o ¥36,316  ¥4,838 $323,702

*1 For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2017, impairment losses on long-lived assets were
recognized mainly on the properties of Bank’s branches in Tochigi and Ibaraki prefecture,
which were decided to be closed, as returns on investment cannot be realized. The com-
ponents of impairment losses by fixed assets for the years ended March 31, 2017 were
as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2017 2017
LANG Lo ¥470 $4,197
324 2,893
Equipment... 266 2,379
Leasehold.... 202 1,809
Buildings...... 198 1,769

Annual Report 2017

44



20. INCOME TAXES

The Group is subject to Japanese national and local income taxes which, in the
aggregate, resulted in a normal effective statutory tax rate of 30.86% and 32.8%
for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The tax effects of significant temporary differences and loss carry forwards
which result in deferred tax assets and liabilities as of March 31, 2017 and
2016, were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2017 2016 2017
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for loan losses............... ¥29,004 ¥14,440 $ 258,533
Write-offs of securities................... 13,217 11,592 117,813
Liability for retirement benefits ....... 12,832 3,493 114,382
Tax loss carryforwards.................... 1,779 1,593 15,864
Provision for employee bonuses ... 1,758 — 15,672
Depreciation............ccooeevvveiiiviennan, 1,104 — 9,841
Provision for reimbursement of
ABPOSIES .o 1,058 — 9,434
Other ..o 9,783 5,968 87,207
Subtotal deferred tax assets....... 70,538 37,087 628,745
Less valuation allowance................ (18,485)  (21,049) (164,771)
Total deferred tax assets ........... 52,053 16,038 463,974
Deferred tax liabilities:
Unrealized gains on available-
for-sale SeCUrities ...........ccoevrvenns (69,694) (19,697) (621,216)
Retirement benefit trust (4,467) — (39,822)
Reversal of allowance for loan
losses after elimination of
intercompany balances................. (22) — (203)
Property revaluations
in preparing consolidated
financial statements —_ (737) —
Other ..o . (7,669) (93) (68,362)
Total deferred tax liabilities ........ (81,854) (20,528) (729,603)
Net deferred tax liabilities ................... ¥(29,800) ¥ (4,490) $(265,629)

A reconciliation between the normal effective statutory tax rate and the ac-
tual effective tax rate reflected in the accompanying consolidated statement of
income for the year ended March 31, 2017, with the corresponding figures for
2016, was as follows:

2017 2016

Normal effective statutory tax rate.............cccevrrnrnns 30.86% 32.8 %
Gain on negative goodwill .............cccceeiiiriiiiiiiiiinns (21.71)

Change in valuation allowance................cccccevereninns (2.67) (19.0)
Dividends exempted from taxation..............cccccevene. (0.27) (13.4)
Expenses that are not deductible

for income tax PUrPOSES.......cvvvvvrereveirieireieicieiins 0.05 0.3
Effect of change in income tax rate — 5.7
Consolidation adjustments,

such as amortization of goodwill..............ccccevvenene — 19.6
Adjustments, such as residential tax

0N a per capita DASIS .....o.vvveveveiiiiieeeee — 0.3
Effect of consolidated tax payment.............c.ccoevevee. (0.4)
Other — Nt 0.18 0.3
Actual effective tax rate.........cocoevvviiiiiiiin, 6.44% 25.6%
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21.LEASES
The minimum rental commitments under noncancelable operating leases as of
March 31, 2017, were as follows:

Lessee
Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2017 2017
Due within 0ne Year ..........cccoevviviiiniiniiees ¥ 69 $ 622
Due after 0Ne Year .........c.coevveiiiiiciiceeeccias 156 1,398
TOMAl oo ¥226 $2,020
Lessor
Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2017 2017
Due Within 0N YBar ..........ccovvvreviierieceieians ¥ $16
DU after ONE YEar ........ccovvveeirieeceeeeeeieiins 3 34
TOMAl oo ¥5 $50

22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES
(1) Group Policies for Financial Instruments
(For the year ended March 31, 2017)
The Group provides financial services, centering on banking. As the central busi-
ness operation of the Group, the consolidated banking subsidiaries raise funds by
deposits as its basic function as a bank; the banking subsidiaries also procure
funds by call money transactions from short-term markets to maintain an ade-
quate degree of liquidity. The banking subsidiaries manage those funds through
lending to corporate customers and individuals, such as housing loans, investing
in securities, mainly bonds, and investing in money markets.

The Group utilizes Asset Liability Management (ALM) to avoid unfavorable
floating interest rate fluctuation of the financial assets and liabilities it holds. As a
part of ALM, the Group has entered into derivative transactions.

(For the year ended March 31, 2016)
The Group provides various financial services, centering on banking. The Compa-
ny is a bank-holding company and financed by subordinate debts to acquire
shares of the consolidated banking subsidiary, Ashikaga. As the central business
operation of the Group, the consolidated banking subsidiary raises funds by de-
posits as its basic function as a bank; the consolidated banking subsidiary also
procures funds by call money transactions from short-term markets to maintain
an adequate degree of liquidity. The consolidated banking subsidiary manages
those funds lending to corporate customers and individuals, such as mortgages
and investing securities, mainly bonds, and lending to counterparties in short-
term markets.

The Group utilizes ALM to avoid unfavorable floating interest rate fluctua-
tions of financial assets and liabilities it holds. As a part of ALM, the Group has
entered into derivative transactions.

(2) Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments
(For the year ended March 31, 2017)
The Group'’s financial assets are mainly loans made by the consolidated banking
subsidiaries to domestic corporations and individuals in Japan, which are ex-
posed not only to interest rate fluctuation risks, but also to customers’ credit
risks. Securities and investment securities, such as bonds, stocks, and invest-
ment trusts, are possessed to trade, to hold to maturity dates to generate stable
interest income and to promote business relationships with the issuers. These
securities are exposed to the issuers’ credit risks, interest rate fluctuation risks,
and market price fluctuation risks.

The Group’s main financial liabilities are deposits received by the consoli-
dated baking subsidiaries, which are exposed to interest rate fluctuation risks
and liquidity risks. Borrowed money and bonds are exposed to the risks that the



Group may not be able to repay them on their maturity dates if, under certain cir-
cumstances, the Group is not able to access to a capital market.

The consolidated banking subsidiaries utilize derivative transactions to
hedge the customers’ interest and currency risks and to control the interest rate
fluctuation risks in ALM. Derivatives transactions are utilized to hedge interest
rate fluctuation risks, foreign currency exchange rate fluctuation risks, and mar-
ket price fluctuation risks on the Group’s financial assets and liabilities. Deriva-
tives mainly include interest rate swaps, currency swaps, and bond futures, and
are exposed to the interest rate fluctuation risks, market price fluctuation risks,
foreign currency exchange rate fluctuation risks, and credit risks.

Hedge accounting is applied to certain derivatives.

In hedge transactions against foreign currency fluctuation rate risks, mainly
currency swaps and foreign exchange swaps, the effectiveness of hedging is
determined by confirming that amount of the hedging instruments is generally
consistent with that of the hedged items. Regarding an exceptional accounting
treatment in interest rate swaps, posttesting is conducted to confirm that re-
quirements for the treatment are satisfied.

Derivatives transactions to which hedge accounting is not applied are ex-
posed to interest rate fluctuation risks, foreign currency exchange rate fluctuation
risks, price fluctuation risks, and credit risks.

(For the year ended March 31, 2016)

The Group’s financial assets are mainly loans made by the consolidated banking
subsidiary to domestic corporations and individuals in Japan. These loans are
exposed to not only interest rate fluctuation risks, but also customers’ credit
risks. Securities and investment securities, such as bonds, stocks, and invest-
ment trusts, are held to their maturity dates to generate stable interest income to
promote business relationships with issuers. These securities are exposed to the
issuers’ credit risks, interest rate fluctuation risks, and market price fluctuation
risks.

The Group’s main financial liabilities are deposits received by the consoli-
dated banking subsidiary. These deposits are exposed to interest rate fluctuation
risks and liquidity risks. Subordinated debts raised by the Company and other
borrowed money raised by the consolidated banking subsidiary are exposed to
the risks that the Group may not be able to repay them on their maturity dates if,
under certain circumstances, the Group is not able to access to a capital market.

The consolidated banking subsidiary utilizes derivative transactions to hedge
the customers’ interest and currency risks, to control the interest rate fluctuation
risks in ALM, and to treat as the alternative way of on-balance-asset manage-
ment under the appropriate risk control. Derivatives mainly include interest rate
swaps, currency swaps, and bond futures, and are exposed to the interest rate
fluctuation risks, market price fluctuation risks, foreign currency exchange rate
fluctuation risks, and credit risks.

Hedge accounting is applied to certain derivatives that address currency ex-
change rate fluctuation risks.

The consolidated banking subsidiary applies deferral hedge accounting
based on the rules of the JICPA Industry Audit Committee Report No. 25 for
currency swaps and funding swaps used for the purpose of currency exchange.
Under deferral hedge accounting, hedged items are identified by grouping the
foreign currency-denominated financial assets and liabilities by currencies and
designating derivative transactions, such as currency swap transactions and
foreign exchange swaps, as hedging instruments. Hedge effectiveness is re-
viewed by comparing the total foreign currency position of the hedged items
and hedging instrument by currency.

In addition, the Company conducts interest rate swaps, whose purpose is to
offset the market fluctuations of securities held in “Available-for sale securities”
and uses deferred hedges. Regarding swaps that meet the requirements for the
special treatment of interest rate swaps, the Company continues to verify wheth-
er they meet special requirements with “posttesting.”

Derivative transactions to which hedge accounting is not applied are ex-
posed to interest rate fluctuation risks, foreign currency exchange rate fluctuation
risks, price fluctuation risks, and credit risks.

(3) Risk Management for Financial Instruments

(For the year ended March 31, 2017)

(a) Integrated Risk Management

The Group conducts integrated risk management to holistically control risks from
various financial assets and liabilities and risks related to the banking business.
More specifically, the periodically quantified risks of the Group are controlled so
as not to exceed Tier 1 capital allocated by each risk category. The bank assess-
es unquantifiable risks using stress tests and other measures.

(b) Credit Risk Management

The group has enacted “Group Guidelines for Credit Risk Management,” which
provides for basic policies comprising appropriate credit exposure management
on individual and portfolio bases. The portfolio-based credit exposure manage-
ment involves diversification of risks.

Credit risk management divisions have been segregated from the divisions
under business headquarters to achieve rigorous credit review, and conduct
monitoring of borrowers’ financial condition to prevent deterioration of loans.

In the self-assessments that evaluate the quality of assets, the business of-
fices categorize the borrowers based on credit ratings, which are then reviewed
by credit-related divisions in the headquarters. Furthermore, audit divisions ex-
amine results and process of the self-assessments for accuracy and adequacy.

As for credit risks of the issuers of securities and the counterparties of de-
rivatives transactions, global markets and market operation divisions monitor
credit information and market prices and gives the issuers and counterparties
credit ratings as well as carry out assessments of the issuers and counterparties
like general borrowers.

(c) Market Risk Management

(@ Market Risk Management Measures

The Group manages market risks by ALM. Risk management policies and proce-
dures are prescribed in relevant ALM rules and manuals, and these policies, de-
cided in ALM/Risk Management Committee and so forth, are closely monitored
and regularly discussed.

(@ Market Risk Quantitative information

(i) Banking Account

a. Interest Rate Risk

The Group adopts the variance-covariance method as the measurement method
(a holding period of six months, a confidence interval of 99%, and an observation
period of one year) for calculating VaR related to interest rate risk of loans and
bills discounted, domestic bonds, deposits, borrowed money, corporate bonds,
and derivatives such as interest rate swaps. The Group uses the historical simu-
lation method (a holding period of six months, a confidence interval of 99%, and
an observation period of five years) for the calculation of VaR related to interest
rate risk of foreign bonds, trust beneficiary right, market fund transaction, and
derivatives like interest rate swaps and currency swaps.

As of March 31, 2017, the Group’s VaR related to interest rate risks, which is
simple sum of its banking subsidiaries’ VaR, was ¥69,256 million ($617,312
thousand).

b. Price Fluctuation Risk

The Group adopts the historical simulation method (a holding period of six
months, a confidence interval of 99%, and an observation period of five years)
for calculating VaR related to price fluctuation risk of listed equities and invest-
ment trust.

As of March 31, 2017, the Group’s VaR related to price fluctuation risk,
which is simple sum of its banking subsidiaries’ VaR, was ¥130,317 million
($1,161,577 thousand). Correlation between interest rate risk and price fluctua-
tion risk has not been considered.

(ii) Trading Account
The Group adopts the historical simulation method (a holding period of ten days,
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a confidence interval of 99%, and an observation period of 5 years) for calculat-
ing VaR related to trading securities; trading purpose foreign exchange transac-
tions; and trading purpose derivatives, such as forward transactions and option
transactions. As of March 31, 2017, the Group’s VaR related to trading account,
which is simple sum of its banking subsidiaries’ VaR, was ¥11 million ($102
thousand).

(iii) Validity of VaR

The Group performs back testing to compare VaR calculated by its internal mea-
surement model with the actual profit and loss to confirm whether the model
captures market risks with sufficient accuracy. However, there could be cases in
which VaR cannot capture risks under sudden and dramatic changes in market
conditions beyond normal circumstances since VaR is statistically calculated
based on historical market fluctuation.

(d) Management of Liquidity Risk in Funding

Under “Group Liquidity Risk Management Rules,” the Group conducts financing
activities after fully analyzing its cash flows and strives to maintain the diversity
and stability of funding sources, while paying continuous attention to the balance
sheet structure, lines of credit provided to the Group, collateral management,
and costs to maintain the liquidity.

(For the year ended March 31, 2016)

(a) Credit risk management

The Group has implemented and operated a credit control system that includes
credit review of each individual loan application, establishing credit limits, man-
aging credit information, internal credit rating, securing adequate guarantees and
collaterals, and handling troubled loans. These credit control managements are
performed by the Credit Supervising Division | and the Credit Supervising Division
I, as well as at each banking office of the consolidated banking subsidiary. In
addition, these credit information and matters are regularly reported to and dis-
cussed by, the Credit Portfolio Meeting and the Board of Directors. The Internal
Audit Division monitors the status of credit management.

To monitor the credit risks of security issuers and counterparty risks of de-
rivatives, the International and Treasury Administration Division of the consolidat-
ed banking subsidiary regularly obtains and reviews relevant credit and fair value
information.

(b) Market risk management

@ Interest rate risk management

The Group manages risks of interest rate fluctuations by ALM. Risk management
policies and procedures are prescribed in relevant ALM rules and manuals, and
any policies decided to be implemented are closely monitored and regularly dis-
cussed in the ALM Meeting. The Company’s Risk Management Group in the
Business Administration Department maintains comprehensive information on in-
terest rates and durations of financials assets and liabilities, performs gap analy-
ses and the interest rate sensitive analyses, and reports monthly results at the
ALM Meeting. The Group utilizes derivative transactions, such as interest rate
swaps, to hedge the interest rate fluctuation risks.

@ Currency risk management

The International and Treasury Administration Division of the consolidated bank-
ing subsidiary manages the subsidiary’s foreign exchange positions and hedges
the risks of exchange rate fluctuations by using derivative transactions, such as
funding swaps.

® Price fluctuation risk management

The Group manages investment instruments, including securities, in accordance
with security investment and market risk management policies and procedures
after certain policies are determined in the ALM Meeting. The International and
Treasury Administration Division of the consolidated banking subsidiary reduces
the price fluctuation risks through advance screening, establishing investment
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limits, and constant monitoring. The Group holds most stocks for the purpose of
business promotion and regularly monitors financial conditions of issuers.

Such financial conditions of the issuers are regularly reported to the Board
of Directors and the ALM Meeting by the Risk Management Division and the In-
ternational and Treasury Administration Division.

The Risk Management Division and the International and Treasury Adminis-
tration Division monitor market risk quantity of derivative transactions relating to
securities, currencies, and interest rates using value at risk (VaR), and monitor
the Group’s compliance with the aforementioned policies and procedures.

@ Market risk quantitative information

Financial instruments exposed to major risk factors, such as interest rate risk and
price fluctuation risk, are mainly “Loans and bills discounted,” “Securities,” “De-
posits,” “Negotiable certificates of deposit,” “Subordinate debts of borrowed
money,” and “Derivatives.” The Group performs quantitative analysis on these fi-
nancial instruments held by the consolidated banking subsidiary and utilizes its
results to allocate risk capital and control market risks. The Company and sub-
sidiaries other than the consolidated banking subsidiary do not perform quantita-
tive analysis.

(i) Financial instruments held by the consolidated banking subsidiary
a. “Loans and bills discounted,” yen-denominated bonds of “Securities,” “Depos-
its,” and “Negotiable certificates of deposit”

The consolidated banking subsidiary classifies its financial assets and financial li-
abilities into a fixed-interest rate group and a floating interest rate group in its
quantitative analysis. In each group, the financial assets and liabilities are disag-
gregated by each interest due date and analyzed effects of interest fluctuations
by period. If all risk factors, other than the interest rate, are constant and the in-
terest rate is assumed to increase by 10 basis points (0.10%), the net fair value
of financial assets after offsetting with financial liabilities decreases by ¥72 mil-
lion. As previously mentioned, this net fair value amount is obtained assuming
that all risk factors are constant, except for the interest rate, and no correlation
between the interest rate and other risk factors was considered. If the interest
rate fluctuates more than 10 basis points (0.10%), the impact may be greater
than the net fair value amount above.

The consolidated banking subsidiary considers those liquid deposits of “De-
posit” that have no activities for certain periods as “core” deposits and manages
the interest rate risk by categorizing them into maturity periods of up to 10 years.

b. Other financial instruments

The Group performs quantitative analysis using VaR. For the calculation of VaR,
the consolidated banking subsidiary uses the variance-covariance method (hold-
ing period: appropriate period depends on the nature of the instruments from one
month to six months, confidence interval: 99.9% (stocks held to promote busi-
ness relationships with issuers only are 99.0%), and observation period: one
year). The simple aggregated VaR of each instrument is ¥55,631 million as of
March 31, 2016.

The Group carries out backtesting to compare the VaR calculated based on
the above model, with hypothetical profits and losses calculated assuming that
all positions were fixed at the point of the risk amount measurement. It should be
noted that VaR measures the amount of market risk at certain probability levels
statistically calculated based on historical market fluctuations; therefore, there
may be cases where market risks cannot be captured in such situations when
market conditions are changing dramatically beyond what was historically experi-
enced.

(ii) Financial instruments held by the Company and subsidiaries other than the
consolidated banking subsidiary

Financial instruments held by the Company and subsidiaries other than the con-

solidated banking subsidiary, which are affected by interest rate risk, are subor-

dinate debts of “Borrowed money.” If all risk factors, other than the interest rate,

are constant, the fair value of the financial liabilities decreases by ¥235 million



when the interest rate increases by 10 basis points (0.10%). As previously men-
tioned, this fair value amount is obtained assuming that all risk factors are con-
stant, except for the interest rate, and no correlation between the interest rate
and other risk factors was considered. If the interest rate fluctuates more than 10
basis points (0.10%), the impact may be greater than the fair value amount
above.

(c) Liquidity risk management

The Group carries out adequate timely cash management through the ALM
Meeting, and also manages liquidity risks by diversifying financing methods and
balancing long-term and short-term funding with the consideration of market en-
vironment.

(4) Supplementary Explanation on Fair Values of Financial Instrument
The fair values of financial instruments are based on their market prices and, in
cases, where market prices are not readily available, reasonably calculated pric-
es. Such prices have been calculated using certain assumptions and may differ if
calculated based on different assumptions.

(5) Fair Values of Financial Instruments
(For the year ended March 31, 2017)
(a) Fair value of financial instruments

Millions of Yen
Unrealized
Carrying Gains
March 31,2017 Amount  Fair Value (Losses)

(1) Cash and due from banks...................... ¥ 1,393,762 ¥ 1,393,762 ¥ —
(2) Securities:

Held-to-maturity securities...................... 139,385 138,705 (680)
Available-for-sale securities..................... 4,036,244 4,036,244 —
(3) Loans and bills discounted.... . 10,244,730
Allowance for loan 10SSes*" ..........c..co...... (72,767)
NEL. oo 10,171,962 10,283,426 111,464
Total @SSELS ...vvvvvvevecii e ¥15,741,355 ¥15,852,138  ¥110,783
(1) DBPOSIES ..o, ¥13,507,047 ¥13508,898 ¥ (1,850)
(2) Negotiable certificates of deposit............. 284,705 284,757 (52)
(3) Call money and bills sold ............c.ccovee. 303,312 303,312 —
(4) Payables under securities lending
transactions .........cccceevvvviveveiiiiiean, 167,640 167,640 —
(5) Borrowed money........cccoovvveerennicnnnns 735593 736,548 (955)
Total liabilities ¥14,998,299 ¥15,001,158 ¥ (2,858)
Derivative instruments* :
Hedge accounting is not applied... . 1,754 ¥ 1,754 ¥ —
Hedge accounting is applied................... (475) (475) —

Total derivative inStruments ............cccceevenee ¥ 1279 ¥ 12719 ¥ @ —

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Carrying Unrealized
March 31,2017 Amount  Fair Value Gains
(1) Cash and due from banks..........c............ $ 12423232 § 12423232 § —
(2) Securities:
Held-to-maturity securities..........c..o.o...... 1,242,409 1,236,341 (6,068)
Available-for-sale securities..................... 35,976,866 35,976,366 -
(3) Loans and bills discounted...................... 91,315,896
Allowance for loan l0sses*" ..................... (648,613)
NEL. oo 90,667,283 91,660,812 993,529
Total @SSetS ...vvevevieiiceece $140,309,790 $141,297,251 $987,461
(1) DEPOSIES ..o oo $120,394,402 $120,410,895  §$ 16,493
(2) Negotiable certificates of deposit............. 2,537,706 2,538,175 469
(3) Call money and bills S0ld ............covvene. 2703564 2,703,564 -
(4) Payables under securities lending
transactions .........ccevvvvveeeiceien, 1,494,252 1,494,252 —
(5) Borrowed MoneY........cccovvverveeerrinnnns 6,556,676 6,565,193 8,516
Total liabilities $133,686,600 $133,712,078 $ 25,478
Derivative instruments* :
Hedge accounting is not applied.............. $ 15641 % 15641 § —
Hedge accounting is applied.................... (4,234) (4,234) -
Total derivative inStruments .........c..cccocewne $ 1407$% 11407 § —

*1 Allowances for loan losses relevant to loans and bills discounted have been deducted.

*2 Derivative instruments recorded as trading assets, trading liabilities, other assets and oth-
er liabilities include derivative transactions. Derivative instruments are presented as net of
assets and liabilities associated with derivative transactions.

Assets

(1) Cash and due from banks

The fair values of these items approximate the carrying amount, which are
deemed to be the fair value.

(2) Securities
The fair values of marketable equity securities are measured at the quoted
market price of the stock exchange for equity instruments. Fair values of bonds
are measured at the market price or the quoted price obtained from financial
institutions. Fair values of investment trusts are measured at the quoted price.
The fair values of private placement bonds are determined by discounting
future cash flows. The discount rates used in the calculation were calculated
based on the bankruptcy probability by credit rating and the coverage ratio of
each claim.
We treat market prices as fair values for floating-rate Japanese Government
Bonds and securitized products.

(3) Loans and bills discounted

The carrying amounts of loans and bills discounted with floating-interest rates
approximate fair value as long as customers’ credit risks have not changed
significantly after lending because the market rates are promptly reflected in the
floating interest rates.

The fair values of loans and bills discounted with fixed-interest rates are
determined by discounting the principal and interest amount with the interest
rate used for new loans for each category of loan calculated based on the
bankruptcy probability by credit rating and the coverage ratio of each claim,
internal credit rating, and loan period. The carrying amounts of loans and bills
discounted with maturity less than one year approximate fair value because of
their short maturities.

For loans to obligors classified as “legal bankruptcy,” “virtual bankruptcy,”
and “possible bankruptcy,” an allowance is provided based on the discounted
cash flow method or based on amounts expected to be collected through the
disposal of collateral or execution of guarantees. The carrying value, net of the
allowance, as of the consolidated balance sheet date is a reasonable estimate of
the fair values of those loans.

”
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The carrying amounts of loans and bills discounted that do not have fixed
maturities due to loan characteristics, such as limited loan amounts within the
value of pledged assets, approximate fair value due to their expected repayment
periods and interest rate conditions.

Liabilities

(1) Deposits

The fair values of demand deposits are recognized as the payment at the date of
the consolidated balance sheet. The fair values of time deposits are determined
by discounting the contractual cash flows grouped by the remaining duration at
the rates that would be applied for similar new contracts.

(2) Negotiable certificates of deposit
Refer to (1) Deposits.

(3) Call money and bills sold
The carrying amounts of call money and bills sold approximate fair value because
they have maturities of one year or less.

(4) Payables under securities lending transactions
Refer to (3) Call money and bills sold.

(5) Borrowed Money

The fair value of borrowed money is discounted at the rate that would be applied

for similar new contracts. The carrying amount of borrowed money with maturity

of less than one year approximates fair value because of its short maturity period.

Derivatives
See “Note 23. DERIVATIVES.”

(b) Carrying amount of financial instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably
determined
Thousands of

(For the year ended March 31, 2016)
(a) Fair value of financial instruments

Millions of Yen

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2017 2017
Equity securities without readily
available market price*™? ... .. ¥4323 $ 38,536
Investments in partnerships™ ...........cccovvcvevrvrnnns 10,727 95,621
TOMAl Lo ¥15,051 $134,157

*1 Equity securities without readily available market prices are out of the scope of the fair
value disclosure because their fair values cannot be reliably determined.

*2 During the year ended March 31, 2017, impairment losses on equity securities without
readily available market price of ¥46 million ($411 thousand) was recognized.

*3 Investments in partnerships, the assets of which comprise equity securities without readi-
ly available market price, are out of the scope of the fair value disclosure.
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Carrying Unrealized
March 31,2016 Amount  Fair Value Gains
(1) Cash and due from banks..........c............ ¥ 437509 ¥ 437509 ¥ —
(2) Call loans and bills bought.. . 414 414 —
(3) Monetary claims bought*'............ccc.o..... 7,604 7,604 —
(4) Trading account securities :
Securities held for trading purposes....... 3,596 3,596 —
(5) Securities:
Held-to-maturity securities...................... 88,788 102,628 13,840
Available-for-sale securities. . 1205419 1205419 —
(6) Loans and bills discounted............c.coo.... 4,235,174
Allowance for loan l0sses*" .............c....... (40,564)
NEL. oo 4194609 4242480 47870

Total assets ¥5937,942 ¥5999,653  ¥61,710

(1) Deposits ¥5,206,700 ¥5,209,198 ¥ 2,497

(2) Negotiable certificates of deposit............. 174878 174921 42
(3) Call money and bills sold ...........cccc.ovn... 78,000 78,000 —
(4) Payables under securities lending
transactions .........coevvvvvveeeiiiien, 25,263 25,263 —
(5) Borrowed money.........cccovvveriereiniinnen 251,726 252,869 1,142
Total liabilities .........cvveveeiiiceeeeccae ¥5,736,569 ¥5740,252 ¥ 3,682
Derivative instruments*? :
Hedge accounting is not applied.............. ¥ 608 ¥ 608 ¥ —
Hedge accounting is applied.................... (3,120) (3,126) —

Total derivative instruments ¥ 2517) ¥ (2517) ¥ —

*1 Allowances for loan losses relevant to loans and bills discounted have been deducted.
Allowances for loan losses relevant to monetary claims bought are excluded from the
consolidated balance sheet amounts directly due to its immateriality.

*2 Derivative instruments include derivative transactions both in other assets and liabilities.
Derivative instruments are presented as net of assets and liabilities associated with deriv-
ative transactions.

Assets

(1) Cash and due from banks

The carrying amounts of due from banks with no maturities approximate fair
values. For due from banks with maturities, the carrying amounts approximate
fair values because they have short maturities of one year or less.

(2) Call loans and bills bought

The carrying amounts of call loans and bills bought and monetary claims bought
approximate fair values because they have short contract terms of one year or
less.

(3) Monetary claims bought
Refer to (2) Call loans and bills bought.

(4) Trading account securities
The fair values of securities held-for-trading purposes are measured at the
market price or the quoted price obtained from financial institutions.

(5) Securities
The fair values of marketable equity securities are measured at the quoted
market price of the stock exchange for equity instruments. Fair values of bonds
are measured at the market price or the quoted price obtained from financial
institutions. Fair values of investment trusts are measured at the quoted price.
The fair values of private placement bonds are determined by discounting
future cash flows at the rate that consists of the risk-free rate and the credit risk
premium that corresponds to the internal credit rating.



(6) Loans and bills discounted

The carrying amounts of loans and bills discounted with floating interest rates
approximate fair value as long as customers’ credit risks have not changed
significantly after lending because the market rates are promptly reflected in the
floating interest rates.

The fair values of loans and bills discounted with fixed-interest rates are
determined by discounting the principal and interest amount with the interest
rate used for new loans for each category of loan, internal credit rating, and loan
period. The carrying amounts of loans and bills discounted with maturity less
than one year approximate fair value because of their short maturities.

For loans to obligors classified as “legal bankruptcy,” “virtual bankruptcy,”
and “possible bankruptcy,” a reserve is provided based on the discounted cash
flow method or based on amounts expected to be collected through the disposal
of collateral or execution of guarantees. The carrying value, net of the reserve, as
of the consolidated balance sheet date is a reasonable estimate of the fair values
of those loans.

The carrying amounts of loans and bills discounted that do not have fixed
maturities due to loan characteristics, such as limited loan amounts within the
value of pledged assets, approximate fair value due to their expected repayment
periods and interest rate conditions.

Liabilities

(1) Deposits

The fair values of demand deposits are recognized as the payment at the date of
the consolidated balance sheet. The fair values of time deposits and negotiable
certificates of deposits are determined by discounting the contractual cash flows
grouped by the remaining duration at the rates that would be applied for similar
new contracts.

(2) Negotiable certificates of deposit
Refer to (1) Deposits.

(3) Call money and bills sold
The carrying amounts of call money and bills sold approximate fair values
because they have short maturities of one year or less.

(4) Payables under securities lending transactions
Refer to (3) Call money and bills sold.

(5) Borrowed Money

The fair value of borrowed money with fixed interest rates is determined by
discounting the principal and interest amount grouped by the remaining duration
at the rate that would be applied for similar new contracts. The carrying amount
of borrowed money with maturity of less than one year approximates fair value
because of its short maturity period.

Derivatives
See “Note 23. DERIVATIVES.”

(b) Carrying amount of financial instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably
determined

Millions of Yen

2016
Equity securities without readily
available market price*™3 ..o, ¥1,423
Investments in partnerships™ ..........c.coevevveerenen. 1,138
TOAl v ¥2,561

*1 Equity securities without readily available market price are out of the scope of the fair val-
ue disclosure because their fair values cannot be reliably determined.

*2 Investments in partnerships, the assets of which comprise equity securities without readi-
ly available market price, are out of the scope of the fair value disclosure.

*3 During the years ended March 31, 2016, impairment losses on equity securities without
readily available market price of ¥8 million was recognized.
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(6) Maturity Analysis for Financial Assets and Liabilities with Contractual Maturities

Millions of Yen
Duein 1 Year Due after 1 Year Due after 3 Years Due after 5 Years Due after 7 Years

March 31,2017 or Less through 3 Years through 5 Years through 7 Years through 10 Years Due after 10 Years
Due from banks .........ccccovvvviiiiviiiiiiiees ¥1,268,298 ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ —
SECUMHES: ©.vvvvicceee e 361,435 833,882 643,062 367,724 606,278 347,886
Held-to-maturity Securities........ccoovvvvveveveinnns 14,407 27,093 32,771 1,085 1,022 50,000
Japanese national government bonds......... — 7,000 18,000 —_ — 50,000
Japanese local government bonds ............. — 200 50 —_ — —_
Japanese corporate bonds.............ccceceene 14,407 19,893 14,721 1,085 1,022 —_

Available-for-sale securities

with contractual maturities.............c..cccoevevee. 347,028 806,788 610,290 366,639 605,256 297,886
Japanese national government bonds......... 205,000 395,300 214,500 25,000 108,600 60,000
Japanese local government bonds ............. 49,497 104,546 121,618 139,543 193,048 8,655
Japanese corporate bonds......................... 43,749 123,563 133,213 84,183 69,635 149,368
Foreign currency bonds 44,886 146,694 112,716 98,020 207,062 71,982
Other....ccccovvvvverennn, 3,894 36,683 28,241 19,891 26,909 7,880
Loans and bills discounted*' 2,235,506 1,788,224 1,390,264 872,298 980,891 2,622,773

¥3,865,240 ¥2,622,106 ¥2,033,326 ¥1,240,023 ¥1,587,169 ¥2,970,659

Millions of Yen
Duein 1 Year Due after 1 Year Due after 3 Years Due after 5 Years Due after 7 Years
March 31,2016 or Less through 3 Years through 5 Years through 7 Years through 10 Years ~ Due after 10 Years
Due from DankS .........cocvveeiiiiiieccc e ¥ 377,621 ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ —
Call loans and bills bought............ccccceiirciinnn. 414 — — — — —
Monetary claims Dought.........c.oovvveiiiiiiieinns 7,627 — — — — —
SECUMHES: v 107,987 176,411 141,470 70,440 242,151 199,380
Held-to-maturity SeCUrities ..........cccovvvvivcvine 14,000 2,000 23,000 — — 50,000
Japanese national government bonds......... — — 23,000 — — 50,000
Japanese corporate bonds....................... — 2,000 — — — —
ONBT . 14,000 - — — — —
Available-for-sale securities
with contractual maturities.............ccccevvennnn. 93,987 174,411 118,470 70,440 242,151 149,380
30,000 30,000 25,000 45,000 20,000 100,000
18,981 42,979 34,669 8,730 137,616 —
38,625 53,529 18,954 1,397 37,424 49,380
6,380 47,902 39,846 15,313 47,111 —
983,209 719,915 557,710 362,221 402,033 1,042,697
¥1,476,861 ¥896,326 ¥699,180 ¥432,661 ¥644,185 ¥1,242,077

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Duein 1 Year Due after 1 Year Due after 3 Years Due after 5 Years Due after 7 Years

March 31,2017 or Less through 3 Years through 5 Years through 7 Years through 10 Years Due after 10 Years
DUE from DANKS ......vovveeecceeee e $11,304,912 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
SECUMHES: ©.vvvvieicee e 3,221,640 7,432,769 5,731,906 3,277,695 5,404,036 3,100,871
Held-to-maturity Securities...........cccovvevvevevenns 128,421 241,498 292,110 9,671 9,114 445,673
Japanese national government bonds......... —_ 62,394 160,442 —_ —_ 445,673
Japanese local government bonds ............. —_ 1,783 446 —_ —_ —
Japanese corporate bonds.............cccceeene. 128,421 177,322 131,222 9,671 9,114 —

Available-for-sale securities

with contractual maturities.............c.cccceevevee. 3,093,218 7,191,270 5,439,796 3,268,024 5,394,922 2,655,198
Japanese national government bonds......... 1,827,257 3,523,487 1,911,935 222,836 968,001 534,807
Japanese local government bonds ............. 441,195 931,868 1,084,042 1,243,816 1,720,732 77,147
Japanese corporate bonds......................... 389,961 1,101,381 1,187,395 750,366 620,688 1,331,390
Foreign currency bonds ..o 400,095 1,307,558 1,004,697 873,704 1,845,641 641,610
OtNBI v 34,710 326,977 251,727 177,300 239,860 70,244
Loans and bills discounted*™'............c.cccccvvrernnee. 19,926,076 15,939,252 12,392,050 7,775,193 8,743,125 23,377,958
TOtal oo $34,452,628 $23,372,021 $18,123,956 $11,052,888 $14,147,161 $26,478,828

*1 As of March 31, 2017, loans and bills discounted with no contractual maturities amounting to ¥200,924 million ($1,790,932 thousand) and loans and bills discounted whose cash flow cannot
be estimated, such as “legal bankruptcy,” “virtual bankruptcy,” and “possible bankruptcy” loans, amounting to ¥153,847 million ($1,371,310 thousand) are not included.

*2 As of March 31, 2016, loans and bills discounted with no contractual maturities amounting to ¥114,900 million and loans and bills discounted whose cash flow cannot be estimated, such as
“legal bankruptcy,” “virtual bankruptcy,” and “possible bankruptcy” loans, amounting to ¥63,828 million are not included.
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Millions of Yen

Duein 1 Year Due after 1 Year Due after 3 Years Due after 5 Years Due after 7 Years
March 31,2017 or Less through 3 Years through 5 Years through 7 Years through 10 Years Due after 10 Years
DBPOSIS *T .o ¥12,402,723 ¥964,401 ¥126,609 ¥9,161 ¥4,152 ¥—
Negotiable certificates of deposit............cccccvvvvnn. 284,605 100 —_ —_ —_ —
Call money and bills SOId ............cvoveveveviirirnnnn, 303,312 — — — — —
Payables under securities lending transactions ... 167,640 —_ — — — —
BOrrowed MONBY........ccvvevevririiicicceeecceias 502,373 156,360 76,833 12 12 —
TOMAl oo ¥13,660,655 ¥1,120,862 ¥203,443 ¥9,173 ¥4,164 ¥—

Millions of Yen

Duein 1 Year Due after 1 Year Due after 3 Years Due after 5 Years Due after 7 Years
March 31,2016 or Less through 3 Years through 5 Years through 7 Years through 10 Years  Due after 10 Years
DBPOSIES *™ ..o ¥4,752,916 ¥382,418 ¥ 69,441 ¥733 ¥1,192 ¥—
Negotiable certificates of depoSit...............ccvveee. 174,878 — — — — —
BOrrowed MOney........ccccvvviiiriiiiiciecces 62,014 118,110 71,602 — — —
Tl oo ¥4,989,810 ¥500,528 ¥141,043 ¥733 ¥1,192 ¥—

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Duein 1 Year Due after 1 Year Due after 3 Years Due after 5 Years Due after 7 Years
March 31,2017 or Less through 3 Years through 5 Years through 7 Years through 10 Years ~ Due after 10 Years
DBPOSIS *T .o $110,551,062 $8,596,149 $1,128,525 $81,657 $37,009 ¥—
Negotiable certificates of deposit.............c.co.o..... 2,536,814 891 —_ —_ — —
Call money and bills SOId...........ccoereiirriiicins 2,703,564 —_ —_ —_ —_ —_
Payables under securities lending transactions .... 1,494,252 — — — — —
Borrowed money 4,477,881 1,393,716 684,856 112 112 —
TOtal oo $121,763,572 $9,990,756 $1,813,381 $81,769 $37,121 ¥—

*1 The cash flow of demand deposits is included in “Due in one year or less.”

23. DERIVATIVES

(1) Derivative Transactions to Which Hedge Accounting Is Not Applied at March 31,2017 and 2016
With respect to derivatives to which hedge accounting is not applied, contract amount or notional principal, fair value and the related valuation gains (losses) at the fiscal
year end date by transaction type and valuation method of fair value are as follows. Note that contract amounts do not represent the market risk exposure associated with

derivatives.

Consolidated banking subsidiaries had the following derivative contracts, which were quoted on listed exchanges, outstanding as of March 31, 2017 and 2016, as
follows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Contract Amount Contract Amount
Contract Due after Fair Unrealized Contract Due after Fair Unrealized
March 31,2017 Amount One Year Value Gains/Losses Amount One Year Value Gains/Losses
Bond-related transactions
Bond futures:
SO v ¥2,553 _ ¥ (1) ¥ (1) $22,762 $(10) $(10)
BOUgNt ... — — — — — — —
TOtal .o — — ¥ (1) ¥ (1) — $(10) $(10)
Millions of Yen
Contract Amount
Contract Due after Fair Unrealized
March 31,2016 Amount One Year Value Gains/Losses
Bond-related transactions
Bond futures:

SO e ¥3,465 — ¥(14) ¥(14)

Bought......ccoovviiiiicccceiec 453 — — —
TOtal v — — ¥(14) ¥(14)
Note: 1 The transactions above are stated at fair value and the related valuation gains (losses) are reported in the consolidated statement of income.

2 Fair values of transactions above are determined based on closing prices at the Osaka Exchange or other relevant exchanges.
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Consolidated banking subsidiaries had the following derivative contracts, which were not quoted on listed exchanges, outstanding as of March 31, 2017 and 2016, as fol-

lows:

Millions of Yen

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Contract Amount

Contract Amount

Contract Due after Fair Unrealized Contract Due after Fair Unrealized
March 31,2017 Amount One Year Value Gains/Losses Amount One Year Value Gains/Losses
Interest rate-related transactions
Interest rate swaps:
Receive fixed and pay floating...... ¥106,628 ¥87,406 ¥1,629 ¥1,629 $ 950,426 $ 779,092 $14,524 $14,524
Receive floating and pay fixed..... 106,628 87,406 (296) (296) 950,426 779,092 (2,643) (2,643)
Swaptions:
SOl o 2,030 —_ (1) 9 18,094 —_ (10) 88
Bought ....ovvvccii 2,030 — 1 1 18,094 —_ 10 10
Total v — — ¥1,332 ¥1,343 — — $11,881 $11,979
Currency-related transactions
CUITeNCY SWAPS.......vovvveivieiiiiieis ¥276,519 ¥181,614 ¥ 393 ¥ 393 $2,464,740 $1,618,811 $ 3,510 $ 3,510
Forward exchange contracts:
45,875 4,937 (1,048) (1,048) 408,911 44,012 (9,345) (9,345)
46,771 4,191 1,064 1,064 416,895 37,357 9,486 9,486
70,344 37,363 (1,941) (484) 627,015 333,037 (17,305) (4,322)
70,344 37,363 1,954 1,223 627,015 333,037 17,424 10,904
— — ¥ 422 ¥1,148 — — $ 3,770 $10,233
Millions of Yen
Contract Amount
Contract Due after Fair Unrealized
March 31,2016 Amount One Year Value Gains/Losses
Interest rate-related transactions
Interest rate swaps:
Receive fixed and pay floating...... ¥ 6,000 ¥ 6,000 ¥ 30 ¥ 30
Receive floating and pay fixed...... 6,000 6,000 58 58
Total .o — — ¥ 88 ¥ 88
Currency-related transactions
CUITENCY SWAPS.......veveviieeeeciiirnas ¥194,402 ¥160,906 ¥311 ¥311
Forward exchange contracts:
SO 1o 5,650 135 188 188
Bought ..o 14,651 — 33 33
TOtal v — — ¥534 ¥534

Note: 1 The transactions above are stated at fair value and the related valuation gains (losses) are reported in the consolidated statement of income.
2 Fair values of transactions above are determined based on a discounted cash flows model, an option pricing model or other models as appropriate.
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(2) Derivative Transactions to Which Hedge Accounting is Applied at March 31, 2017 and 2016
With respect to derivatives to which hedge accounting is applied, contract amount or notional principal and fair value at the fiscal year end date by transaction type and
hedge accounting method and valuation method of fair value are as follows. Note that contract amounts do not represent the market risk exposure associated with deriva-
tives.

Consolidated banking subsidiaries had the following derivative contracts, which were accounted for based on principle method, outstanding as of March 31, 2017
and 2016, as follows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Contract Amount Contract Amount
Contract Due after Fair Contract Due after Fair
March 31,2017 Hedged ltem Amount One Year Value Amount One Year Value
Interest rate-related transactions*'**
Interest rate swaps:
Interest-bearing financial assets
and liabilities, including loans,
available-for-sale securities,
deposits and negotiable
Receive floating and pay fixed...... certificates of deposit, etc. ¥ 40,000 ¥30,000 ¥(543) $ 356,538 $267,404 $(4,844)
TOtal oo — — ¥(543) — — $(4,844)
: *Dx5
Currency-related transactions Loans, securities, deposits,
CUITENCY SWAPS.....vevvvvevererrreereias foreign exchanges, etc., which ¥161,342 ¥84,642 ¥ (58) $1,438,122 $754,454 $ (524)
Forward exchange contracts ............ are denominated in foreign 103,102 — 825 919,000 — 7,357
OIS vvvvvvvvveeeeeseeeeeeeeee s currencies 79,207 — (722) 706,009 = (6,440)
TOtal oo — — ¥ 44 — — $ 393
Equity-related transactions***6
Stock forward contracts . Available-for-sale securities ¥ 4,473 ¥ — ¥ 24 $ 39874 $ — $ 216
TOtal v, — — ¥ 24 — — $ 216

Note: 1. Interest rate-related transactions are primarily accounted for using the deferral method in accordance with “Accounting and Auditing Treatment relating to the Adoption of ‘Accounting

for Financial Instruments’ for Banks” (JICPA Industry Audit Committee Report No. 24, February 13, 2002).

2. Currency-related transactions are primarily accounted for using the deferral method in accordance with “Accounting and Auditing Treatment relating to Accounting for Foreign Currency
Transactions in the Banking Industry” (JICPA Industry Audit Committee Report No. 25, July 29, 2002).

3. Equity-related transactions are accounted for using the deferral method.

4. Fair values of exchange-traded transactions are determined based on closing prices at the Tokyo Financial Exchange or other relevant exchanges. Fair values of over-the-counter traded
transactions are determined based on a discounted cash flows model, an option pricing model or other models as appropriate.

5. Fair value is determined based on a discounted cash flows model.

6. Fair value is determined based on prices provided by correspondent financial institutions.

Millions of Yen
Contract Amount
Contract Due after Fair
March 31,2016 Hedged Item Amount One Year Value

Interest rate-related transactions
Interest rate swaps:
Receive floating and pay fixed......Bonds (available-for-sale securities) ¥50,000 ¥50,000 ¥(5,691)

Total o — — ¥(5,691)
Currency-related transactions
CUITENCY SWAPS.....veveevereiieireeiias Loans, deposits, due from banks,
etc., which are denominated in ¥45,072 ¥45,072 ¥ 803
Forward exchange contracts ............ foreign currencies 43,156 — 1,761
TOtal v — — ¥ 2,564

Note: 1 These derivatives are accounted for using deferred hedge accounting.
2 Fair values of transactions above are determined based on a discounted cash flow model.

One consolidated banking subsidiary had the following derivative contracts, which were accounted for by the exceptional accrual method, outstanding as of March
31,2017,

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Contract Amount Contract Amount
Contract Due after Fair Contract Due after Fair
March 31,2017 Hedged Item Amount One Year Value Amount One Year Value
Interest rate-related transactions
Interest rate swaps:
Receive fixed and pay floating......Loans and borrowed money ¥ 2,000 ¥ — ¥ 2 $ 17,827 $ — $ 187
Receive floating and pay fixed...... 24,016 18,594 (852) 214,071 165,740 (7,598)
R0 I — — ¥(831) = —  $@7,411)

Note: The exceptional accrual method of hedge accounting, as specifically permitted for certain interest rate swaps, is valued with the hedged items as a whole, so that the fair value is included in
the fair value of borrowed money and loans and bills discounted (“Note 22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES (5) Fair Values of Financial Instruments”).
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24. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
The components of other comprehensive income (l0ss) for the years ended
March 31, 2017 and 2016, were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2017 2016 2017
Unrealized gains (losses)
on available-for-sale securities:
Gains arising during the year.......... ¥ 4,630 ¥7,455 $ 41,276
Reclassification adjustments
10 profit or 10SS.......cccovvviiiiiinns (14,419) (3,128) (128,530)
Amount before
income tax effect............c.ov.... (9,789) 4,326 (87,255)
Income tax effect ..........ccoovevenns 3,281 (504) 29,249
Total oo ¥ (6,507) ¥3,822 $ (58,006)
Deferred gains (losses) on derivatives
under hedge:
Gains arising during the year-......... ¥ 6,412 ¥(6,786) $ 57,154
Reclassification adjustments
0 profit or 10SS.......ccoovvveveviiiiinnn, (2,963) 2,061 (26,418)
Amount before
income tax effect..................... 3,448 (4,724) 30,736
Income tax effect ...........ccoovnen. (1,049) 1,423 (9,352)
TOtal v ¥ 2399 ¥3,301) $ 21,384
Defined retirement benefit plans:
Gains arising during the year.......... ¥ 3,843  ¥(5,954) $ 34,261
Reclassification adjustments
0 profit or 10SS.....ccovvvvviririiiinnan, 3,688 622 32,877
Amount before
income tax effect................... 7,532 (5,331) 67,138
Income tax effect ..o (2,298) 1,673 (20,486)
TOtAl s ¥ 5233 ¥3658 $ 46,653
Total other comprehensive
INCOME (10SS)...vcvvvvevvveveveieeiiias ¥ 1,125 ¥(3,136) $ 10,031

25. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Under ASBJ revised ASBJ Statement No. 17, “Accounting Standard for Segment
Information Disclosures,” and ASBJ Guidance No. 20, “Guidance on Accounting
Standard for Segment Information Disclosures,” an entity is required to report fi-
nancial and descriptive information about its reportable segments. Reportable
segments are operating segments or aggregations of operating segments that
meet specified criteria. Operating segments are components of an entity about

which separate financial information is available, and such information is evaluat-
ed regularly by the chief operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate re-

sources and in assessing performance. Generally, segment information is

required to be reported on the same basis as is used internally for evaluating op-

erating segment performance and deciding how to allocate resources to operat-
ing segments.

The Group engages in banking and other related activities, such as leasing,
securities, and credit card service. Segment information is not disclosed due to
the immateriality of operations other than banking.
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Other segment-related information:
(1) Information by services

Millions of Yen

Lending  Investment

March 31,2017 Operations  Operations Other Total
Ordinary income
from external customers........... ¥89,325 ¥56,209 ¥67,750 ¥213,284

Millions of Yen

Lending  Investment

March 31,2016 Operations  Operations Other Total
Ordinary income
from external customers........... ¥55,936 ¥21,201 ¥25336 ¥102,474

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Lending  Investment

March 31,2017 Operations  Operations Other Total
Ordinary income
from external customers.......... $796,199 $501,018 $603,888 $1,901,104

(2) Information by geographic region

Since the ordinary income and total tangible fixed assets attributable to the “Ja-
pan” segment account for more than 90% of the total of all geographic seg-
ments, geographical segment information has not been presented.

(3) Information by major customers

Since there has been no specific customer to whom the Group sells more than
10% of total ordinary income on the consolidated statement of income, informa-
tion on major customers has not been presented.

(4) Information on loss on impairment of fixed assets by reportable segment
Information on loss on impairment of fixed assets is not disclosed due to imma-
teriality, except for the banking business.

(5) Information on amortization and unamortized balance of goodwill by report-
able segment

Information on amortization and unamortized balance of goodwill is not disclosed
due to immateriality, except for the banking business.

(6) Information on gain on negative goodwill by reportable segment
Information on gain on negative goodwill is not disclosed due to immateriality, ex-
cept for the banking business.



26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions of consolidated subsidiaries of the Company with its directors or major individual shareholders for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016,

were as follows:
Year ended March 31, 2017

Capital
(Millions of Yen Transactions Outstanding Balance
/Thousands of (Millions of Yen/ (Millions of Yen/
Type Name Location U.S. Dollars) Business Ownerships  Relationship  Thousands of U.S. Dollars) Thousands of U.S. Dollars)
. Loans and
A director or . ¥28 ) ¥48
! ' . Yoshie Suto — —_ — — — Loan bills
director's close relative ($257) discounted ($431)
Loans and
Companies in which a Ito dentist Ibaraki ($§§§) Dental Clinic — — Loan ($ﬂ§) bills ($§§$)
majority of voting rights is discounted
owned by a director or
director's close relatives Y114 Loaqs and ¥100
Loan (61,022 . Dils ($891)
Yokokura N ¥0 ’ discounted
(I-)I(())nteLnT . Tochigi ($178) Wholesale — — Underwriting
N ' private ¥100 Securities ¥100
placement ($891) ($891)
bond
Terms and conditions on transactions and transaction policy:
The interest rate on loans is reasonably determined considering the market rate.
Year ended March 31, 2016
Capital Transactions Outstanding Balance
Type Name Location  (Millionsof Yen) ~ Business Ownerships  Relationship (Millions of Yen) (Millions of Yen)
Loan ¥145 Loans and
Yokokura . bills ¥100
Honten Tochigi ¥20  Wholesale ~ — Loans of - Underwriting discounted
0. LTD. 29 Ashikaga private Y100
Companies in which a ' placement Securities Y100
majority of voting rights is bond
owned by a director or Loans and
director’s close relatives géTSgD (246  Tochigi ¥30 Wholesale — lA‘gﬁiT; O; Loan ¥458 bills ¥438
v g discounted
Ryomo Loans of Loans and
Seikeihin Toso Gunma ¥20 Manufacturing — Ashikaga Loan ¥13 bills ¥12
Co., Ltd (258 9 discounted

Terms and conditions on transactions and transaction policy:
Note 1: Transaction amounts were reported at the average balance for the period.
Note 2: The interest rate on loans is reasonably determined considering the market rate.

Note 3: A majority of the voting rights is owned by a close relative of Mr. Mitsuhiro Kitamura, an outside director of the Company.
Note 4: A majority of the voting rights is owned by a close relative of Mr. Toshio Itabashi, retired as an outside director of the Company on June 25, 2015.

Note 5: A majority of the voting rights is owned by ITATSU Co., LTD.

Note 6: This is not a related party as Mr. Toshio Itabashi retired as an outside director of the Company on June 25, 2015. Transaction amounts were reported at the average balanced during the
period of an outside director of the Company. Outstanding balances were reported at the end of the period in which it ceased to be a related party.

Note 7: Transaction amounts do not include consumption taxes.

27.BUSINESS COMBINATION
The Business Integration of AHD and Joyo (together, the “Companies”) resolved
to consummate a business integration through a share exchange. At the same
time, AHD, Joyo, and Ashikaga entered into a business integration agreement.
AHD conducted a share exchange which made AHD a wholly-owing parent
company and Joyo a wholly-owned subsidiary, and changed its trade name to
“Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.” on October 1, 2016, as the effective date, after
the approval for the share exchange by the ordinary general meeting of share-
holders of each of the Companies held on June 28, 2016, and the approval for
the business integration has been issued by the Financial Services Agency of Ja-
pan on September 29, 2016.

(1) Outline of the Business Combination

(a) Name of the acquired company and its business outline
Name of the Acquired Company : AHD
Business content . Bank holding company

(b) Major reasons for the business combination

The new financial group established through the integration of the Companies
will aim to maintain and promote the relationships with customers and the deep
understanding of the local communities that Joyo and Ashikaga have developed
over the years, and to realize the advancement of comprehensive financial
services and operational efficiencies by taking advantage of the wide area
network and other connections formed through the Business Integration of the
Companies.

Through the above-mentioned efforts, the Companies will provide more
convenient and high-quality comprehensive financial services that can be
achieved only through the integration of leading regional banks. In addition, the
Companies will aim to become a group that is highly evaluated by each
stakeholder through the achievement of persistent growth as a driving force of
regional development and revitalization, the improvement of corporate value in
response to the expectations of shareholders and markets, and the expansion of
the opportunities for officers and employees to play an active part and enhance
their pride and enjoyment in their duties. Furthermore, the Companies will aim to
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become a financial group that is open to other regional financial institutions who
share the corporate ideals with each other.

(c) Date of the business combination
October 1, 2016

(d) Legal form of the business combination
Share exchange, under which AHD became the wholly owing parent company,
and Joyo became the wholly owned subsidiary.

(e) Name of the company after the business combination
Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.

() Rating of voting rights acquired
Voting right ratio before the share exchange 0.39%
Acquired voting right ratio on the date of the business combination 99.61%

Voting right ratio after the share exchange 100.00%

(g) Basis for determining the acquirer

By applying “Accounting Standard for Business Combinations” (ASBJ Statement
No. 21), and the “Guidance on Accounting Standard for Business Combinations,”
and “Accounting Standard for Business Divestitures” (ASBJ Guidance No. 10), it
has been decided that Joyo would be the acquiring company and AHD would be
the acquired company, mainly because shareholders of Joyo, a wholly-owned
subsidiary, will have the largest percentage of voting rights of the integrated
company.

(2) The period for which the operations of the acquired company are
included in the consolidated financial statements
From October 1, 2016, to March 31, 2017

(3) Acquisition cost of the acquired company and related details of each
class of consideration

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

Market value of AHD common shares
held by Joyo immediately before the
date of the business combination ...... ¥ 464 $ 4139

Market value of Joyo common shares
as if to be issued by Joyo on the date
of the business combination..............

ACQUISIION COSt ...

122,998
¥123,463

1,096,344
$1,100,483

(4) Exchange ratio by type of shares and methods of calculating the share
exchange ratio and number of shares allotted

(a) Exchange ratio by type of shares

Joyo shareholders received 1.17 shares of the Company’s common stock for
each share of Joyo common stock.

(b) Methods of calculating the share exchange ratio

To ensure fairness of calculation of the share exchange ratio, the Companies ap-
pointed third-party valuation institutions independent of both parties. Joyo has
appointed Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities Co., Ltd. for its third-party
valuation and AHD has appointed Pricewaterhouse Coopers for its third-party val-
uation. Based on the analysis results, the Companies have carefully consulted
and considered matters, and have reached the conclusion that the above com-
mon share exchange ratio is appropriate for the business integration.

(c) Number of shares delivered
Common shares: 845,805,218 shares
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(5) Major acquisition-related costs
Advisory fee, etc.:  ¥649 million ($5,786 thousand)

(6) Amount of the difference between the total cost of each transaction
and the acquisition cost of the acquired company
Loss on step acquisitions: ¥184 million ($1,642 thousand)

(7) The assets acquired and the liabilities assumed at the acquisition date
are as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
Total @SSELS: cvvvvriicvceei s ¥6,207,461 $55,329,902
Of which, loans and bills
discounted .........ccoeveiiiiiiinnnan, 4,221,375 37,627,018
Of which, securities..................... 1,314,586 11,717,500
Of which, allowance
for 10an 10SSES......cvvvevevivirirennn, (38,581) (343,897)
Total liabilities:.........cccoevvvriiieriinnns ¥5,964,697 $53,166,033
Of which, deposits ...........c.ceweee. 5,148,407 45,890,077

(8) Amount and reason for gain on negative goodwill incurred
(@) Amount of gain on negative goodwill incurred
¥119,219 million ($1,062,657 thousand)

(b) Reason for gain on negative goodwill incurred
Gain on negative goodwill was recognized because the fair value of AHD’s net
assets at the time of the business combination exceeded the acquisition cost.

(9) Approximate amounts of impact of the business combination on the
Company’s consolidated statement of income for the fiscal year under re-
view assuming the business combination was completed at the beginning
of the fiscal year

If this business combination had been completed as of April 1, 2016, the begin-
ning of the current fiscal year, the unaudited condensed pro forma consolidated
statement of income for the year ended March 31, 2017, would be as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
Ordinary iNCOME ......c.cevvvvvevriirirerennn ¥52,972 $472,170
Ordinary profit........cccocovveveeeeiniienn, 18,690 166,595
Net income attributable
to owners of the parent..........c.c....... 12,027 107,208

Since this business integration is a reverse acquisition, figures above do not in-
clude gain on negative goodwill without recalculation. Therefore, the pro forma
consolidated statement of income does not show the figures if business integra-
tion was carried out at the beginning of the current fiscal year.

28. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company resolved at the meeting of the board of directors held on March
21,2017, that it shall acquire all shares of The Joyo Lease Co., Ltd. (“Joyo
Lease”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Joyo, through dividends-in-kind and con-
ducted the acquisition on April 3, 2017, which made Joyo Lease a directly and
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The trade name of Joyo Lease was
changed to “Mebuki Lease Co., Ltd.” on April 3, 2017.
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INDEPENDENT AUIDNTORS REMORT
To the Board of Directors of Mebuki Finandial Group, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Mebukl Financial Group, Inc.
(formerly, Ashikaga Holdings Co., Ltd.} and its consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2017, and
the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash
flows for the vear then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, all expressed in Japanese yen.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consalidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, and for such
internal controd as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
fimanclal statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ermor,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accardance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan,
Those standards reguire that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reascnable assurance about
whether the consolidaied financlal statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or ercor, In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of
the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also Includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our awdit opinion,

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of Mebuki Financial Group, Inc. and its
consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2017, and the consolidated results of their operations and

their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Japan.

Convenience Translation

Dur audit also comprehended the translation of Japanese ven amounts into U5, dollar amounts
arvd, in our opinion, such translation has been made in accordance with the basis stated in Note 1
to the consolidated financial statements. Such LS. dellar amounts are presented solely for the
convenlence of readers cutside Japan.

Leloittt Touche Tokmataw LLC

June 28, 2017

Mg il
Diedaitte Touchs Tohmatns Limited

Annual Report 2017

58



Consolidated Balance Sheet (Unaudited)

March 31,2017 The Joyo Bank, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2017 2016 2017
ASSETS
Cash and due from DANKS ......c..veviii s ¥ 754,138 ¥ 442,713 $ 6,721,975
Call 10ans and Dills DOUGNT ... e 3,365 2,000 30,000
Monetary Claims DOUGNT.........ccciiiiiiiiiiicc s 8,161 9,977 72,745
TrAAING @SSELS w.vvvvvvvvvriirir s 4,060 5918 36,190
SEOUMEES .. 2,789,315 2,736,884 24,862,422
Loans and Dills diSCOUNTEA. ........vvvvvrrerieeice s 5,915,412 5,869,596 52,726,737
FOrEIgN EXCNANGES. ......vcviiiiici s 2,826 4,241 25,192
Lease receivables and inveStMents iN 18ASE ........covvvrvrivieiieieie s 46,250 42,502 412,254
OTNBE @SSELS ...t 85,369 64,583 760,939
TanQible fIXEA ASSBLS ..o 93,930 94,300 837,243
Intangible fixed assets.... 9,936 9,936 88,567
DEFEITEA TAX ASSELS. ..o 1,022 1,986 9,115
Customers’ liabilities for acceptances and gUArantees ..o, 47,619 14,727 424,451
Allowance for loan losses (39,621) (40,659) (353,162)
Allowance for investment losses (9) 9 (80)
TOTAL ¥9,721,778 ¥9,258,701 $86,654,588
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES:
DEPOSIES ..o ¥8,225,513 ¥8,088,463 $73,317,705
Negotiable certificates 0f dBPOSIL...........ccvivriiiiiiicc 35,402 22,689 315,555
Call money and bills SOI..........c.rvriiiiiiiiiiice s 61,337 45,560 546,730
Payables under securities lending transactions.. 135,417 130,247 1,207,034
Trading labilItIeS .......vvvvicic 511 895 4,560
BOITOWEA MONBY......oocviiiiici 445,546 174,118 3,971,352
Foreign exchanges.. 501 886 4,468
5,000 15,000 44,567
— 33,804 —
Due to trust account 13 13 118
ONEr TADIHES ... 97,481 78,627 868,893
Provision for direCtors’ DONUSES.........cvvurviiviirieirieereeees et 51 48 458
Liability for retirement benefits 8,896 15,475 79,298
Provision for directors’ retirement DENEMItS ..........ocovovviiiiciiiiiiiice, 33 38 301
Provision for reimbursement of dePOSILS..........ccoovvrrvrvvvvvvviiiiisissccii 2,585 2,354 23,049
Provision for point card certificates 139 145 1,246
Provision for 10SSes 0N iNterest repaymMeNtS..........ccevirierrn e, 4 6 40
Provision for CONtINGENT I0SSES ..........vvvrviriiieciiecieee 1,038 1,045 9,258
Reserves under special laws 2 2 18
Deferred tax labilitiES .......c..viviiric 30,976 31,295 276,104
Deferred tax liabilities for land revaluation ..., 9,454 9,526 84,274
Negative goodwill 1,501 1,659 13,382
Acceptances and gUArANTEES.........ccccvvvirriinincec s 47,619 14,727 424,451
TOtAl HADIHES w.vvvvvvvvvvvev e ¥9,109,027 ¥8,666,631 $81,192,863
EQUITY:
COMIMON STOCK. ...t ¥ 85,113 ¥ 85113 $ 758,651
Capital surplus 59,705 58,574 532,185
StOCK aCQUISTTION FIGNTS ... — 132 —_
REtAINEA BAMNINGS .....cvoivic e 329,982 333,964 2,941,284
TrEASUNY STOCK w.vvveivicicic — (21,569) —
Accumulated other comprehensive income:
Unrealized gains on available-for-sale SECUMIES. ... 130,597 135,031 1,164,076
Deferred losses on derivatives under hedge accounting.... (574) (3,073) (5,121)
Land revaluation SUMPIUS ..o 12,844 13,002 114,488
Defined retirement DENEfit lans.............ccooovevvviiiinivvii (4,918) (10,667) (43,840)
Total accumulated other comprehensive income ... 137,949 134,293 1,229,604
NONCONTOMING IMTEIESES. ... — 1,562 —
TOMAI BOUILY ..o 612,750 592,070 5,461,724
TOTAL oo ¥9,721,778 ¥9,258,701 $86,654,588
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Consolidated Statement of Income (Unaudited)

Year Ended March 31,2017 The Joyo Bank, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2017 2016 2017
INCOME:
Interest income:
Interest on 10anS and AISCOUNTS ..........vviviiriiii s ¥ 63,653 ¥ 66,321 $ 567,369
Interest and dividends 0N SECUMLIES ........vvvevrreeririer i 28,634 29,208 255,232
Interest on call loans and Dills DOUGNT ..., 33 38 299
Interest on deposits With DANKS .........oeviiriii s 315 323 2,809
Other INtErest INCOME .........cvuiviiiiin 378 353 3,369
TIUSETEES .ot 22 25 204
FEES and COMMISSIONS .........uuvvruiiiiiriieit e 25,479 26,514 227,106
TraAdiNG INCOME ... 2,253 2,211 20,087
Other 0perating INCOME...........cvvriiiiir s 11,939 9,556 106,423
ONEI INCOIME ... 34,988 28,847 311,871
TOtAl INCOME ..o e 167,698 163,400 1,494,771
EXPENSES:
Interest expenses:
INTEreSt ON AEPOSIES ......cvvevieicicr 2,124 2,629 18,939
Interest on negotiable certificates of dEPOSIt ..., 11 21 98
Interest on call money and bills SOId............cccccocoivviiciiiiins 471 255 4,199
Interest on payables under securities lending transactions.... 957 605 8,532
Interest on borrowing and rediSCOUNES ...........rvvvvvvvvciiiiiiissncii 616 358 5,498
INTErEST ON DONGAS ... 233 254 2,082
Other INTEIBST BXPENSES. ... vt 3,539 2,452 31,547
FEES aNd COMMISSIONS ...vevverrriiir ettt 6,746 6,477 60,130
Other Operating EXPENSES ........cvrviriiriiirieisieei st 6,757 4,163 60,232
General and adminiStrative EXPENSES .. .. ..o 74,046 70,784 660,011
Provision of allowance for 10N 10SSES.........c.riiiiiiii s 4,160 2,754 37,089
OFNEI BXPENSES ..o 28,672 25,611 255,567
TOtAl BXPENSES vv.vevi 128,336 116,368 1,143,923
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES ... 39,361 47,032 350,848
INCOME TAXES
CUITBNE 1ot 12,794 13,937 114,044
DETBITEA ... (916) 1,925 (8,172)
TOtal INCOME TAXES ... 11,877 15,862 105,872
NET INCOME ...t ¥ 27,483 ¥ 31,169 $ 244,976
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS........ccvvviverieriireienrirene, 28 135 252
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT ......ccoovvvvririnirierieirerin, ¥ 27,455 ¥ 31,034 $ 244,724
Yen U.S. Dollars
PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK
BASIC NBLINCOME .v.vvvvevve s ¥37.97 ¥42.93 $0.33
DilUEA NETINCOME. ...vvivir — 4291 —_

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Unaudited)

Year Ended March 31,2017 The Joyo Bank, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2017 2016 2017
NET INCOME ...t ¥27,483 ¥31,169 $244,976
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale SECUNES .........cccocvvcviciviviiiicieiiicris (4,455) (24,888) (39,714)
Deferred gains (losses) on derivatives under hedge accounting...........ccccoevecevicciiien. 2,498 (1,348) 22,272
Land revaluation SUIPIUS ... —_ 498 —_
Defined retirement benefit plans ..........ccccooee... 5,749 (6,911) 51,244
Total other comprehensive income (10ss) 3,792 (32,649) 33,802
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ......cooovviiriniriiniinrinne ¥31,276 ¥(1,479) $278,778
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
OWNETS Of the PAMENT........viiiicieiec s ¥31,248 ¥(1,605) $278,531
NONCONTIOIING INEEIESTS.......vvvevecvici s 27 125 247
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Unaudited)

Year Ended March 31,2017 The Joyo Bank, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Millions of Yen

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

Unrealized  Deferred Gains

Gains (Losses) ~ (Losses) on
Stock onAvailable-  Derivatives Land Defined
Common Capital Acquisition  Retained Treasury for-Sale under Hedge Revaluation Retirement Noncontrolling Total
Stock Surplus Rights Earnings Stock Securities  Accounting Surplus  Benefit Plans Total Interests Equity
BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2015......ccovvverriinan ¥85,113  ¥58,574 ¥147  ¥311,093  ¥(21,619) ¥159,909 ¥(1,725)  ¥12,666 ¥ (3,756) ¥167,094 ¥1,437  ¥601,840
Cash dividends.............cccccoviveiniinis (8,312) (8,312)
Net income attributable
to owners of parent 31,034 31,034
Purchase of treasury stock (28) (28)
Disposal of treasury Stock.................. (12) 78 65
Reversal of land revaluation surplus..... 161 161
Net changes during the fiscal year....... (14) (24,878) (1,348) 336 6,911) (32,801) 124 (32,691)
Total changes during the fiscal year-......... — — (14) 22,871 49 (24,878) (1,348) 336 6,911) (32,801) 124 (9,769)
BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2016 ¥85,113  ¥58,574 ¥132  ¥333,964  ¥(21,569) ¥135,031 ¥(3,073)  ¥13,002  ¥(10,667) ¥134,293 ¥1,562  ¥592,070
Cash dividends. (10,046) (10,046)
Net income attributable
to owners of parent..........cccoovreean. 27,455 27,455
Purchase of treasury stock... 4 (@)
Disposal of treasury stock ... 0) 25 24
Retirement of treasury stock................ (21,548) 21,548 —
Changes due to acquiring equity of
consolidated subsidiaries................... 1,131 1,131
Reversal of land revaluation surplus..... 158 158
Net changes during the fiscal year....... (132 (4,433) 2,498 (158) 5,749 3,655 (1,562) 1,961
Total changes during the fiscal year.......... — 1,131 (132) (3,981) 21,569 (4,433) 2,498 (158) 5,749 3,655 (1,562) 20,680
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2017 ....cviviviiinne ¥85,113  ¥59,705 ¥ — ¥329982 ¥ — ¥130,597 ¥ (574) ¥12,844 ¥ (4,918) ¥137,949 ¥ —  ¥612,750
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
Unrealized  Deferred Gains
Gains (Losses)  (Losses) on
Stock on Available-  Derivatives Land Defined
Common Capital Acquisition  Retained Treasury for-Sale  underHedge Revaluation Retirement Noncontrolling Total
Stock Surplus Rights Earnings Stock Securities  Accounting Surplus  Benefit Plans Total Interests Equity
BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2016 $758,651  $522,097 $1,180 $2,976,776 $(192,259) $1,203,596  $(27,392) $115901  $(95,084) $1,197,020  $13,924 $5,277,389
Cash dividends (89,547) (89,547)
Net income attributable
to owners of parent ... 244,724 244,724
Purchase of treasury stock... (40) (40)
Disposal of treasury stock ... ) 226 218
Retirement of treasury stock................ (192,073) 192,073 —
Changes due to acquiring equity of
consolidated subsidiaries ................. 10,088 10,088
Reversal of land revaluation surplus..... 1,413 1,413
Net changes during the fiscal year....... (1,180) (39,520 22,272 (1,413) 51,244 32,583 (13,924) 17,480
Total changes during the fiscal year ......... — 10,088 (1,180) (35,492) 192,259 (39,520) 22,272 (1,413) 51,244 32,583 (13,924) 184,336
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2017 ....coovvvviinns $758,651 $532,185 $ — $2941,284 $ — $1,164,076 $ (5,121) $114,488  $(43,340) $1,229,604 $ — $5,461,724
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Unaudited)

Year Ended March 31,2017 The Joyo Bank, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2017 2016 2017
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
INCOME DETOIE INCOME TAXES ...11vvvviiiiiiii i ¥ 39,361 ¥ 47,032 $ 350,848
Adjustments for:
INCOME TAXES PAIL .. ...ttt ettt ettt ettt et ettt et et e et a e et eears (17,123) (11,713) (152,632)
Depreciation and amortization... 6,345 6,173 56,557
Impairment 108S................ 559 208 4,984
Amortization of negative goodwill........ (158) (158) (1,409)
Decrease in allowance fOr 108N 10SSES ............ocveveeeveeeeeeeeee oot (1,038) (1,106) (9,254)
Increase (decrease) in Provision for AireGtOrs’ DONUSES ............veveevereeeeeseeeeeeeeee e eeeeees e 2 (13) 24
Decrease in asset for retirement DENBMILS ............c.ocviviviiiiie e — 1,438 —
Increase in liabilities for retirement DENEMIS ............c.ccveiiviiiieie e 8,764 7,478 78,121
Decrease in provision for directors’ retirement DENEMILS. ............c.ovveoviireieee e 4) U] (42)
Increase in provision for reimbursement of dePOSItS ..........ccviiiivrieiiiee e 231 189 2,065
Increase (decrease) in provision for point card certificates . (5) 6 (50)
Decrease in provision for contingent losses...... (7) (123) (63)
Decrease in provision for interest repayments... (1) 1) (16)
Gain on fUNA MANAGEMENT. .......iiviie ittt sttt e s erae e e eriae s (99,635) (103,468) (888,094)
FINANCING BXPENSES ...ttt bbb b bbb e bbebannnees 7,953 6,577 70,895
GaINS TEIAEA 10 SECUMHES .........ivveeieieieeeeis et e ts ettt ettt te et e st et s s e et s et eare s (8,757) (6,993 (78,061)
FOTIGN BXCNANGE I0SSES ... ..ottt ettt ettt e ettt e et 3,483 20,018 31,054
L0SS 0N iSPOSAl OF FIXBA SSELS ... ..veeeeeee ettt ettt ettt ettt e e 265 444 2,362
Net decrease (NCrease) in trading @SSELS ............vevveeeereeeeeeeeeee et e eee et et et e et et e e e e 1,858 (918) 16,563
Net increase (decrease) in trading liabilities. .. (383) 734 (3,422)
Net increase in loans and bills discounted . (45,815) (251,576) (408,377)
Net increase in deposits.............ccvvvvvvvvvnnnns 137,050 372,864 1,221,590
Net increase in negotiable certificates of deposit .. 12,712 12,644 113,310
Net increase (decrease) in borrowed money (excluding subordinated borrowings).. 27,427 (171,269) 2,419,354
Net decrease (increase) in deposit (excluding cash eqUIVAIENTS) .........cvvevvireeiiiesiiieesciee i 23,825 (43,084) 212,367
NEt AECTEASE IN CAII IOANS......uvutvvieeatt bbb nneeenees 450 14,889 4,012
NELINCTEASE IN CAIl MONBY ...ttt be bbb eneereees 15,777 1,235 140,631
Net increase (decrease) in payables under securities lending transactions...................vvvvvvvvvenennnns 5,169 (13,147) 46,077
Net decrease (increase) in foreign exchanges - assets .............cevveens 1,415 (944) 12,614
Net increase (decrease) in foreign exchanges - liabilities...... (384) 334 (3,430)
Net increase in lease receivables and investments in lease... (3,747) (3,931) (33,407)
Net decrease in due to trust account..............cccevvvveennns 0) ) (0)
Proceeds from fund management ..., 99,461 103,618 886,542
PAYMENTS FOF FINANCE ........c.veveeeeeeeeee ettt ettt ettt (7,860) (6,756) (70,063)
(0T 1 SRR (20,586) (23,741) (183,494)
Total adjustments 391,240 (89,053) 3,487,307
Net cash provided by 0PErating ACHVIEES ..............eveerees e eete e et e ettt et e e 430,602 (42,020) 3,838,155
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of securities....... ... (1,197,236) (881,587) (10,671,509)
Proceeds from sales of securities........ 967,791 606,454 8,626,359
Proceeds from redemption of securities 190,545 233,760 1,698,419
Purchases of tangible fixed assets.............. (3,598) (3,482) (32,071)
Proceeds from sales 0f tangible fIXEd ASSELS .......vuvvieeiieriiiie e e et e et e e er e e e 167 494 1,491
Purchases of INtaNgibIe fIXE ASSEES ..............cceiveeeeeeeeeeee et ettt ee e en et (2,839) (1,990) (25,309)
Net cash provided by iNVESHNG CHVITIES ............covieeeeeereeee et eeee e e eeee e e et e e et e e e e (45,169) (46,350) (402,620)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Redemption of subordinated bonds and bonds With Warrants ..................cooeeevereeoeeeseseesnns (40,324) — (359,426)
PUIChASE Of TrEASUMNY STOCKS ......viisiieeriieiee sttt e sttt e e sttt e e sttt e e e s e et aaa e e e s s eabees (4) (28) (40)
Proceeds from sales of treasury stocks. 1 7 15
Cash dividends paid........................ (9,397) (8,312) (83,765)
Dividends paid to noNCONtrolliNg INEEIESES.............cvevivireeeeiiee et (1) M 9)
Payments from changes in ownership interests that do not result in change in scope of consolidation...... (453) — (4,045)
Net cash provided by financing aCtVIIES ...........ocvviiiiire i (50,179) (8,334) (447,269)
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ......ovvviiiieeeieeeeee e (3) (13) (29)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS .......etiiiee ettt ettt et e e e 335,250 (96,719) 2,988,236
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR .......oeiiiiiiiiee ettt 396,713 493,433 3,536,090
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR ... .ciiittiiiieee e ettt e ettt e e e s eeiiiaane e e e ¥ 731,964 ¥ 396,713 $ 6,524,326

NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITY:
Not applicable.
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Non-Consolidated Balance Sheet (Unaudited)

March 31,2017 The Joyo Bank, Ltd.

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2017 2016 2017
ASSETS
Cash and due from DANKS .........coiiiviriiicc e ¥ 754,116 ¥ 442,654 $ 6,721,777
Call loans and bills DOUGNT..........c.oviviviiiiiccc e 3,365 2,000 30,000
Monetary Claims DOUGNT .......vovoviiiciiecc s 8,161 9,977 72,745
Trading assets 4,060 5,918 36,190
SECUMHIES ..o 2,793,575 2,739,570 24,900,399
Loans and bills discounted 5,967,030 5,912,707 53,186,829
FOTBIGN EXCNANGES. ... .cvevvvivieit ettt 2,826 4,241 25,192
DN @SS ...ttt 48,076 36,515 428,528
TangibIE fIXEA @SSELS ..vv.viveririiieiee e 85,854 86,520 765,261
INtANQGIDIE fIXEA @SSETS....v.vivivirieiii et 9,531 9,456 84,959
Prepaid PENSION COST......v.viviriieiiiiitiiete et 7,231 7,825 64,454
Customers’ liabilities for acceptances and guarantees ..............cccoceeeiiiiveicieeennn, 47,620 14,728 424,461
AllOWANCE TOr 10BN I0SSES ...t (34,416) (35,715) (306,769)
Allowance for iNVESIMENT I0SSES ........v.veviiieieieieicsee s 9) 9 (80)
TOTAL oottt ¥9,697,024 ¥9,236,391 $86,433,945
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES:
DEDOSIES ...ttt ettt ettt ettt b e ¥8,240,398 ¥8,103,353 $73,450,381
Negotiable certificates 0f dePOSIT .........vviiiiiieieeee s 56,252 39,539 501,401
Call money and DillS SOId........coveviiiiriiiiii s 61,337 45,560 546,730
Payables under securities lending tranSactionsS ...........c.ccuvveviviiviriiiniieinsseinseenna 135,417 130,247 1,207,034
Trading liabilities 511 895 4,560
Borrowed money 436,978 164,751 3,894,986
Foreign exchanges 501 886 4,468
BONAS ..o 5,000 15,000 44,567
Bonds with warrants — 33,804 —_
Due to trust account 13 13 118
Other lIADIIHIES. ....cvevevieiiie ettt 63,079 50,212 562,253
Provision for direCtors’ DONUSES ......c.vvvvviiiiiiiiieeese e 48 46 432
Provision for directors’ retirement DENEfitS........c.covvivviviiiiiviii e 8,415 7,355 75,009
Provision for reimbursement of dePOSIS.........covviviiiiriiiiceeee e 2,585 2,354 23,049
Provision for CONtINGENT I0SSES.......cviviviiiriiieiiie s 1,038 1,045 9,258
Provision for point card CErtificates ..o 106 112 945
Deffered tax 1abilitieS. ... 35,662 36,706 317,874
Deferred tax liabilities for land revaluation 8,774 8,846 78,214
Acceptances and guarantees.........c.covvvvvveveeevrivveriieinannas 47,620 14,728 424,461
TOtal lIADIHIES ....vvevvevceceeec et 9,103,740 8,655,459 81,145,742
EQUITY:
COMMON SEOCK ...ttt 85,113 85,113 758,651
CaPITAl SUMPIUS .ttt 58,574 58,574 522,097
StOCK @CQUISTEION FIGNES ...t — 132 —
REtAINEd BAMINGS ... ivivvretiii ettt 308,341 315,717 2,748,388
TIBASUNY STOCK....vevvvitivit sttt — (21,963) —
Valuation AdJUSTMENES: ....oveveviririiiiii s 141,254 143,357 1,259,067
Unrealized gains on available-for-sale SECUMHIES.........ovveiiiiriiiniiiiiiiiseacnas 130,542 134,985 1,163,581
Deferred losses on derivatives under hedge accounting .........ccoocovvvveivnireiininannn, (574) (3,073) (5,121)
Land revaluation SUMPIUS ........vevivireriiierie e 11,287 11,445 100,607
TOtAl BQUITY ..o 593,283 ¥ 580,932 5,288,203
TOTAL ittt bbbttt ¥9,697,024 ¥9,236,391 $86,433,945
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Non-Consolidated Statement of Income (Unaudited)

Year Ended March 31,2017 The Joyo Bank, Ltd.

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2017 2016 2017
INCOME:
Interest income:
Interest on loans and bills AiSCOUNTEA .........cvoveviiviiiiiiii e ¥63,726 ¥66,434 $568,024
Interest and dividends 0N SECUMLIES ........cvivieeiiiieccce e 28,625 29,187 255,149
Interest on call loans and bills bought 33 38 299
Interest on deposits with banks .... 315 323 2,809
Other interest income................... 401 376 3,578
TTUSE FBES ..ttt 22 25 204
FEES and COMMISSIONS. .. ...cviviivririiit ittt re 22,154 22,967 197,473
Trading INCOIME ...cvvvivieiictee ettt 449 767 4,008
Other 0perating INCOME...........ovoiiirririie s 11,997 9,570 106,943
ONBI INCOIMIE 1.ttt 13,332 9,103 118,839
TOLA INCOME ...ttt 141,059 138,796 1,257,327
EXPENSES:
Interest expenses:
INTEreSt ON AEPOSIES ....ovviveiii it 2,125 2,631 18,950
Interest on negotiable certificates of deposit 13 25 123
Interest on call money and bills SOId ... 47 255 4,199
Interest on payables under securities lending transactions ..........c.cococvvvvveininannn, 957 605 8,532
Interest on DOMMOWEd MONEY ........vveviviierieie st 616 358 5,498
INTErESt ON DONUS. ......viviviice s 233 254 2,082
INterest 0N INtEreSt SWAP .........vviiiii it 2,478 1,776 22,089
Other INTEIESt BXPENSES ....vvivvviriieiiiteise st 1,007 606 8,977
FEes and COMMISSIONS. .......cviviviriiiriier ettt 7,815 7,504 69,661
Other operating eXpenses.............co...... 6,757 4,163 60,232
General and administrative expenses.... 72,544 69,690 646,622
Provision of allowance for loan losses ... 3,811 2,796 33,974
ONBI BXPENSES ...ttt 7,379 6,063 65,774
TOMAl BXPEINSES ...cvvivieritr ettt 106,211 96,733 946,713
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES ....coiviiiiiictct ettt 34,847 42,062 310,613
INCOME TAXES:
CUITBIE 1.ttt bbb 10,477 12,532 93,387
DEIBITEU. ... vttt (84) 1,755 (750)
TOtal INCOME TAXES ... 10,392 14,288 92,637
NETINCOME ..ottt ¥24,454 ¥27,774 $217,976
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Non-Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

March 31,2017 The Ashikaga Bank, Ltd.

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2017 2016 2017
ASSETS
Cash and due from DANKS ........cviiiiiiiiiicceec s ¥ 639,631 ¥ 437,507 $ 5,701,320
Call loans and bills DOUGNT..........c.oviviviiiiiccc e 1,795 414 16,000
Monetary Claims DOUGNT.........cvoiiiriiiiec s 7,791 7,627 69,451
Trading account securities 3,166 3,596 28,223
SECUMHIES ..o 1,417,158 1,325,749 12,631,771
Loans and bills discounted 4,348,447 4,274,437 38,759,675
FOrEIGN BXCNANGES. ...ttt 4,396 4,377 39,190
DN @SS ...ttt 32,106 24,916 286,176
TangibIE fIXEA @SSELS ..vv.viveririiieiee e 25,872 25,275 230,613
INtANQGIDIE fIXEA @SSETS....v.vivivirieiii et 2,370 2,569 21,133
Prepaid PENSION COST......v.viviriieiiiiitiiete et 15,323 12,786 136,581
DEfRITEA TAX ASSES ... .uviviiiiiiii it 2,461 — 21,943
Customers’ liabilities for acceptances and guarantees ............c.cccoeerrrencicienrennn. 11,953 12,913 106,550
AlIOWANCE TOr 10BN T0SSES ..vvvvviiviiiiiieie s (34,746) (33,328) (309,708)
TOTAL oottt ¥6,477,729 ¥6,098,844 $57,738,919
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES:
DEDOSIES ...ttt ettt ettt ettt b e ¥5,332,582 ¥5,224,561 $47,531,707
Negotiable certificates 0f ABPOSIT........cvoviiiiriiii s 289,303 224,878 2,578,689
Call money and bills SOIA..........c.cvoviviiiiiiiiie e 241,975 78,000 2,156,834
Payables under securities lending tranSactionsS .............ccvvveveviivireinieeinseeiseaenna 32,222 25,263 287,218
BOMTOWEA MONBY ...vvvvivive ettt 220,047 181,726 1,961,382
Foreign exchanges 256 282 2,285
Other liabilities..........coveveveviiiinns 30,324 30,426 270,292
Provision for directors’ bonuses 53 25 481
Provision for directors’ retirement DENEfitS.........c.oivivviriiiiiiiccc — 132 —
Provision for reimbursement of dBPOSItS.........c.covcivviviiiiii i 895 858 7,978
Provision for CONtINGENT I0SSES. .....vviviririiiiiicii st 509 464 4,545
Provision for point card CertifiCates ..........ovvvvviiiireriiieccec e 111 90 993
Deffered tax HabilitIES . .......cviviviiiiiiec s — 7,296 —_
AcCeptances and QUATANTEES..........cvveviriieriereries ettt 11,953 12,913 106,550
TOtal TIADIHIES ... 6,160,235 5,786,919 54,908,951
EQUITY:
Common stock 135,000 135,000 1,203,316
Retained earnings: 145,333 129,428 1,295,424
Valuation adjustments: 37,160 47,495 331,227
Unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities 37,259 51,447 332,115
Deferred losses on hedges (99) (3,951) (887)
TOtAl BOUITY ..o 317,494 311,924 2,829,967
TOTAL ittt ettt ¥6,477,729 ¥6,098,844 $57,738,919
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Non-Consolidated Statement of Income (Unaudited)

Year Ended March 31,2017 The Ashikaga Bank, Ltd.

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2017 2016 2017
INCOME:
Interest income:
Interest on loans and bills AiSCOUNTEA .........cvoveviiviiiiiiii e ¥51,017 ¥53,724 $454,744
Interest and dividends 0N SECUMLIES ........cvivieeiiiieccce e 20,073 16,958 178,920
Interest on call loans and bills bought 60 393 537
Interest on deposits with banks .... 373 404 3,329
Other interest inCOME .........co...... 82 102 732
FEes and COMMISSIONS. .......cviviviriiiririer ettt 20,040 21,253 178,632
Other 0perating iNCOME.........coviviiiiriiii et 1,772 1,343 15,800
OtNBIINCOME <.ttt 4,348 6,366 38,760
TOtAl INCOME ..o 97,768 100,545 871,453
EXPENSES:
Interest expenses:
INTEreSt 0N AEPOSIES .....vivvvivieiictc e 1,110 2,082 9,894
Interest on negotiable certificates of depoSIt...........cccovviiiiiiiiiiiii 85 226 762
Interest on call money and bills sold 152 8 1,359
Interest on payables under securities lending transactions ............ccocccovvvveiininnnn, 41 211 3,668
Interest on borrowed MONBY .........ccooviiiiiiiiiiieeen 40 150 365
Other INTEIESt BXPENSES ....vivivvvivircieet et 1,508 779 13,447
Fees and COMMISSIONS PAYMENTS ......c.viviviiiiriicie e 6,747 6,314 60,146
Other Operating EXPENSES. .........vivirriiiiiiiieee ettt 1,062 36 9,474
General and adminiStrative BXPENSES .......cvivevevireieiiee e 46,526 47,711 414,711
Provision of allowance for [0an 10SSES ........c.ovveveeriiriiieiei e 4,444 — 39,612
OENET BXPENSES ....vvivi ittt 3,717 3,559 33,139
Total expenses............c...... 65,807 61,079 586,576
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 31,960 39,466 284,877
INCOME TAXES:
CUITBIE L.ttt ettt 9,350 10,468 83,345
DEEITEA ..ottt (3,802) (1,861) (33,894)
TOLAl INCOME TAXES ...ttt 5,547 8,607 49,451
NETINCOME .....oovviiisir ettt ¥26,412 ¥30,859 $235,427
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Corporate Data (as of March 31, 2017)

Mebuki Financial Group, Inc. The Joyo Bank, Ltd.

Address 7-2,Yaesu 2-chome, Chuo-ku, Tokyo Founded July 30,1935

Head Office address ~ (Mito Head Office) Head Office 5-5, Minami-machi 2-chome, Mito, Ibaraki Prefecture
5-5, Minami-machi 2-chome, Mito, Ibaraki Prefecture Paid in capital 85.1 billion yen

(Utsunomiya Head Office)
1-25, Sakura 4-chome, Utsunomiya, Tochigi Prefecture

Paid in capital 117 4 billion yen

Establishment April 1,2008
(Change of tradename: October 1, 2016)

Stock exchange listing Tokyo Stock Exchange
Number of employees 123

Network Domestic: 180 offices (Head Office, 151 branches, 29 sub-branches)
Overseas: 3 Representative Offices (Shanghai, Singapore, New York)

Number of employees* 3,281
Credit ratings A+ (R&I) A2 (Moody’s)

The Ashikaga Bank, Ltd.

(redit ratings A (R&l) Founded October 1, 1895
Head Office 1-25, Sakura 4-chome, Utsunomiya, Tochigi Prefecture
Paid in capital 135.0 billion yen
Network Domestic: 154 offices (Head Office, 105 branches, 49 sub-branches)

Overseas: 1 Representative Office (Hong Kong)
Number of employees* 2,801
*Excluding those transferred to external organizations (redit ratings A+ (R&)

Organization s of apri 3,2017)

\‘l
MEBUKI

Financial Group

(holding company)

General Meeting of Shareholders

Accounting Auditors

Board of Directors

Audit and Supervisory Committee

Cooperate
Corporate Governance

Committee Consult/
Report

Audit and Supervisory Committee Office

Management Meeting ALM/Risk Management Committee

Group Strategy Committee

Corporate Planning Division @ Corporate Management Division jj Regional Revitalization Division Audit Division

............................................................................................. e —

directly-owned subsidiary

| | |
W LT | ZiASHKAGABANK | MEBUKI MEBUKI LEASE

Company with Audit and Supervisory Committee Company with Audit and Supervisory Committee Company with Auditors

Compliance Committee
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NetWO rk (as of March 31, 2017)

Domestic: 334 offices, Overseas: 4 locations

New York
(]

Shanghai ®

Hong Kon
Q. ¢}

Singapore
Q.P

Joyo Bank

New York
Representative Office

Shanghai
Representative Office

Singapore
Representative Office
Ashikaga Bank

Hong Kong
Representative Office

Saitama
Joyo

Address 712 Fifth Avenue, 8th Floor, New York, NY
10019 U.S.A.

Address Room 1901, Shanghai International Trade Centre, 2201
Yan An Road (West), Shanghai 200336 P. R. China

Address 63 Market Street, #11-03 Bank of Singapore
Centre, Singapore 048942

Address Suite 1601, 16th Floor, Tower2, The Gateway,
Harbour City,Kowloon, Hong Kong

Stock Information (s of March 31, 2017)

Capital and number of issued shares

117,495,550,000 yen
1,179,055,218 shares
1,179,055,218 shares

Paid in capital
Number of issued shares

of which, common stock

Major shareholders
Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.

Joyo Bank

Gunma
Ashikaga : 15

: 3
Ashikaga : 17 géj

Tochigi
Joyo 8
Ashikaga : 112

a D
Miyagi
Joyo : 1

[

Fukushima
Joyo .10
Ashikaga : 1

Ibaraki
Joyo 1146
Ashikaga: 8

Chiba
Joyo : 6

Tokyo
0 Joyo .5
(; Ashikaga : 1

Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.
Address 7-2, Yaesu 2-chome, Chuo-ku, Tokyo

Joyo Bank

Head Office 5-5, Minami-machi 2-chome, Mito,
Ibaraki Prefecture

Ashikaga Bank

Head Office 1-25, Sakura 4-chome, Utsunomiya,
Tochigi Prefecture

Number of  Shareholding ratio to Number of  Shareholding ratio to
Name shares held  the total number of Name shares held  the total number of
(thousand shares) issued shares (%) (thousand shares) issued shares (%)
Nomura Financial Partners Co., Ltd. 122,900 10.42 Mebuki Financial Group, Inc. 722,910 100.00
Sompo Japan Nipponkoa Insurance Inc. 46,118 3.91
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (trust account) 38,662 3.27 Ashikaga Bank
Nippon L Insurance Compary 4487 29 Jmaersh Spred e
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 33,920 2.87 (thousand shares) issued shares (%)
The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. (trust account) 28,320 2.40 Mebuki Financial Group, Inc. 1,340,520 100.00
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (trust account 9) 26,331 2.23
State Street Bank And Trust Company 505223 24,815 210
Sumitomo Life Insurance Company 21,659 1.83
The Dai-ichi Life Insurance Company, Limited 19,948 1.69
Total 397,165 33.68
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